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Shaping Tomorrow with
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As part of its diversification into the medical technology sector to meet growing market
demand, Pentamaster International Limited has been ramping up its capabilities in
medical automation by tapping on latest technologies in automation assembly solutions to
enhance value creation, as seen by the integrated healthcare model depicted.

Playing a role in Malaysia’s development as a medical hub in the region, the Company
leads the stride as a tour de force of the medical industry with its in-depth automation
experience and equipment know-how. Manifesting its motto of “Think Automation Think
Pentamaster”, the Company’s extensive expertise in complex assembly processes spurs
the development of new medical equipment prototypes for its clientele at the forefront of
healthcare frontiers.

Synergising human strengths with automation to drive the future of care, the Company’s
state-of-the-art catheter assembly machines and strong manufacturing capabilities
are truly helping to shape a better tomorrow, as the Company contributes to dynamic
developments through smaller, less invasive devices and high-performance catheter
machines built on precision.
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CORPORATE STRUCTURE
YNSIEES

PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED (the “Company”)
BEREZERERERAE (A28

(MC-323853)
(Cayman Islands)
(HEHE)
100% 100% 100% 100%
o [ o [
Pentamaster Technology Pentamaster Pentamaster Equipment Pentamaster
(M) Sdn. Bhd. Instrumentation Sdn. Bhd. Manufacturing Sdn. Bhd. MediQ Sdn. Bhd.

199501007290 (336488-H)
(“Pentamaster Technology”)
(Malaysia) (2K 752m)

200301034952 (637373-M)
(“Pentamaster Instrumentation”)
(Malaysia) (F3&FEE0)

@ Pentamaster Technology (Jiangsu) Limited
91320507MA25TXWQXP
(“Pentamaster Jiangsu”)
(China) (FR[EE)

@ Pentamaster Technology (M) Sdn. Bhd.
(Singapore Branch) (FiiNE5HAR)
T18FCO094F
(“Pentamaster Singapore”)

(Singapore) (FTHNE)

@ Pentamaster Automation (Japan) Co., Ltd.
1020003020389
(“Pentamaster Japan”)
(Japan) (H4s)

@ Pentamaster Automation (Germany) GmbH
HRB 283547
(“Pentamaster Germany”)
(Germany) (&)

@ Penang Automation Cluster Sdn. Bhd.
201601021441 (1192380-V)
("PAC)
(Malaysia) (%2 7353)

200601029409 (749166-A)
(“Pentamaster Equipment”)
(Malaysia) (2 752m)

202001017008 (1373328-W)
(“Pentamaster MediQ”)
(Malaysia) (F3&FEE0)

@ Pentamaster Equipment Manufacturing, Inc.
82-4120867
(“Pentamaster US”)
(United States) (£[)

@ TP Concept Sdn. Bhd.
201001040387 (924312-H)
(“TP Concept”)
(Malaysia) (F5 2K 7g22)

@ Pentamaster Eva Sdn. Bhd.
202401012789 (1558639-W)
(“Pentamaster Eva”)

(Malaysia) (52K 7552)
Incorporated on 29 March 2024
712024438 29 B s Mk L
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AT 2

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20234 20224F 20214 20204 20194
MYR'000 MYR000 MYR000 MYR000  MYR000
RESULTS (Audited) B RER <5 = RE e =
Revenue & 691,850 600,587 508,086 418,581 487,088
Profit before taxation BRIG A& F 143,107 134,758 120,574 114,804 139,180
Profit after taxation PRI & R F 142,233 133,301 116,744 113,921 131,381
Profit attributable to: LUNFE1R SR
Owners of the Company ATHEE A 142,233 133,301 116,744 113,921 131,381
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERK&E
Total assets MEE 1,159,041 1,001,661 825,080 659,276 578,357
Total liabilities FSN=K 311,069 264,948 188,337 125,731 139,434
Net assets BEEFE 847,972 736,713 636,743 533,545 438,923
REVENUE Y{ &% PROFIT AFTER TAXATION &R & &5 F|
(MYR'000) (F%2) (MYR'000) (F2&
2023 @ 691,850 2023 @ 142,233
2022 @ 600,587 2022 @ 133,301
2021 @ 508,086 2021 ® 116,744
2020 @ 418,581 2020 @ 113,921
2019 @ 487,088 2019 @ 131,381
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO  &AF#EA A NET ASSETS $& &
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FE{LizF! (MYR'000) (F&2
(MYR’000) (F£)
(2023 ] ® 142,233 (2023 @ 847,972
2022 @ 133,301 2022 ® 736,713
2021 @ 116,744 2021 @ 636,743
2020 ® 113921 €) @535
2019 ® 131,381 €D e 8,3
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EEHRS

Dear Shareholders,

Despite the market and business challenges in 2023, the Group
has once again defied the odds in achieving a remarkable revenue
of MYR691.9 million, marking a commendable double-digit
growth of 156.2% for the year. The Group’s profit after taxation
reached MYR142.2 million, a record for Pentamaster Group. Such
accomplishment can be credited to our dynamic and forward-
thinking approach in prioritising innovation, besides positioning
strategically with a 3-pillar diversification plan that are designed to
mitigate reliance on single industry, customer or product. This agile
and pro-active approach have enabled the Group to respond to the
current geopolitical and business market landscape that is so volatile
and cyclical. In today’s rapidly changing technological landscape
mixed with the macro environment, achieving success requires more
than just responding to market challenges—it also necessitates the
continual development of innovative strategies through ongoing
research and development (“R&D”) to maintain a competitive
advantage. Against this backdrop, our core philosophy revolves
around the principle of “Innovate and Lead”.

CHUAH CHOON BIN

cecave Crialiriar
Br ik
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HMBEhE TEEBBFENHREKRMASE
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EEHRS

The trade tensions between the United States and China alongside
the diversification efforts have opened up avenues for the Group
to attract new customers and explore untapped markets with new
solutions. As a result, there was a notable increase in the Group’s
customer base. As it is, we are witnessing promising growth
prospects in the automotive and medical segments as the Group
geared onto its expansion phase as part of its “Grand Roadmap &
Key Focus 2022-2025" business plan.

Looking ahead, we are enthusiastic about sustaining our growth
momentum by leveraging across our talented workforce,
comprehensive product solutions, our track record and positioning,
coupled with our financial standing in reinforcing our core
competencies as a total automation solution house. Going forward,
the Group will actively stay ahead of the technology curve in seeking
new business segments for growth.

THE YEAR IN REVIEW

In the financial year 2023, the Group experienced growth in revenue
across its several business segments. Notably, the automotive
and medical devices segments continued to register remarkable
growth rates of 29.2% and 75.2% respectively. For the second year
consecutively, the automotive segment continued to account for the
largest portion of the Group’s revenue at 47.6% which was primarily
fueled by a structural shift in the automotive industry towards
e-mobility, with global automotive companies and related component
manufacturers showing increased interest in our comprehensive
product line, from wafer level burn-in tester for Silicon Carbide (“SiC”)
to back-end assembly and test solutions for power modules.

& ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED #E R FH ZE R IR A S
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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As for the Group’s medical devices division, it continued to
experience significant growth during the year, contributing 21.4% to
the Group’s revenue compared to 14.1% in 2022. This remarkable
leap in revenue was mainly driven by the escalating demand for
medical technology applications and growing emphasis on better
productivity, higher precision and operational efficiency. The Group’s
strategic foresight has played a crucial role in positioning itself for
sustained growth within the dynamic healthcare landscape. This
entails not only developing cutting-edge automation solutions but
also anticipating future and evolving market trends, investing in R&D,
talent development and establishing strategic partnerships and
distribution channels.

Despite the cyclical nature and competitive environment of the
semiconductor industry, the Group’s test solutions for this business
segment seemed to show stability and strong support over the past
few years. Since the onset of the pandemic in 2020, revenue from
the semiconductor segment has consistently grown at a double-
digit rate, driven mainly by the growth of integrated chips and fifth
generation higher performing, ultra speed semiconductor content.
For the financial year 2023, the semiconductor segment grew by
23.6% as compared to 2022.

MEEBRNBEXGIIMs  ENEAFE
BERCSRELERE BAEAEBEE/M21.4%8
WA > 2022 A141% - R ABBZ L ETE
HREERMERANE R TSR Uk
RELEEN FeREREENENHRE
BoAERSREENERBELAETERM
EINEBERRBESERFEEREINTE
MEZENEFR S ERFERZERENBED
fEAAE BEREEERRERFEEEDN
TZBE BRERAE AT BRBUKREL
IS SIERHRAERERRDIHES-

EBEHRRYERTENEREERREFRE
AEBZEBDHNRAFEBRALSENRBES
FYUFERBHEBEE M RBANZ R 52020
FRBIREUR FERIBHKA—ENU
MUBHNREERE TEHARERBRESE
AIEeE BeRYEREAIERNE
By o [R2023 U B FE 20 EPE20224F
1#£23.6%°
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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Overall, despite another challenging year in 2023, the Group has
not only weathered the storm but also demonstrated its robust
business sustainability and resilience. Our diversification strategy
has provided us with resilience against market fluctuations and
economic downturns that have affected certain sectors. It is
heartening to witness how the Group managed to maintain a stable
revenue stream and profitability, even when faced with challenges
in certain industries. This strategic approach has proven effective
in safeguarding our business and ensuring sustainable growth over
time.

INITIATIVES FOR FUTURE GROWTH

In the fiercely competitive and evolving realm of technology sector,
Pentamaster must move swiftly to capitalise on emerging trends in
propelling its next growth phase. With the rise of artificial intelligence
(“Al"), renewable energy (‘RE”) and demanding test specifications for
high power and high current functionality test, there exist numerous
prospects for Pentamaster to broaden its range of products in further
anchoring its market footprint.

At Pentamaster, we are fully committed to focusing our R&D that
endeavours on establishing ourselves as a global leader, maintaining
a competitive edge in both technology and cost efficiency. We take
immense pride in our achievement in developing a proprietary SiC
wafer burn-in system, placing us among the top four manufacturers
globally. This accomplishment has empowered us to carve out a
specialised market niche, contributing significantly to the expansion
of this specific sub-segment and reinforcing our standing within the
automotive business segment. Since 2023, we have been actively
advancing our capabilities in this automotive business segment
with “Known Good Die” (“KGD”) test solution. KGD testing entails
thorough testing of the entire silicon wafers during production,
ensuring that bare die or unpackaged integrated chips (“IC”) exhibit
the same level of quality and reliability as packaged devices. Again,
such breakthrough will place the Group in its leading edge among
global manufacturers for test solutions for the automotive segment.

1() ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED i FH ZE R B IR A S
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
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As part of our diversification strategy in “innovating” and “leading” in
our industry, the Group is also undertaking unorthodox approach in
tackling operation obstacles such as resource limitations, prolonged
time-to-market and restricted market reach. In addressing these
challenges, we are currently focusing on two main initiatives. Firstly,
we are proactively establishing partnerships with Al technology
providers to seamlessly integrate intelligent automation solutions into
our product solutions in creating new product line that can manifest
itself to cater for the Al test requirements. Secondly, we are working
with strategic alliances specialising in alternative energy sources for
product solutions to cater for this new RE business segments. By
closely working with these partners, our objective is to expedite the
creation of automation solutions for such new emerging technology
trend and in expediting time-to-market for the next business growth
phase.

In the current market landscape, where other factors impact sales
growth beyond just technology and cost, Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) has emerged as a crucial aspect that
appeals to our customers and shareholders. In addition to ensuring
ESG compliance across our factory operations, administration and
product offerings, we are committed to prioritising eco-friendliness
and minimising consumable waste. Leveraging the expertise of our
European team in Germany and Poland, which is closely tied to
strong ESG-compliant Europe region, we aim to incorporate and
develop more ESG-compliant product solutions in our future product
roadmap. In ensuring a sustainable business practice with strong
emphasis on ESG compliance factors, we aim to play our part as a
good corporate citizen towards a greener earth with responsibilities
towards the society where we operate in, governed by good
governance framework. With this, we aim towards a sustainable
business group of Pentamaster in many years to come.
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APPRECIATION

| want to extend my sincere thanks to our valued shareholders,
customers and business partners for their steadfast support and
trust during the demanding past year, especially as we slowly recover
from the unprecedented pandemic situation as witnessed in 2020.
I'm also grateful to my fellow board members for their invaluable
counsel and support, and to our entire staff for their exceptional
diligence and dedication.

Finally, | express gratitude to the Almighty for His unwavering
guidance and support, whether amidst prosperity or adversity.
His abundant blessings have been the cornerstone of our journey
towards triumph, as Psalm 23:4 reminds us, “Even though | walk
through the darkest valley, | will fear no evil, for you are with me; your
rod and your staff, they comfort me.”

1) ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED #E R FH ZE R B IR A S
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R R

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2023, businesses continued to face multitude of challenges
as global economic landscape continued to remain fragile and
volatile. Throughout the year, geopolitical tensions continued to
cast a pervasive shadow over international trade and relations, with
unresolved conflicts affecting a post COVID-19 recovery in global
trades. The Sino-US technology war and the Russian-Ukraine crisis
do not seem to abate, leading to an erratic supply chain and rising
material prices that have impacted business planning across multiple
industries across different regions. This confluence of economic
obstacles has hindered an overall global business and economic
growth. In the face of these challenges, the Group operated in
an environment fraught with uncertainties but at the same time,
managed to demonstrate resilience and adaptability despite the
adversities.

Facing such instability, the Group was thankful in delivering another
set of sustainable financial performance given the macro situation.
During the financial year under review, the Group managed to record
MYR691.9 million in revenue, which represented an increase of
15.2% from the preceding year’s revenue of MYR600.6 million. Since
2020 with the impact of COVID-19, the Group has continued to
recover back to its trajectory growth path and it is worth noting that
the 2023 revenue has set another record milestone for the Group.
This marked the third consecutive year of the Group in achieving
a double-digit revenue growth notwithstanding the arduous global
trade landscape. During the year, revenue growth for the Group
was driven by both the automated test equipment (“ATE”) and
factory automation solutions (“FAS”) segments, with each segment
contributing approximately 65.4% and 34.6% respectively to the
Group. The Group also reported a profit after taxation of MYR142.2
million for FY2023, a new record that surpassed the previous record
of MYR133.3 million achieved in 2022, representing an improvement
of 6.7% year-on-year. These financial matrix and performance
signified the Group’s commendable financial strength and resilience
as it remains committed with its business strategies and goal plans.

EF5[RE

2023%F > AN B NGB IRIB T AN KK
B EBFEEEESHE - FR GBS
RREBHNERFEERERRES REH
M R AR RV E R ECOVID- 19 2 IR E 5 1
BERFE PEREBRBASEHRUTIL
KRR BERHBREIGRMEER LA
FETEMERTENEGRE - RFLK
EAONEEERT 2XKBEEXBREEE
R-EHILFRE ~EBERBHAHRA
ZNIRETEE BRAFNEEZETREIR

AHZENEERNZ ~EERS EEN
HERBEZBES TBEIXRESARENME
B -NROBYMBEE AEBEMINERE
@619 B L EH  REFNWE600.68E
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE R RN

During the financial year under review, the Group continued
to experience year-on-year revenue growth across most of its
business segments. In particular, the automotive and medical
devices segments posted continuous positive momentum, with
both segments registering double-digit growth rate. Such results
signified the strategic focus by the Group in these two sectors over
the past few years, with the aim to broaden its market exposure and
capitalise on high-growth opportunities. Similarly, the semiconductor
industry within the Group also demonstrated double-digit revenue
growth, albeit the overall headwinds faced by the technology sector
in 2023. On the other hand. the Group’s electro-optical segment and
consumer and industrial products segment contracted 44.4% and

24.4% respectively in 2023 as compared to the previous year.

During the year and consecutively for two years, the Group’s
automotive segment remained robust with its highest contribution
This
represented a double-digit revenue growth rate of 29.2% as

to the Group’s overall revenue, at approximately 47.6%.

compared to 2022. Structurally, the demand for carbon emission
free vehicles is rapidly gaining the attention of global economies with
multiple government incentives, subsidies and tax benefits driving
the overall sales growth for e-mobility. It has been forecasted that the
global electric mobility market size is projected to grow to US$1,507
billion in 2028, representing a Compound Annual Growth Rate
(“CAGR”) of 27.0% in the 2021-2028 period. This subsequently drive
the demand and capital expenditure for the device and equipment
markets supporting the overall electric vehicles (“EVs”) market, with
forecast for such capital expenditure estimated at 27.0% CAGR
till 2030. With the Group’s comprehensive end-to-end suite of
automotive test solutions, such market dynamics has propelled this
segment’s revenue contribution to the Group. During the financial
year under review, demand for the Group’s automotive test solutions
from China stood at 33.7%, followed by the United States (24.2%),
Vietnam (21.0%), Malaysia (9.9%), Europe (4.4%) and Japan (3.1%).
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For the Group’s medical devices segment, it continued to show great
potential during the year. Contribution from this business segment
increased impressively from 14.1% in 2022 to 21.4% of the overall
Group’s revenue, reflecting a remarkable year-on-year growth of
75.2%. Such significant jump was predominantly contributed by the
demand for medical technology (‘MedTech”) application for better
productivity and efficiency, leveraging on the Group’s proprietary
intelligent Automated Robotic Manufacturing System (“i-ARMS”)
in medical manufacturing automation. With the global medical
automation market estimated to grow at a CAGR of 7.8% for the
2023-2033 period, this business segment has tremendous market
opportunities for the Group to further position itself for a potentially
multibillion-dollar market size.

Besides medical manufacturing automation, the Group is heartened
to witness a significant milestone in its single-use medical devices
during the year. Having secured both the 1ISO13485 certification
and the medical device registration certificate from the Malaysian
Medical Device Authority (“MDA”) for its intravenous catheter (“IVC”),
the Group, through its subsidiary company, Pentamaster MediQ
has formally submitted its IVC application to the Notified Body for
CE Mark registration where the product review has commenced
in September 2023. Pentamaster MediQ aims to achieve CE mark
registration by the end of 2024 as such certification will serve as
an important platform for the Group to penetrate its IVC into the
European and Middle East regions. Meanwhile, with the MDA in
place, Pentamaster MediQ is currently validating the manufacturing
process of its IVC for product distribution in Malaysia with the
subsequent plan to expand its product coverage into the broader
ASEAN market.

MEEBRBELGLNME  ERNEAEER
BEREBERNEBN ZEHDIBHIEREH2022
FR141%RBENERNERZB K EH
21.4% FELEEEEIER75.2%  ZE KRB E
ZHNREAEETBEREESEHCETN
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FEREERM (BB MReEEENK
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R2023F E2033F MAE #7.8 %8 & F 18
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In the semiconductor segment, the Group has continued to
witness sustainable growth trend post COVID-19 with a year-
on-year increase of 23.6% as compared to the previous year.
Revenue contribution from this segment rose slightly to 15.0% of
the Group’s total revenue from 14.0% achieved in the preceding
year. While the Group anticipated a “normalisation” for this segment
post the pandemic, the surge in digital technology advancements,
especially Artificial Intelligence (“Al”) had fundamentally reshaped
the landscape of the test handling market, driving an uptick in
demand for test handling equipment. Excluding the memory for
consumer electronics, global semiconductor chip for automotive and
industrials such as data centers are still facing supply constraints.
This has effectively allowed the Group to continue to maintain its
growth in this segment, and to further capitalise any opportunities
in the fifth generation higher performing, ultra speed semiconductor
requirements.

Meanwhile, the Group’s electro-optical segment contributed
approximately 9.5% towards the Group’s total revenue during
the year, marking a significant decline from 19.5% recorded in
the previous year. Amidst a sluggish global economic recovery
and a climate of high interest rates and inflation, the demand for
consumer electronics and smartphone remained subdued. In 2023,
smartphone shipments totalled 1.14 billion, a 4.0% decline vis-a-vis
2022 according to Canalys. The overall industry headwinds faced
by this segment led to a subdued demand for the Group’s smart
device test solutions during the year. Looking ahead, the Group does
not foresee a robust recovery from this segment to occur anytime
soon given the current absence of significant technology upgrades
in smartphone technology. While Al smartphone will be inescapable
coming into year 2024, the mass adoption and ownership are still
at its infancy stage and with the Group’s holistic test solution and
its experience, the Group will be well positioned to capture any
significant structural growth for this business segment going forward.
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The Group’s consumer and industrial products segment also
witnessed a decline in share of wallet contribution to the Group’s
revenue, declining from 10.0% in 2022 to 6.5% for the year. The
overall sentiment of this segment remained fairly muted with a
prevailing sense of caution among manufacturing companies and
contract manufacturers, with prudent capital expenditure (‘capex”)
or deferment of it. However, the Group remains engaged with its
existing customers within this segment to ensure the needs and
requirements of the customers are met for the next capex cycle
uptick upon condition improvement.

Overall, the Group has demonstrated its business sustainability
against the backdrop of yet another tumultuous year in 2023.
The significance of the Group’s financial achievements throughout
the year extended beyond a simple rebound as it reflected the
Group’s focus on its business fundamentals, effective resource
allocation, cost optimisation and strategic planning that revolved
around diversification across products, segments and geographical
footprint. It is heartening to see how the Group experienced a
remarkable CAGR exceeding 20.0% for both its top-line and bottom-
line performance over the past five years owing to the Group’s
fundamentals in place and its strategic business initiatives that have
been put in action.
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The following table sets out revenue breakdown by customers’
segment for both the ATE and FAS segments:

T REIIATERFASH 12 E F D488 5 B
= BRAN :

By industry FiT#
For the year ended 31 December HE12B31HLLEE
2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 % MYR’000 %
o5 % o %
Automotive RE 329,392 47.6 254,856 42.4
Medical devices =l 148,197 21.4 84,581 14.1
Semiconductor FiEge 103,794 15.0 84,001 14.0
Electro-Optical B 65,315 9.5 117,409 19.5
Consumer and industrial HERETEER
products 45,152 6.5 59,740 10.0
691,850 100.0 600,587 100.0

During the year, majority of the Group’s revenue was contributed by
the top five shipment destinations from Malaysia, China (inclusive of
Hong Kong), Vietham, Taiwan and United States. These key markets
collectively accounted for approximately 91.3% of the Group’s
revenue in 2023 as opposed to the 90.0% contribution from the top
five markets in 2022.
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By shipment BEE
For the year ended 31 December HE12B31ALLEE
2023 2022
20235 20224

MYR’000 % MYR’000 %
L& % 25 %
Malaysia Bk 285,780 41.3 180,089 30.0
China H 232,707 33.6 271,431 45.2
Vietnam ) 70,920 10.3 40,284 6.7
Taiwan =] 26,868 3.9 24,259 4.0
United States E[H 15,331 2.2 12,018 2.0
Singapore 0 15,125 2.2 24,716 4.1
Japan SN 13,136 1.9 19,928 3.3
Morocco EE& S 8,614 1.2 = =
Thailand = 7,641 1.1 6,303 1.1
Philippines JEREE 5,475 0.8 4,808 0.8
Others Hih 10,253 1.5 16,661 2.8
691,850 100.0 600,587 100.0
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Driven by the continuous improved contributions from both its ATE
and FAS business segments, 2023 marked another milestone as
the Group achieved its third consecutive yearly revenue record.
Surpassing the previous benchmark of MYR600.6 million in 2022,
revenue during the year continued to surge to MYR691.9 million,
representing a double-digit growth of 15.2%. Notably, there was a
shift towards a more balanced revenue distribution between the ATE
and FAS business segments, with each contributing approximately
65.4% and 34.6% to the total Group’s revenue respectively in 2023.
This was compared against the 2022 contributions, where the ATE
and FAS business segments accounted for 70.1% and 29.9% of the
Group’s revenue, reflecting the positive outcome of the Group’s effort
in segmental diversification.

RAF5 ol RE
W zs

RATERFASEB D E @ NS W BRI PTHE
B 2023 F B EAEBEREEEE =F W

AN —ERRE  FEAWEBIBE2022
FRBFKECCOCEBLT #HEMAE
6O1.9HES T NB15. 2% EUEIEE-
BB EENR  ATERFASEE DB 2 BRI
mAMBEEAEEHE 2023FEE 9D
A1) oA A 5 [ 40 U 2 4965.4% 82 34.6% © T Y
2022F B R ) ATERFASE RS 9 E 5 Bl b 24
EBEIRFE70.1%%29.9% R T REBESD
B E S EIVES HES IR R

The below outlined the revenue of the respective operating TRIFMABBEENIMN T > B EEE
segments, which includes elements of the inter-segment transactions IR ZREIZRZ Z 25 ©
during the year.
Revenue
g
2023 2022 Fluctuation
20235 20226 BE)
MYR’000 MYR’000 %
F<EH *aE %
ATE ATE
External customers INERR 452,254 420,716 7.5%
Inter-segment revenue DI B U R 538 2,963
Total revenue 48N 452,792 423,679
FAS FAS
External customers ShEfRE B 239,596 179,871 33.2%
Inter-segment revenue DEEW R 15,943 2,807
Total revenue 48N T 255,539 182,678
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ATE segment

With a contribution rate of 65.4%, the ATE segment remained the
primary revenue driver for the Group. Despite encountering a revenue
decline in 2020, the ATE segment rebounded in 2021 and continued
to demonstrate consistent year-on-year growth subsequently. During
the year, revenue in the ATE segment increased by 7.5% from
MYR420.7 million in 2022 to MYR452.3 million in 2023. Of particular
significance is the automotive segment with its contribution share
of wallet of 71.7% within the ATE revenue segment, representing a
year-on-year growth of 31.9% versus last year. The Group’s decision
to diversify and establish a presence in the automotive segment
5 years ago has proven fruitful with the revenue trajectory of this
segment exhibiting a consistent upward trend. With 2023 surpassing
the MYR300.0 million milestone, the revenue momentum from the
automotive segment has grown by more than sevenfold since the
Company’s listing.

This year saw the Group’s wafer level burn-in tester for SiC and its
back-end assembly and test solutions for the hybrid pack power
modules continued to drive growth in the automotive segment.
Throughout the year, the Group witnessed significant expansion
in its customer base and experienced increasing momentum in
engagements with prospective new customers. Moreover, the
demand landscape for the Group’s product become increasingly
favourable as automotive component customers are seen extending
their portfolio both upstream and downstream, from front-end
process to module level and vice versa. At present, the Group’s
focus is to continuously improve its product capabilities by making
enhancements to its proprietary burn-in test handler for wafer-level
and module-level power device with the aim to extend its competitive
advantage and capture growing market opportunities within the
automotive segment.

ATES 5B

ATED ZBEEAE A65.4%  NAAKRERE
BN IR B E2020F N m BB TH B
ATED ZHR2021F k38 BER BB RIFRE
BRI R o P ATED B U B 20224

R9420. 7@% S EIEE7.5%F2023FEH452.3
BEELTE - AENBLEEE » HRATEW
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Despite the semiconductor industry’s inherent cyclicality and
competitive landscape, the Group’s ATE test solutions seem to be
well anchored and supported over the past few years. Since the
onset of the pandemic in 2020, revenue from the semiconductor
segment has consistently surged at a double-digit rate, primarily
fueled by the growth of integrated chips and fifth generation higher
performing, ultra speed semiconductor content. With its 21.7%
contribution within the ATE segment during the year, revenue from
the semiconductor segment grew by 17.4% as compared to 2022.
With Al and the advancement of integrated chips capabilities, and
the ever-demanding performance reliability and broadening scope of
applications, the Group’s semiconductor test handling equipment is
expected to remain stable.

On the contrary, revenue generated from the electro-optical segment
within the ATE segment experienced a decline to 6.4% in 2023,
down from 19.0% in 2022, representing a significant downturn of
63.9%.
and saturation in the global smartphone market stemming from the

This deceleration was attributed to the notable slowdown

reduced consumer spending habits to invest in new smartphones
given the lack of significant advancements in smartphone technology.
While Al smartphone is anticipated to change the industry landscape,
it is still in its infancy stage and the Group anticipates subdued
performance in the short term from this segment. Nevertheless,
the Group remains proactive in its efforts to innovate and
develop new prototypes tailored to meet the evolving demands
of emerging technologies, particularly those centered around the
new magnetometer sensor, optical sensor and pressure sensor
technologies.
In general, the ATE industry continues to present promising
prospects for the Group, primarily driven by the ongoing
technological advancements and the ubiquitous need for more
customised and sophisticated test handling and solutions.
Furthermore, the Group’s comprehensive test solutions in the
automotive segment coupled with its established product solution
capabilities for the semiconductor segment shall provide a solid
foundation for its ATE business, serving as a catalyst for further
expansion and growth. Recognising the high-growth potential
within the ATE segment, particularly in areas like power electronics
semiconductor testing for EVs, the Group is committed to deepening
its presence in this particular field.
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FAS segment

Following a double-digit revenue growth in year 2022, the strong
revenue momentum continued in 2023 with the FAS segment
recording MYR239.6 million in 2023 from MYR179.9 million in 2022,
a commendable growth rate of 33.2% year-on-year.

During the year, the FAS segment growth was largely propelled
by the substantial contributions from the medical devices industry.
With its dominance at 61.9% within the FAS segment in 2023 as
compared to 41.5% in 2022, the surge from the medical devices
industry reflected a striking year-on-year growth of 98.7%. In
recent years, the Group has been observing a considerable uptick
in demand for its fully automated i-ARMS across various sectors,
particularly in the medical industry. Given the pervasive adoption
of manufacturing automation within the medical sector, medical
manufacturing companies are increasingly focused on optimising
their production and assembly processes to enhance throughput
and productivity while maintaining consistent quality standards.
This growing reliance on automation to drive operational excellence
and competitiveness within the medical industry further solidifies
the Group’s position in providing its i-ARMS for this segment. As
it is, the Group has been expanding its customer base within this
segment and is actively seeking new opportunities for bigger market
share. Besides the medical devices segment, demand for the
Group’s i-ARMS solutions from the consumer and industrial products
segment and electro-optical segment contributed 18.4% and 15.2%
respectively to the FAS business segment during the year.

The Group is encouraged by the upward trajectory of the FAS
segment from the positive outcome of its strategic efforts in
segmental diversification. Capitalising on the prevailing automation
trend, the Group is strategically positioning its FAS segment to
seize more opportunities, particularly amidst the rising demand for
precision automation in the production of cutting-edge medical
devices. With this targeted approach, the FAS segment is poised
for sustained expansion and is expected to make a substantial
contribution to the Group’s performance in the coming years.

FASS 2B
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Gross margin

The Group is heartened to witness a relatively stable and consistent
gross margin across all four quarters in 2023, ultimately concluding
the year with an overall gross margin of 30.3% as compared to
30.9% in 2022. This marked the 6th consecutive year of the Group
sustaining its gross margin above 30.0% since the listing of the
Company. This is worth commenting given the various challenges
the global economies have faced in the last few years, starting with
COVID-19, supply chain disruption, inflationary pressures on material
prices and labour costs together with all other factors that were
beyond the Group’s control. For 2023, the Group recorded a gross
profit of MYR209.6 million, representing a double-digit increase of
13.0% from the previous year.

Other income

The Group’s other income mainly comprised of the movement arising
from foreign exchange, interest income and miscellaneous income.
During the year, the amount was mainly contributed by the bank
interest income of MYR10.0 million and miscellaneous income of
MYRO0.9 million as compared to MYR5.2 million and MYR1.3 million
recorded respectively in 2022. Additionally, there was a gain of
MYR6.9 million from changes in fair value of foreign currency forward
contracts (“derivative gain”) during the year which was offset by a
loss on foreign exchange of MYR18.6 million recorded under the
Group’s administrative expenses, resulting effectively in a net foreign
exchange loss of approximately MYR11.7 million during the year.

In comparison to 2022, there were no elements of foreign exchange
captured under other income but there was a one-off waiver of other
payable totaling MYR4.8 million recorded under this category.
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Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group mainly comprised of
the movement arising from foreign exchange, research and
development cost, professional fees, administrative staff cost and
certain maintenance cost. During the year, administrative expenses
increased by MYR21.1 million from MYR55.1 million in 2022 to
MYR76.2 million. This was mainly due to the following factors:

(i) loss on foreign exchange of MYR18.6 million during the year
as compared to the total foreign exchange loss of MYR8.4
million in 2022 which arose from the loss from changes in fair
value of foreign currency forward contracts (“derivative loss”)
and loss on foreign exchange. These fluctuations, driven mainly
by the movements in the Group’s foreign exchange positions,
were typically accounted for within the administrative expenses
and other income categories as discussed above to ascertain
its overall effects. Throughout the year, the Group engaged in
several forward contracts, primarily in response to customer
orders denominated in U.S. dollars. The aim was to hedge
against potential adverse foreign exchange movements that
could adversely impact the Group’s financials. However, the
continuous appreciation of the U.S. dollar against MYR resulted
in derivative losses from these forward contracts entered into
by the Group;

(i) higher administrative staff cost of MYR32.0 million during the
year (2022: MYR28.4 million) due to salary increment as well as
increase in staff incentive and employee benefit expenses;

(i) incurrence of the research and development cost of the single-
use medical devices amounting to MYR10.6 million during the
year (2022: MYR5.5 million); and

(iv) higher upkeep of office equipment and maintenance cost
in computer by MYR1.4 million with the increase in staff
headcount.
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Profit for the year

The Group concluded the year with a net profit of MYR142.2 million
in 2023, representing an increase of 6.7% as opposed to a net profit
of MYR133.3 million achieved in 2022. Accordingly, the Group’s
EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation)
for 2023 stood at MYR158.7 million as compared to MYR143.4
million recorded in 2022, representing an increase of 10.7%. Basic
earnings per share rose from 5.59 sen in 2022 to 5.97 sen in 2023.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

During the year, the Group experienced a remarkable surge in its
net cash from operations with a record high of MYR216.8 million,
marking a significant increase from MYR59.9 million generated in the
previous year. With that, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents as
of 31 December 2023 increased at a double-digit level by 20.4% to
MYR395.8 million (2022: MYR328.6 million). The Group has no bank
borrowings as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group sustained a healthy working
capital of MYR502.9 million, slightly decreased from MYR510.3
million recorded in the same period of 2022. Given its current
financial standing, the Group remains committed to vigilantly monitor
and manage its day-to-day business operations. As it is, the
construction of the Group’s campus 3 is internally funded.
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Foreign exchange exposure

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of its
normal trading activities whereby sales and to a certain degree,
purchases are principally transacted in U.S. Dollar. The Group also
holds other financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies. These are not the functional and reporting currencies of
the Group to which the transactions relate.

As part of the Group’s treasury policy to manage its foreign exchange
exposure, the Group entered into foreign exchange forward contracts
apart from maintaining U.S. Dollar denominated bank accounts to
minimise the effects of adverse exchange rate fluctuations on its
financials.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

Pledge of asset

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had no pledge of asset.
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Employees and remuneration

The Company recognises its employees as one of the Group’s
most important assets. The Company strongly believes in hiring
the right talent, nurturing and retaining these talented employees
with competitive remuneration packages. Besides, the Group
is committed to organising regular external and internal training
programs to upgrade the employees’ skill set, knowledge and job
experience.

As at 31 December 2023, the total number of full time employees of
the Group increased to 920 (31 December 2022: 782).

Significant investments held, material acquisitions
and disposal of subsidiaries, and future plans for
material investments or capital asset

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
has further allocated a budget of up to RM300.0 million for the
construction of new manufacturing plants on a piece of newly
acquired land. This funding will be sourced from internally generated
funds.

Save for those disclosed in this report, there were no other significant
investments held with a value of 5% or above of the Group’s
total assets, nor were there material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries during the year. Apart those disclosed in this report,
there was no plan authorised by the Board for other material
investments or additions of capital assets at the date of this report.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING EHBFRFRRIER R

The shares of the Company were successfully listed on the Main AT A EF2018FE1B19H K IHE S H
Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock W& XAFRAERAT (THRPTI) Tk £
Exchange”) on 19 January 2018 at the offer price of HK$1.00 ZEEASK1.0087T (T EH)) - EHARE
per share (“Listing”). The proceeds (net of listing expenses) from  FI&E Ok EHRYX) /9417138 8B T (18
ENMN2.6BEESH) - BREALEBEHAA
2017F12H29BMBRER (BRER])
TR EIRPTERIBERER —BMEHENA
/IRIEP RN R AR AR B 1201851
B19B Emz B (T LT/ HEA) £EE2023F
128318 1k NEBPT AT RIE W

the Listing were approximately HK$171.3 million (equivalent to
approximately MYR92.6 million). In accordance with the proposed
use of net proceeds as set out in the section headed “Future plans
and use of proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 29
December 2017 (the “Prospectus”), the net proceeds utilised by the
Group from the date of the Company’s listing on 19 January 2018

(the “Listing Date”) up to 31 December 2023 are as follows: 56
Use of
proceeds
from the Unutilised Unutilised Unutilised
Listing Date amount amount proportion
up to as at as at as at
Amount of net proceeds 31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December
earmarked 2023 2023 2023 2023
BLHAH
BEZE20235F 420235 420235 #20235
12A3181E 18188 1283188 12A3188
BEFMEREIENEE FSNERR XDAXE KBEEE  KBBALH
HK$ million MYR million MYR million MYR million MYR million %
Use of net proceeds FIfRRIEREAR BEET EEEE BEYE EEEE EEEE %
Capital investment and costs in BEMEERERIER
relation to the new production RELERENEA
plant and the expansion of BERMAE
the existing production plant 84.8 45.8 45.8 S = =
Business expansion BEBRREEATENER
into the Greater China region 38.1 20.6 20.6 - - -
Establishment of an office in REEMFEREM 28.2 15.3 14.8 3.8 05 3.3 Mow
California, U.S. BU-FEWAE i
Marketing, branding and Mg  REEERE
promotional activities EZE 3.1 17 17 = = =
Working capital EEET 17.1 9.2 9.2 - - -
Total ‘Az 1713 92.6 92.1 3.8 0.5 0.5
Note: The remaining unutilised amount will be utilised by 18 January 2025. 5T FlER AR BB AIER 12202551 H18HAIEIA ©
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The Directors are not aware of any material change to the proposed
use of proceeds as at the date of this report. The unutilised
net proceeds will be applied in the manner consistent with that
mentioned in the Prospectus. The intended timeframe was based
on the best estimation and assumption of future market conditions
and industry development made by the Group as at the date of this
report.

OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL RISKS
Operational risks
Dependence on key management and experienced personnel

The Group acknowledges the inherent risks associated with its
business nature, particularly the dependence on key management
and experienced personnel. The Chairman’s strategic vision,
along with the contributions of the executive Directors and senior
management team, who play significant roles in the Group’s day-
to-day operations, has been instrumental in driving the Group’s
success and growth. While the Group endeavours to provide a
competitive remuneration package and strives to ensure a fair
monetary reward for its staff, the dynamic and competitive industry
landscape necessitates a continuous monitoring of industry trends
and competitive remuneration benchmarking to be performed to
ensure the Group remains attractive to top talent.

In line with the Group’s long-term strategy to nurture and retain its
key management and employees, the Company’s immediate holding
company, Pentamaster Corporation Berhad (“PCB”) introduced
the share award scheme during the Company’s Listing with the
aim to recognise the valuable contributions of the key personnel
and employees as well as to incentivise and retain them to support
ongoing operations, growth and future development of the Group.
Subsequently on 1 April 2020 (the “Adoption Date”), the Company
adopted a share award scheme which is valid and effective for a
term of ten years commencing on the Adoption Date to serve as
part of the Group’s ongoing employee retention program in retaining
its existing employees and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.
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Additionally, the Group actively fosters the development of younger
members of its management staff and other employees by
encouraging their participation in the management of the Group and
ensuring a sustainable talent pool. Besides, performance evaluation
and employees’ feedback mechanism are also regularly conducted
by the Group’s human resources department to enhance employee
engagement and retention. Overall, the Group’s operational strategy
places significant emphasis on teamwork and mitigates over-reliance
on any single individual or employee. Backup personnel are identified
for all important projects, reflecting the Group’s commitment to
effective risk management and organisational stability.

Risk relating to technological obsolescence

The Group recognises technological obsolescence as an inherent
risk, given the rapid pace of technological development and
evolving customer demands. The emergence of new and substitute
technologies can potentially render its products and solutions
obsolete.

In response, the Group is committed to mitigate these risks by
actively and continuously pursuing technological innovation and
advancement, industry best practices and strategic business
alliances to address the increasingly sophisticated needs of its
customers and industry trend. Concurrently, the Group also provides
continuous staff development to align skills and knowledge with
the latest technology requirements in the testing, automation and
semiconductor space.

Continuous efforts are constantly directed towards optimising the
efficiency and productivity of the R&D function. The Group allocates
a certain R&D budget and dedicated resources for new product
development and implements strategic initiatives to streamline its
R&D processes. This is to ensure the Group’s ability to stay at the
forefront of technological advancements and progress. Additionally,
the Group is dedicated to cultivating and sustaining an effective
and dynamic management team to drive ongoing improvements
in performance and strategic decision-making capabilities which is
crucial for navigating the rapidly evolving technological landscape
and sustaining the Group’s progress.
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Also, the Group’s regular and active participation in overseas
exhibitions serves as a valuable platform for gaining insights into
market requirements and keeps the Group staying abreast of the
latest market requirements and current technological changes.
Through these efforts, the Group ensures its product development
aligns with market trends and customer preferences, delivering
solutions that meet evolving customer needs.

Competition risk

Given the highly volatile and competitive nature of the markets
and industries in which the Group operates in, the Group faces
intense competition from both international and local competitors
across various business scales. Key areas of competition include
technology, product quality, pricing, proximity to customers, services
and the range of products and solutions offered. The Group’s
customer base comprises multinational companies in Malaysia and
overseas where the selection of equipment for their manufacturing
processes is based on stringent criteria such as high-quality test
and automation equipment, excellent after-sales service, competitive
pricing, and product reliability.

To maintain a competitive edge, the Group prioritises several
strategic initiatives which include its R&D efforts and value innovation
to venture into high-end technology for smart devices testing and
production manufacturing via its i-ARMS. This strategic move has
enabled the Group to achieve its product differentiation in this
marketplace. Besides, by strategically diversifying across industries
and expanding its product offerings and solutions, the Group
aims to mitigate its risks associated with market competition and
fluctuations.

The establishment of an in-house software development team has
also provided a significant competitive advantage. This capability
enables the Group to offer bespoke solutions, respond promptly to
market demands and maintain a high level of flexibility and agility
in product development. Stringent quality checks are integrated
throughout the production processes to ensure that the products
consistently meet the specifications and requirements of the
customers. This commitment to quality by the Group is integral to
sustaining customer satisfaction and loyalty.
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Excellent after-sales service to customers has always been the
priority of the Group. Given that the Group’s products are customised
automation solutions, reliable after-sales service is important to
ensure smooth running of customers’ operations and maintaining
customer trust and loyalty.

Intellectual property

Safeguarding the rights to the Group’s technology, proprietary
knowledge and manufacturing processes is paramount to ensuring
the Group’s continuous success and ongoing business development
and operation in the highly competitive business landscape. Any
unauthorised copying, use or imitation of technology poses a
significant risk and potential impacts on the competitive advantage,
sales performance and overall reputation of the Group.

To mitigate the risk, the Group has submitted several trademark
registration applications to secure legal protection for its intellectual
property assets and affirmed the relevant statutory declarations
in respect of the copyrights of certain software products. All the
employees are required to sign a non-disclosure agreement (“NDA”)
to protect the Group’s interest and safeguard the Group’s proprietary
information, trade secrets and confidential data. These NDAs are
critical to safeguard against unauthorised disclosure, theft or misuse
of sensitive information.

Additionally, the Group provides ongoing training and awareness
programs to educate its employees about the importance of
intellectual property protection, compliance with NDAs and
recognising and reporting potential infringement risks. The Group
continuously reviews and enhances its intellectual property
protection strategies and procedures to adapt to changing business
environments, emerging technologies and evolving threats.

Financial risks

The Group’s financial risks are set out in Note 38 under the notes to
the consolidated financial statements.
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PROSPECTS

“Every storm runs out of rain, every dark night turns into day”

The embodiment of resilience, adaptability and perseverance was
once again demonstrated as the Group adeptly navigated the
cyclical nature of business environment, challenges and adversity
in 2023. Throughout the year, the persistent global macroeconomic
challenges have proven tenacious, with the confluence of mounting
interest rates, inflationary pressure and the escalating geopolitical
tensions taking center stage in shaping the global economic
landscape, rendering the business environment both volatile
and challenging. In addition to these challenges, trade policies
uncertainties, trade protectionism and tariff disputes between major
economies have further complicated the international business
environment for companies operating on a global scale. Amidst
these macroeconomic concerns, the rapid pace of technological
advancements and digital transformation have presented a silver
lining. Against this backdrop, the Group proactively adopted a
dynamic and forward-thinking approach in prioritising innovation,
fostering agility in response to the unrelenting pace of geopolitical
complication landscape in a technological developments world, and
positioning itself strategically to remain competitive and relevant.
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As the Group approaches the year 2024, there is an expectation
that the delicate nature of these macroeconomic factors will persist,
indicating a sustained vulnerability and fragility in the economic
landscape. However, as challenging as it can be and barring any
unforeseen circumstances, the Group endeavours to achieve yet
another year of continuous business growth with a steadfast focus
on high growth segments. Notably, the medical devices segment
currently commands the largest share of the Group’s current order
book and this segment will continue its strong growth momentum in
2024, primarily propelled by the widespread adoption of automation
in medical manufacturing. Having consistently led the Group’s
revenue for two consecutive years, the Group’s order book remains
fortified by contributions from the automotive segment. This is
anchored by the Group’s comprehensive range of product solutions
within this segment. With the Group holding a robust presence in
regions like Europe and the United States, other emerging growth
countries like Taiwan and Japan are seen to be the next promising
areas poised for growth, particularly in the context of automotive
electrification. The Group anticipates that such developments in
these markets will yield positive outcome and further contribute
to the Group’s revenue in its automotive segment. While the
Group experiences favourable momentum in both its medical and
automotive segments, contributions from its other industry segments
remain comparatively modest.

In recent years, the Group has been strategically directing
investments towards various facets of MedTech, encompassing
automation as well as the design and manufacturing of single-use
medical devices. A notable trend in the current market environment
is the prominence of MedTech and life sciences where the pervasive
influence of technology within the medical industry has instigated
a remarkable surge in technological innovation with automation
at the forefront of this revolution. The adoption of automation in
MedTech is now prevalent, given the intricate nature of the medical
device manufacturing process. The inherent need for precision and
accuracy in the production of medical devices makes automation
a cornerstone for achieving heightened process efficiency and
consistency. In tandem with this pronounced trend in the medical
industry, the Group is strategically positioned to capitalise on these
opportunities through its FAS segment and Pentamaster MediQ
by elevating its presence and operational footprint in the medical
industry with the aim to propel the growth trajectory of its medical
industry to new heights.
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The Group’s efforts in geographical diversification has proven
beneficial against the backdrop of prevailing geopolitical landscape
marked by a discernible trend towards deglobalisation and
localisation. This current shift involves establishment of new
manufacturing facilities and expansion of new ones with the aim to
foster greater self-reliance in semiconductor and electronics supply
chain. With the Group’s recent establishment of its global footprint
in Germany in March 2023, the Group is positioned to enhance its
presence in Europe to further build its automotive and MedTech
segments in this region. The Group’s office in Germany currently
serves as a hub for research and development activities besides
providing technical sales support for better customer engagement.
Given Germany’s prominent status as a hub for the automotive
industry, the Group’s expansion is strategically positioned to broaden
its customer base for power module semiconductors. Additionally,
the Group’s Europe presence will also serves its venture into the
MedTech field, with specific focus on countries such as the United
Kingdom, Poland and Ireland. Currently, contribution from Europe
accounts for less than 10% of the total Group’s revenue which
indicates a substantial growth potential within the region.

Recognising the integral role of sustainability in today’s contemporary
business practices and in alignment with the Group’s dedication
in fostering a sustainable environment, the Group will continue
to intensify its efforts in advancing its ESG initiatives through the
development and implementation of a set of comprehensive action
plans. These action plans encompass a diverse range of material
areas covering, among others, emissions, climate change, health
and safety, employment and labour practices, diversity, supply
chain management and overall governance as well as compliance
matters. Within this framework, the Group is set to expand its ESG
working group, a dedicated team tasked with planning, executing
and overseeing all sustainability-related strategies, goals and policies.
In essence, the Group aims to mold a sustainable future where
responsible business practices are to seamlessly integrate into its
day-to-day business operations. Such effort signifies the Group’s
commitment to not only meeting regulatory requirements but also
proactively contributing to a more sustainable and resilient global
business environment.

36 ©® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED #E f#FH ZE R B IR A S

FESEF RENMBGBAREARREES
EREREMICBIENTRT  AEEK M
BZAETENSAREaN ERE—8
BEERUNMHNRERMREZTHRER
M EEREFERAEFERHBRBY
WBENEE AR FTEBRITI2023F381E
R BEERER A B MR E BN
MEH UE—THEZMERIHSRERE
BERMOM-AEBERHANMEEENS
MEEE T O FAREMHRMEEE U
BEFMEARZRSE - BREBEERNET
ERMAHREUAL AEEREERERAR
NWERLERBIMOZRBE UL xEEE
BN EB TR A HEETLHEZRE KE
M= 7 B 5 B 5K B B R B il SR 3R AR S o
BAT REBMNBEMEEER @ E
10% > HRPZMEREBEERNIERES] -

BHIAIFELEREESHEEBRDURE
SRR N A F IR T E A A UERAY
R ~EEREEBREFERER —RT
2ETHFE MANEREHESGRIE-
ZETHABAESBEANALY HPEE
- mE21C -REEYE REHEZTE
B RN HEEEERBRELAEURS
MEE -NZERA ZEERKIRAHEESG
TR ZIFER—BEERE NITK
EEFBHENFEERERNER  BRK
BRNWEHEXR - - E LB AERBSTE
TE—EIFEBIARR RESENEHEE
BEERMAHAEXEFTEER -ZFENE
B AEENMERIRNmEREEER TR
BRABARAFEREAEENENERIRIR
EHHERA



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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To conclude, the Group maintains a keen awareness of the prevailing
economic fragility and is committed to addressing it with a proactive
and strategic approach which center on high growth industries. 2024
is another year where the Group remains cautiously optimistic with
its focus on seizing opportunities to broaden its revenue streams.
In addition to allocating resources to areas with significant potential,
the Group will continue to place a strong emphasis on continuous
innovation and improvement in its design and operational processes
for its products and solutions. With the Group advancing through
the second half of its 4-year plan in its “Grand Roadmap & Key
Focus 2022-2025", it is imperative for the Group to expedite the
construction of its campus 3. To this end, phase one and phase two
featuring the construction of two manufacturing plants, spanning
approximately 720,000 sq.ft. are in progress concurrently with a
targeted full completion set for the first quarter of 2025. Anticipating
the completion of the third plant, the Group aims to mark a
significant milestone.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chuah Choon Bin (“Mr. Chuah”), aged 63, was appointed
as our Director on 12 June 2017 and was re-designated as
our Executive Director on 5 September 2017. Mr. Chuah was
subsequently re-designated as the Chairman on 19 December 2017.
He was the non-executive director of PCB but was subsequently re-
designated as the Executive Chairman of PCB on 1 March 2022.
PCB is currently listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia and
is the controlling shareholder of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholder”). He also holds directorship in all the subsidiaries of the
Group.

Prior to setting up the Group, he served as an automation engineer
for National Semiconductor and Intel Technology Malaysia. With
his vast experience in the design and manufacturing of automation
equipment and vision inspection system, he has developed the
Group to its present level of success, from a simple automation
house to a high technology group specialising in providing factory
automation equipment and systems and information communication
technology solutions to industrial and commercial customers.
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Under his leadership, the Company achieved the following

recognitions:

U

(i

)

(v)

inclusion into the constituents of the FTSE4Good Bursa
Malaysia (“FAGBM”) Index since 2021 where such F4GBM
Index measures the performance of public listed companies
demonstrating strong ESG practices;

ranked in the top 200 in the Forbes 2020, 2019, 2018 & 2017
Best Under a Billion list of companies that are publicly listed in
the Asia Pacific region;

awarded The Edge Billion Ringgit Club, under the category
of the Highest Returns to Shareholders Over Three Years for
technology sector in 2020 and 2019 and the Highest Growth in
Profit After Tax Over Three Years for technology sector in 2019;

awarded the Focus Malaysia Best Under Billion Awards 2018
for the Best Revenue Growth, Best Enterprise Value Growth
and Overall Winner category, and Focus Malaysia Best Under
Billion Awards 2017 for the Best Return on Assets category;

recipient of the Enterprise 50 Award 2002 organised by
Accenture and SMIDEC and Quality Management Excellence
Award 2003 for the category of local company with annual
sales turnover exceeding MYR25 million to MYR200 million at
the Industry Excellence Award 2003 organised by Ministry of
International Trade and Industry; and

awarded the Best Employer Award 2023 by Employee
Provident Fund (EPF), Malaysia.
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For his personal recognition, he won the First Malaysian Ernst &
Young Emerging Entrepreneur of the Year Award Malaysia 2002.

Currently, he is the board member of Penang Charis Hospice Home
and Penang Automation Cluster Sdn. Bhd.. Mr. Chuah also sits as
the chairman of SJK Kwang Hwa school and he is also appointed
to the school board as director for Chung Ling High School, Heng
Ee High School and Phor Tay High School. In 2021, he is appointed
as the Penang Wawasan Open University Education Foundation
Member and Penang i4.0 Seed Fund Evaluation Committee Member.
Mr. Chuah is also a board member of Penang STEM Sdn. Bhd.,
a non-governmental and non-profit organisation that promote and
educate students in Penang in the field of Science, Technology,
Engineering and Mathematics.

Mr. Chuah is a co-founder of PCB and its subsidiaries including our
Group (the “Pentamaster Group”). He graduated with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering with honours in May 1985 and a master’s
degree in engineering majoring in electrical and electronics in May
1989, both from the University of Auckland, New Zealand.

Mr. Chuah is the brother in-law of Ms. Gan Pei Joo, the Executive
Director and the chief financial officer of the Company.
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Ms. Gan Pei Joo (“Ms Gan”), aged 48, was appointed as our
Director on 12 June 2017 and was re-designated as our Executive
Director on 5 September 2017. She was appointed as an executive
director of PCB on 19 March 2021. She is also the chief financial
officer and holds directorship in all the subsidiaries of the Group.

She commenced her career at PricewaterhouseCoopers in 2000
and was last served as a senior associate in 2003 after having
acquired extensive auditing and consulting exposure to companies
in various industries. She joined Pentamaster Group as the group
accountant in 2003 and held various positions prior to her promotion
as the group financial controller in 2009 and chief financial officer in
2016. Ms. Gan is primarily responsible for the overall management,
corporate affairs, finance, treasury, control functions and budgeting
of the Group. She also sits on the ESG committee as well as risk
management committee of the Group.

She graduated with a bachelor's degree of commerce majoring in
accounting from Curtin University of Technology, Perth, Australia
in February 1999. She was admitted as a member of the Certified
Practising Accountants, Australia and a Chartered Accountant from
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants in July and November 2002,
respectively.

Ms. Gan is the sister in-law of Mr. Chuah Choon Bin, the Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Group.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Leng Kean Yong (“Mr Leng”), aged 49, was appointed
as our Director on 7 August 2017 and was re-designated as our
non-executive Director on 5 September 2017. He is a member of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company.
He currently sits on the board of PCB as a non-independent
non-executive director.

Mr. Leng has been in the finance and marketing field for over
20 years. He is highly experienced in the areas of business strategy,
ranging from financial matters to business planning and marketing.
He has successfully executed projects for small-medium sized
industries to listed companies on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad,
the Australian Securities Exchange and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited as well as projects for multinational corporations.
Such projects encompass IPO exercise, industry research report, the
development of a 5-year business plan, marketing strategy blueprint,
customer relationship management implementation, market entry
and feasibility studies, and mergers and acquisitions evaluations.
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At present, Mr. Leng is also one of the Directors at Crowd Sense
Sdn. Bhd. (which operates under the brand name of Cofundr), a
recognised market operator for peer-to-peer financing registered with
the Securities Commission Malaysia. He was previously a Director
at L3 Consulting Sdn. Bhd. and Project Director for Synovate Sdn.
Bhd., and prior to that, a senior manager for ACNielsen Malaysia
Sdn. Bhd. (“ACNielsen”). During his tenure at ACNielsen, he was
awarded with three ACNielsen awards for his contribution in
successfully implementing and executing key strategies for the firm'’s
local operations. He started his career with BBMB Securities Sdn.
Bhd. and he has also advised and managed discretionary fund for
private companies and high net worth individuals.

He graduated from Western Michigan University (cum laude), the
United States, with a bachelor’s in business administration in April
1996. He also holds various other certifications through training and
updates in the fields of marketing obtained throughout his career with
the various global marketing research consultancy firms.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng (“Mr. Sim”), aged 57,
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director on
19 December 2017. He is also the chairman of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
supervising and providing judgment to our Board.

He started his career with Ernst & Young for 15 years before joining
R.K. & Associates as a lead partner in 2004. He subsequently joined
Eaton Industries Pty Ltd (Australia) as accounting manager and later
transferred to Shanghai Eaton Engine Components Ltd (China) as
financial controller. Upon returning to Malaysia in January 2012, he
was appointed as chief operating officer and chief financial officer for
The BIG Group Sdn. Bhd.. In January 2014, he joined Petrol One
Resources Berhad as its chief financial officer and remained with the
group until January 2019. He joined Silverpack Sdn. Bhd. in March
2019 as its Chief Financial Officer and he left Silverpack Sdn. Bhd. in
July 2023.
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From December 2016 to July 2020, Mr. Sim served as an
independent director of Jack-in Group Limited, a company listed
on the Australian Securities Exchange (ASX: JIP). Currently, he sits
on the board of Nova Wellness Group Berhad (“Nova”), a company
listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad
(stock code: 0201) as an independent non-executive director. He
is also the chairman of audit committee and risk management
committee of Nova. In September 2020, Mr. Sim was appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Ramssol Group Berhad
(“Ramssol”). He is also the chairman of audit committee and risk
management committee of Ramssol.

He is a Chartered Accountant under Malaysian Institute of
Accountants, a Certified Public Accountant of Malaysia Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the Certified
Practising Accountants of Australia. He also holds a Master in
Business Administration and various other certifications through
training and updates in the fields of accountancy and taxation
obtained throughout his career.
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Dr. Chuah Jin Chong (¥1{Z##) (“Dr. Chuah”), aged 62,
was appointed as our independent non-executive Director on

19 December 2017. He is also the chairman of the nomination
committee and a member of the remuneration committee. He is
primarily responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board.

Dr. Chuah has over 30 years of professional experience in the
medical industry since he was registered as a medical practitioner
in Queensland, Australia in 1988 and New Zealand in 1989. From
December 1991 to July 2003, he was employed by the Hospital
Authority in Hong Kong and retired as an associate consultant in
the department of anaesthesia in the Queen Elizabeth Hospital,
Hospital Authority. He is currently a registered medical practitioner in
Hong Kong.

Dr. Chuah graduated from the University of Queensland, Australia,
with the degree of bachelor of medicine and bachelor of surgery in
December 1987. He was admitted as a fellow of the Hong Kong
Academy of Medicine in the specialty of Anaesthesiology and a fellow
of the Australian and New Zealand College of Anaesthetists in May
2001 and June 2001, respectively.
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Ms. Chan May May (FR3£3E) (“Ms. Chan”), aged 58, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on

19 December 2017. She is also a member of the audit committee
and the nomination committee. She is primarily responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to our Board.

She has over 25 years of experience in the legal field. She is currently
the chief executive officer of ZICO Insource Inc. since July 2015,
which is engaged in the provision of insourcing and consultancy
services relating to legal, human resource and communications.
Ms. Chan was the head of group corporate communication in Dialog
Group Berhad from December 2012 to January 2015. Prior to that,
she worked at Media Chinese International Ltd., a company listed
on both the Stock Exchange (stock code: 685) and Bursa Malaysia
Securities Berhad (stock code: 5090). From July 2017 to October
2020, she served as an independent non-executive Director of
BGMC International Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1693). She has been appointed
as an independent non-executive director of Dutaland Berhad, a
company listed on Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (stock code:
3948), on 30 May 2023.

Ms. Chan graduated from the University of Malaya in Malaysia with a
degree of Bachelor of Laws with honours in August 1990. She has
been admitted to the Malaysian Bar since March 1991.
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Hon Tuck Weng

Operations Director ZE7E48%:

Mr. Hon Tuck Weng (“Mr. Hon”), aged 53, has been the operations director since May
2007 and is primarily responsible for overseeing the daily operations of our management
information system, quality assurance and control, facilities and internal control functions.
He also sits on the ESG committee as well as risk management committee of the Group.
He started his career as the software programmer of Pentamaster Technology, a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in March 1995. Mr. Hon has more than 25 years
of experience in automation solutions industry.

Mr. Hon graduated with a higher diploma in computer studies, moderated and assessed
by the University of Humberside in United Kingdom, in September 1993. He later obtained
a postgraduate certificate in engineering business management from the University of
Warwick, United Kingdom, in June 2011 through a distance learning course.
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Teh Eng Chuan
Chief Operating Officer —
automated test
equipment division
BEZEZSE— 881t
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Mr. Teh Eng Chuan (“Mr. Teh”), aged 50, has been the chief
operating officer of Pentamaster Technology since January
2015. Mr. Teh is primarily responsible for overseeing the daily
operations of Pentamaster Technology. He joined as a vision
software engineer of Pentamaster Technology in January 1996
and has over 20 years of experience in the machine vision,
design and control. Mr. Teh completed a course of higher
diploma in computer science in Kolej Damansara Utama
(currently known as KDU Penang University College), Malaysia, in
April 1995.
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Ng Chin Keng
Chief Operating Officer —
factory automation
solutions division
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Mr. Ng Chin Keng (“Mr. Ng”), aged 45, has been the chief
operating officer of Pentamaster Equipment since January 2015.
Mr. Ng is primarily responsible for overseeing the daily operations
of Pentamaster Equipment, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. He joined as an automation software programmer
in January 2000. Mr. Ng obtained a bachelor’s degree of science
in computing and information systems with honours from
University of Lincolnshire & Humberside, United Kingdom, in July
2001.
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Chief Operating Officer —
medical devices division
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Ong Thean Lye

Mr. Ong Thean Lye (“Mr. Ong”), aged 64, is currently the
chief operating officer of Pentamaster MediQ, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company since its inception in 2020.
He is primarily responsible for overseeing the daily operations of
Pentamaster MediQ in the development of the medical devices
business.

Mr. Ong started with Intel Technology Sdn. Bhd. as quality
and reliability engineer from 1986 to 1990 before venturing
into information technology business. He was a director of TP
Concept Sdn. Bhd. from 2018 to 2020, a private company in the
business of designing and manufacturing of automated assembly
machine for medical products. Currently, Mr. Ong is the director
of Walta Centre of Excellence (WCOE) Sdn. Bhd..

Mr. Ong graduated with a first class honours in his bachelor
degree in applied science majoring in electronic technology in
1986 and later a master degree in the business administration
(MBA) in 1996, where both the degrees are from University
Science of Malaysia (USM).
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You Chin Teik
Chief Operating Officer —
automated test
equipment division
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Mr. You Chin Teik (“Mr. You”), aged 47, is appointed as the
chief operating officer of Pentamaster Instrumentation since
January 2024. Mr. You is primarily responsible for overseeing the
daily operations of Pentamaster Instrumentation, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. He joined our Group as a
vision engineer in January 1998.

Mr. You obtained a higher diploma in computer studies from
Kolej Damansara Utama (currently known as KDU Penang
University College), Malaysia, in February 1998. He later obtained
a degree of master of business administration from University
of South Australia, Australia, in March 2009 through a distance
learning course.
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The Board recognises the importance of good corporate governance
and the need to ensure that it is observed and practised throughout
the Group. The Group strives to attain and maintain good corporate
governance practices and is committed to achieving high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics to safeguard the interests
of shareholders of the Company and to enhance corporate value and
accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix C1 of the Rules governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has complied with all the applicable provisions of the
CG Code. Other than disclosed below, the Company reviews its
corporate governance practices regularly to ensure compliance with
the CG Code.

COMPANY’S CULTURE

The Group is committed to ensuring that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with its corporate and governance culture and values
of integrity, excellence, teamwork and high ethical standards, which
form the foundation for long term business, economic success
and sustainable growth of the Group. A strong culture enables the
Company to deliver long-term sustainable performance and fulffil its
role as a responsible corporate citizen. The Company is committed
to developing a positive and progressive culture that is built on its
Vision, Mission and Values, which are set out on page 1 of this
annual report.

The Board provides guidance to management by communicating
the purpose, values and strategic direction of the Group and play
an important role in establishing and instilling corporate culture
and expects and requires all employees to reinforce. All of our
new employees are required to attend orientation and training
programs so that they may better understand our corporate
culture, structure and policies, learn relevant laws and regulations,
and raise their quality awareness. In addition, from time to time,
the Company will invite external experts to provide training to our
management personnel to improve their relevant knowledge and
management skills. The Group promotes and fosters a conducive
working environment such as open communication policy in order
for the employees to stay motivated, and engagement among
various teams, levels and departments. The Group’s employees
are encouraged to be innovative to help foster interesting working
environment.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the purpose,
values and strategy of the Group are aligned.

EXEERARFEXRELBNEEZMN  UKA
VEBRFREAEBERNEHEBTRAT KE
ERIREINTEFREFNEXERER
THAREGZINSRENTEEBARFEBR
S ML RER AT RROF @m U REF &
FERAENEG-

EEERER

AT —ERMBPrEESF EHARR (TEH
MA) MyERCIFrEAY X EATR] ((REST
A1) -MEANKRBEERFRBHALLRARE 2
B—HETEETHNEEBRKE BFT
XRBEIN ARBERBANEEEERE
B RBILRRETREETR

AT XIE

AERRNNEFREEHEDHEREEEERE
AXEURHAE 2 -BRSFEREER
RENBEET EBREAEERAES
BRI R PI R RS RAVERE - SR ABIYXE
LERBENFERERPIFENKRE LB
TEHEREBEENEERARNAGR -ARQF
NHERBHERNXIE ZXERERE
FWE1EMHMES T kEE.

EXgREEREERMES BELEENR
S EEEREESR TERIKIESEDR
EXCTEEEERER THEREXRSE
REITEECEX L -HMAAAREIHBY
RERARKREINFTE ULHEET HRK
FINEEXC BB RBR  BEEEER
AR MRSMPANEERH UL AR F
R AFEBIIBERERMANEEABET
Bl LR Bt PIBy R A B R B IR BE ©
FERREREERFIFRER  AIINAK
BBBHE LSBT REFEG URSE
B ERRBAZERTES - AEERK
BIETRIF U EEA B IIFIRIR

EFERREEXCREAERNRE BE
R ERBE—E]

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 iR © 5



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEELRERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board composition

The Board is structured with a view to ensuring it is of a high calibre
and has a balance of key skills and knowledge so that it works
effectively as a team with no individual or group dominating the
decision-making.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises two
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. Details of their composition by
category are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Chuah Choon Bin (Chairman)

Gan Pei Joo

Non-executive Director

Leng Kean Yong

Independent non-executive Directors

Chuah Jin Chong

Chan May May

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report. None of
the members of Board is related to one another, save and except

that Ms. Gan Pei Joo, the executive Director, is the sister-in-law of
Mr. Chuah Choon Bin, the chairman and executive Director.
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Roles and responsibilities of the Board

The Board is responsible for guiding and monitoring the Company
and oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions,
its purposes and values and performance, and is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. The Board delegates the day-to-day
management of the business to the executive Directors and the
management team. However, certain functions are specifically
reserved for the Board which include the following:

° in conjunction with management, establishing a vision and
strategies for the Group;

° approving the Group’s annual business plan and budget;

° approving specific items of material capital expenditure, major
acquisitions, investments and disinvestments;

° appointing Directors to the Board;
° approving any significant changes to accounting policies;

° approving public announcements, including financial
statements;

° approving any interim dividends and recommending any final
dividends to Shareholders;

° approving all circulars, statements and corresponding
documents sent to Shareholders;

° approving the terms of reference and membership of Board
Committees;

° approving Company policies which may be developed from
time to time;

° providing leadership and strategic directions for the Group;

o overseeing the proper conduct of the business;
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° ensuring prudent and effective controls and risk management
system; and

° overseeing the development and implementation of
shareholder communication policy.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The CG Code provision C.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman
and chief executive be separate and not performed by the same
individual to ensure there is a clear division of responsibilities
between the running of the Board and the executives who manage
the business.

Mr. Chuah Choon Bin who is the chairman of the Board of the
Company, provides leadership and is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is functioning properly with good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Chairman also ensures that Board
discussions are conducted in a manner that all views are taken into
account before a decision is made.

The Company currently has not appointed any chief executive. The
day-to-day management of business has been properly delegated to
different individuals by the Board.

Ms. Gan Pei Joo, being the executive Director, is responsible for the
overall management, corporate affairs, finance and control functions
and budgeting of the Company. With the support of the senior
management, the executive Directors have the general responsibility
for day-to-day management of the Group’s business, implementation
of the policies of the Board and making operational decisions. The
Board is regularly provided with adequate, complete and reliable
information of the Company in a timely manner, which includes but
not limited to, the recent development and prospects of the Group.
Therefore, the Board considers that there is sufficient balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Company, and that power is not concentrated in the hands of any
one individual.
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Non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors

The role of the non-executive Director is to bring independent and
objective judgment to the Board which mitigates risks arising from
conflict of interest or undue influence from interested parties and
protects the interest of minority shareholders. The Board recognises
that it is important to periodically assess whether a Director who is
designated as independent continues to satisfy such designation.
Towards this end, an assessment of independence in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules is carried out on each of the independent non-executive
Directors annually by every other member of the Board.

After the assessment, all independent non-executive Directors
fulfil the independence requirements set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Meanwhile, the Company has received written
annual confirmation from each of the independent non-executive
Directors in respect of his/her independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
As such, the Company considers all independent non-executive
Directors to be independent. In compliance with Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board.

The non-executive Director and independent non-executive Directors
have signed respectively, a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years. The term of appointment of each Director
is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meeting (“AGM”) in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Articles of Association”) and the Listing Rules.

In 2023 and up to the date of this annual report, the Company does
not grant nor have any plan to issue any equity-based remuneration
with performance-related elements to all the independent non-
executive directors.

FERITESRBILIERITES

FRTESNREARNEFTTREBYIMS
B FI B o R B B A m AR R T BV A mE 2R
WBEFEMEEN AR > URFRELDER
RNME -EFERNE EHFAEEERB
THNEFECHENTSHERKBILEMNT
BEZ AL - EFTERHNNESFTH
fR ETRASE3. 1R E BB I 1EIES] 0 5T
HRBILIFATEFHEILE-

R 2RBUFATESHENE L
MR SE313RAVB L M K - A UL FI B > A
A EWESBIIFNITEFTRR TR
B3 13MFRE SRV B I MRS 51 R B 1L 1% 3
WEEEEED AL XA REEE
VYFATEFHBRNBIULA LT - ARFEE
REMRANEIA3ME  BE=ZRBILIFHNIT
EF HEFEBBE=SZ—A#H-

FRTESRBUIFRTEFEDHEERR
BREZER RA=F - REBEARBNMA
BERMR (TMEMERMR) kR EHRA
BEENZIRATHRESR URRRE
FXRg ((RRBFEARG) LEEE S

R2023FE MBI ERFHRBH  ARATLER
ERBIFATEFRTARSIIEEMEA
RIFE B IREFT

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 £E3f © 5§



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEELRERS

Tenure of independent non-executive Directors

The CG Code provision B.2.4 requires that if an independent non-
executive director has served more than nine years, such director’s
further appointment should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the shareholders. The accompanying explanatory note
to such resolution should explain why the Board (or the Company’s
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)) believes that
the director is still independent and should be re-elected. In addition,
the Company is required to disclose the length of tenure of all the
independent non-executive Directors who have served more than
nine years on the Board or appoint a new independent non-executive
Director at the forthcoming AGM.

The independence of a Director is assessed at least annually which
includes the tenure of the said independent Director. In the event
where the tenure of an independent non-executive director is close
to nine years, the Board through the Nomination Committee would
assess several factors to determine the independence of the non-
executive Director, failing which the Nomination Committee shall re-
designate the non-executive Director to be non-independent. The
Board may also consider identifying a suitable candidate to fill up
the role of independent non-executive Director to the Board. As of
the date of this annual report, the tenure of all the independent non-
executive Directors have not exceeded nine years.

In addition to the tenure of service, the Board also considers various
factors to considerably determine the independence of a director.
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Board diversity policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The Company recognises and embraces the importance
and benefit of having a diverse Board that possesses a balance of
skill, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives appropriate
to the requirements of the Company’s business and its subsidiaries.
The Company believes that board diversity enhances decision-
making capability and also the overall effectiveness of the Board
in achieving sustainable business operation. The Board shall also
review the implementation and effectiveness of the Board Diversity
Policy on an annual basis, and the nomination and appointments of
its members shall be made on merit basis.

In accordance with the Board Diversity Policy, the Company has set
below measurable objectives:

- Selection of board candidates shall be based on a range
of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age, race, language, cultural background, educational
background, industry experience and professional experience.
In particular, when identifying potential candidates to the Board,
the Nomination Committee and the Board will, among others,
consider the current level of representation of different genders
on the Board when making recommendations for nominees
as well as succession planning to the Board and senior
management.

- The Nomination Committee will discuss and where necessary,
agree annually on the measurable objectives for achieving
diversity on the Board and recommend them to the Board
for adoption. The Company aims to maintain an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant
to the Company'’s business growth.

- The ultimate decision will be based on merit against objective
criteria and contribution that the selected candidates will bring
to the Board, taking into account the corporate strategy and
business operations of the Company.
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- The Board is also committed to having a Board consisting of
more than one gender. The Board should consist of at least
one Director of a different gender who genuinely possesses
the necessary skills, experience and calibre appropriate to the
Company’s business.

= The Board aims to ensure that there is at least one Director of
a different gender on the Board and that this is maintained in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

- The Board will ensure that an appropriate balance of gender
diversity is achieved with reference to international best
practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing the Board to
gender equality. To achieve and/or maintain gender diversity,
the Nomination Committee will propose a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board to achieve gender diversity.

In 2023 and as at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
six Directors, two of which are female. The Board targets to maintain
at least the current level of female representation, with the ultimate
goal of achieving gender parity. The following table further illustrates
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the diversity of the Board members as of the date of this annual HEFEEEEMNZTIEe
report.
Age Group Educational Background and Professional Experience
FRAER HERRREXLR
Accountancy
Name of Directors Gender 40-49 50-59 60-69 Engineering Law and Finance Medicine
EES 2 45 40Z 495 50Z595% 60Z695% IR iy BitRhER Ba
Chuah Choon Bin Male v v
Chuah Choon Bin Elia
Gan Pei Joo Female v v
Gan Pei Joo feg
Leng Kean Yong Male v v
Leng Kean Yong Elia
Sim Seng Loong @Tai Seng Male v v
Sim Seng Loong @Tai Seng Elia
Chuah Jin Chong Male v v
BB B
Chan May May Female v v
EESS beqid

During the year, the Board has reviewed the implementation and
the effectiveness of Board Diversity Policy, and is of the opinion
that each of the Board members possessed different educational
background and professional experience including engineering, law,
accountancy and finance and medicine. The Board is satisfied that
it is characterised by significant diversity in terms of gender, age,
educational background and professional experience.
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Workforce diversity

The Board recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
workforce (the “Workforce”) of the Group to enhance the quality of its
performance. As such, the Board has adopted a workforce diversity
policy (the “Workforce Diversity Policy”).

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Group sees increasing diversity at the Workforce as an essential
element in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and
its sustainable development. To achieve diversity on the Workforce
of the Group, selection of the employee candidates shall be based
on a range of diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s
business model and specific needs, including but not limited to
gender, age,

race, language, cultural background, educational

background, industry experience and professional experience.

The Group will endeavour to identify and implement programs that
will assist in the development of a broader and more diverse pool of
skilled and experienced employees or individuals and that, over time,
their skills will prepare them for senior management and/or board
positions.

The gender ratio (female-to-male composition) in the workforce
(including senior management) for the year ended 31 December
2023 is 18.5% to 81.5%. For further details of gender ratio, please
refer to the disclosure in the ESG report of the Company.
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Policy on obtaining independent views and input

The Board has adopted the policy on obtaining independent views
and input (the “Board Independence Policy”), which demonstrates
the Company’s commitment to high standards of corporate
governance and making good governance integral to the Company’s
culture.

According to the Board Independence Policy, the Chairman
of the Board has a responsibility to provide the Board with all
the information that is relevant to the discharge of the Board’s
responsibilities. The Board therefore, expects to receive timely advice
on all material information about the activities, performance and
projects of the Group, particularly including any significant variances
from a planned course of action.

The Board, Board committees or individual Directors may seek such
independent professional advice, views and input as considered
necessary to fulfil their responsibilities and in exercising independent
judgement when making decisions in furtherance of their Directors’
The
Mechanism is established to ensure independent views and input

duties at the Company’s expense (the “Mechanism”).

are available to the Board and should be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report of the Company.

In the event that independent professional advice, views and input
are considered necessary, the Board shall first communicate with the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and
provide background and details of the relevant matters which require
independent views and input. The Board may direct any questions,
queries, concerns or specific advice to be sought to the Company
Secretary or elect anyone in charge who will then contact the
Company’s professional advisers within a reasonable period of time.
Any advice received from professional advisers shall be received
in written form and duly documented. The Board is expected to
exercise independent judgement in forming their decisions from
professional advice given.
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The Board also has access to senior management which will be
brought into formal and informal contact at the Board meetings or
other corporate events. The Board has full access to all information
provided by the senior management.

The Board has reviewed and considered the implementation of the
Board Independence Policy and Mechanism to be effective during
the year.

Board committee

The Board has established three committees, namely the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and Nomination Committee on 19
December 2017, to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs.
Each of the three committees has sufficient resources and its specific
terms of reference that are approved by the Board, relating to its
responsibilities, duties, powers and functions, which are posted to
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website.

The Board committees will regularly report to the Board on decisions
or recommendations made.

Audit committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Board passed on 19 December 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code and
Rules 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee is primarily
responsible for (i) reviewing and monitoring the financial reporting,
risk management and internal control systems of the Company, (i)
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment and
removal of external auditors; (i) performing the Company’s corporate
governance functions; and (iv) to monitor continuing connected
transactions (if any).

The Audit Committee currently consists of the non-executive Director,
namely Mr. Leng Kean Yong and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng and Ms. Chan
May May. Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng who is the chairman of
the Audit Committee holds the appropriate professional qualifications
as required under Rules 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, Audit
Committee meeting shall be held at least twice every year or more
frequently if circumstances require. During the year ended 31
December 2023, four Audit Committee meetings were held, among
other things, to review and consider the followings:

a) reviewed the quarterly, interim and annual financial results
of the Company as well as its results announcement and
subsequently presented the relevant reports to the Board for
approval before its subsequent release to Stock Exchange’s
website and the Company’s website;

b)  monitored the Group’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

C) reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the
Group;

d) reviewed the external auditors’ management letter and any
material queries or issues raised by the auditor; and

e) reviewed the remuneration, qualifications and independence of
the external auditor.
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Remuneration committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
pursuant to a resolution of the Board passed on 19 December 2017
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are (i) to review and
make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for all directors’ and senior management’s remuneration;
(i) to review the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements for the
Directors and senior management; (i) to make recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration of non-executive Directors; and (iv) to
consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of one non-
executive Director, Mr. Leng Kean Yong, and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng
(Chairman) and Dr. Chuah Jin Chong.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
Remuneration Committee meeting shall be held at least once every
year. During the year ended 31 December 2023, one Remuneration
Committee meeting was held. The following is a summary of work
performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year:

review and make recommendation to the Board regarding the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management;

i, review and make recommendation to the Board the
Company’s policy for the remuneration of Directors and senior
management;

i, review and make recommendation to the Board the proposed
grant of award shares. While considering the grant of award
shares, the Remuneration Committee had evaluated the
remuneration of the grantees in comparable market peer
and the value of grant to the grantees. After considering
those factors, the Remuneration Committee recommended
the proposed grant of award shares to the grantees to the
Board for approval to recognise and appreciate the grantees’
contributions and commitment to the Group which align with
the purpose of the share award scheme of the Company.
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration for the year are set out in Note
11 to the consolidated financial statements. The remuneration of the
senior management of the Group by band for the year ended 31
December 2023 is set out below:

HENFAR

Remuneration bands

WS

EERNEANFMEBE N G EREM
A1l RERSHEEBNE E2023F128
S1HIEEENFMZSEHKEI W T

Number of
senior
management

EREEASHE

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,600,000

HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 £ 75%1,000,0007& 7T

1,000,001 75 % 1,600,000 7T 3

Directors’ remuneration policy

The remuneration policy for the Directors are the emoluments of the
Directors be determined by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Group’s operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted a share award scheme (the “Scheme”) in
which the Group’s employees will be entitled to participate, on the
Adoption Date.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise the contributions by
certain employees and to incentivise them to achieve the Group’s
long-term business goals and objectives. The Scheme also serves
as part of the Group’s employee retention program in retaining its
existing employees and to attract suitable personnel for further
development of the Group.
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The Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the Board
and the trustee in accordance with the scheme rules and the trust
deed of the Scheme. Subject to any early termination as may be
determined by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. As
at the date of this report, the remaining life of the Scheme was
approximately six years.

The maximum number of shares to be subscribed for and/or
purchased by the trustee by applying the trust fund of the Scheme
for each calendar year for the purpose of the Scheme shall not
exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares of the Company (the
“Shares”) as at the beginning of such calendar year. The Directors
shall not instruct the trustee to subscribe and/or purchase any
shares for the purpose of the Scheme when such subscription and/
or purchase will result in the said limit being exceeded. The maximum
number of shares which maybe awarded to a selected employee
under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
Shares from time to time.

On the basis of a total of 1,600,000,000 Shares in issue as at the
Adoption Date, the maximum number of Shares permitted to be
issued under the Scheme is 80,000,000 Shares (120,000,000
Shares after adjusted to reflect the bonus issue of Shares in 2021),
which represents approximately (but not more than) 5% of the total
issued Shares as at the Adoption Date. The maximum number of
Shares which may be awarded to individual selected employee
under the Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total number of issued
Shares from time to time.
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Details of the award shares granted

On 1 July 2023, the Board approved the grant of an aggregate
16,127,000 award shares (the “2023 Award Shares”) (amounting to
approximately 0.67% of total issued Shares) to selected employees
(the “2023 Grantees”) in accordance with the terms of the Scheme
as at date of this report. The 2023 Grantees are not required to make
any payment in respect of the 2023 Award Shares.

Among the 2023 Award Shares, 300,000 Award Shares were
granted to Ms. Gan Pei Joo, the Executive Director. Shares will be
satisfied, upon the satisfaction or waiver (as the case may be) of all
the relevant vesting conditions, by existing Shares to be acquired
by the trustee through on-market purchases. The trustee purchased
20,514,000 Shares during 2023.

As at 1 January 2023, there were 84,897,000 award shares available
for grant under the Scheme. During 2023, 16,127,000 award shares
were granted, and accordingly as at 31 December 2023, there were
68,770,000 share awards available for grant under the Scheme. No
Grantees have been granted award shares exceeding 1% of the
total issued Shares. A total of 329,338 award shares were cancelled,
forfeited, expired or lapsed during the year ended 31 December
2023.

The number of Shares that may be issued in respect of award shares
granted under the Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2023 divided by the weighted average number of the Shares in issue
for the year ended 31 December 2023 is nil as the award shares are
satisfied by on-market purchase of existing Shares.
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Details of outstanding award shares during the year ended 31

H E2023F 12831 H IEFEME LF1TRBIR

December 2023 is as follows: RsEEMT -
Fair value of Weighted
awards at the average
date of grant  closing price
Closing price during the  of the Share
of Shares  yearandthe  immediately
Unvested Unvested  immediately  accounting before the
award shares award shares before the standard  date of the
asat Cancelled/ asat  grant during and policy vesting
Name of grantees of Purchase 1 January Granted Vested during lapsed during 31 December the year adopted during the
Award Shares Date of Grant  Vesting Period Price 2023 during 2023 2023 2023 2023 (HKS)  (HKS) "= year (HK$)
ERgE
RETHEN
; A¥ERA  EAREEE
1#2023% RNNEIRR  FAREEF  RANEH  EEERGH
1B1B%5R R3E HARBEN  HORGK  ENRER  METHK
RERAEZALSD EFA4 GRS BEE MREBRG R0BERF RNBESE  HE/%H #ERG HEGED B SEERD
(Gan Pei Joo (Executive Director) 4 January 2021 4 January 2021 to Nl Aaed 75,000 - 75,000 - - - - 0.7592
3 January 2023 1% )
Gan Pei Joo B17EZ) 2021E154A 021 E1B4AEA2E e
1%35 1)
1 July 2022 1July 2022 to Ni foed 166,667 - 83,333 - 83,334 - - 0.9965
1 July 2024 te22 )
0257810 2022&7@1 HE2004% w )
TR1g#=
1 July 2023 1 July 2023 to Ni g - 300,000 100,000 - 200,000 09800 09800 0.9965
1 July 2025 1069
N0SETAIE 2023ETE1BE5E
7%1 #3)
Employees (in Aggregate) 4January 2021 4 January 2021 to 4,660,694 - 4,669,521 1,167 - - - 0.7592
) 3 January 2023 e
(B8 (23) ANEIRAE 2011 BARERE
1%35 )
1 July 2022 1 July 2022 to Nil oted! 10,999,321 - 5,317,682 328,171 5,363,468 - - 0.9965
1 July 2024 e22 )
0257810 2020 7R 1B E20045F e
7%1 E z2)
1 July 2023 1July 2023t Nj| Aotz S 15,827,000 5,275,637 - 10,651,363 0.9800 09800 0.9965
1.July 20057059 ,
02357810 2023&7@1 HE2005% w )
7)%1 E wE3)
Notes: B 5E -
1) The granted shares vest on three equal annual basis and at the beginning of the (1) ERFTHRME-FSEEENEBHRRE 8
vesting period with the first vesting date on 4 January 2021. @%@ EA2021F184H ¢
) The granted shares vest on three equal annual basis and at the beginning of the (2 ERTFHROE=ZFEEEENEBRVSEE 8
vesting period with the first vesting date on 1 July 2022. BB EEA20225781H ¢
®3) The granted shares vest on three equal annual basis and at the beginning of the  (3) ERTFHROE-FEEEENEBEHVSEE 8
vesting period with the first vesting date on 1 July 2023. BB EEA20235F781H
(4 The fair values of the award shares granted during the year ended 31 December  (4) HZE2023F 12831 HIEEFEEEFTHERKRGHA
2023 were determined based on the market value of the Shares at the respective FEDRERMESELBHENSTEEE
grant dates.
(5) Pursuant to the Scheme, no amount is payable on application or acceptance  (5) RixZeHE > RERIBMNRBRD BB EAR

of the award shares and no purchase price is payable for the award shares
awarded, which is determined by the Board in its absolute discretion.
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Nomination committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Board passed on 19 December 2017 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are (i) to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives) of the Board at least
annually; (i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members; (i) to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors; (iv) to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of Directors; and (v) to review the
policy on Board diversity.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of all three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr. Chuah Jin Chong
(Chairman), Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng and Ms. Chan May May.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee,
Nomination Committee meeting shall be held at least once every
year. During the year ended 31 December 2023, one Nomination
Committee meeting was held, among other things, to review and
consider the followings:

a) the retirement and re-nomination of directors for re-election at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company;

b)  the independence of the independent non-executive directors;
c) the Board structure, size, composition and board diversity

(including skills, knowledge and experience etc.); and

d) the effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and the
Directors’ nomination policy of the Company.
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Nomination policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy which set out the criteria

and process in the nomination and appointment of Directors. The

policy stipulates the key selection criteria of the Company for the

nomination of Directors as set out below:

a)

character and integrity;

qualifications including professional qualifications, skKills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a Board member and other directorships and significant
commitments;

requirement for the Board to have independent directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates
would be considered independent with reference to the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

the Company’s Board Diversity Policy and any measurable
objectives adopted by the Nomination Committee for achieving
diversity on the Board;

such other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s
business and succession planning and where applicable,
may be adopted and/or amended by the Board and/or the
Nomination Committee from time to time for nomination of
Directors and succession planning; and

to ensure that there is at least one Director of a different gender
on the Board and that this is maintained in accordance with the
Listing Rules.

The Board has the relevant procedures for Directors’ nomination

which are pursuant to Listing Rules and the Articles of Association.

The details are set out in the section headed “Appointment and re-

election of Directors” in this annual report.
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Attendance Records of Meetings

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings, Audit
Committee meeting, Remuneration Committee meeting, Nomination
Committee meeting and general meeting during the year is set out in

the following table:

TXER

wE

o L

BEERNFAHFEEES S
R - FNEEEERE RLEZEETEER
BRERXENELEHIIN TR

R BEREET

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meeting meeting meeting meeting meeting
EEgEE BXKEETERE FNEZESg2gE RLZETEE KREKE
Number of meetings held 4 4 1 1 1

during the year
FRNERTERHE
Name of Directors
EEEY
Executive Directors
WITES
Chuah Choon Bin (Chairman)
Chuah Choon Bin (£ /%)
Gan Pei Joo
Gan Pei Joo
Non-executive Director
ERITES
Leng Kean Yong
Leng Kean Yong
Independent non-

executive Directors
BIFRITES
Chuah Jin Chong
B iE
Chan May May
e S
Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng
Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

Number of meetings attended/Number of meetings entitled to attend

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

Note: Attended committee meetings as a non-member.
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4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

4/4
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(Note)
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions in compliance with the code provision A.2.1
of the CG Code, and discussed (a) to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board; (b) to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development (“CPD”) of
the Directors and senior management; (c) to review and monitor
the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and the Directors; and (e) to review the Company’s compliance with
the code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company and is appointed for a specific term of three
years unless terminated by not less than three months’ notice in
writing served by either the executive Director or the Company. The
non-executive Director and each of the independent non-executive
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company and is
appointed for a specific term of three years.

The Company uses a formal and transparent procedure for the
appointment, election and removal of Directors, which is set out in
the Articles of Association and is led by the Nomination Committee,
which will make recommendations to the Board for approval on
appointing new Directors.

Potential new Board members are identified on the basis of skills and
experience which, in the opinion of the Directors, will enable them to
make a positive contribution to the performance of the Board.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are laid down in the Articles of Association.
The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition, developing and formulating the relevant procedures
for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.

All Directors are subject to retirement and re-election in accordance
with the Articles of Association. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association, one-third of all Directors (whether executive or non-
executive) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
each AGM at least once every three years.

The Articles of Association provides that any Director appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office only
until the first AGM of the Company after his/her appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting.

Full details of changes in the Board during the year and up to the
date of this annual report are provided in the section of this annual
report headed “Directors’ Report”.
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Continuous professional development

According to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
The Directors recognise the need to continue to undergo relevant
training programs to update their knowledge and enhance their skills
where relevant to enable them to sustain their active participation
as a board member. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Directors participated in the following trainings:

ERus

Name of Directors

HEEEER

RIFEETANTFAMEXCAAE FTBEES
E2HFESXER EERTENMENH#AR
B UBEGRHEBTEGE2ZEEARTE
FIENER T HEES(EFHE/M EFRH
AR EREZZERNIEINEE UEH
HA#M LIRS EARARE  EREEMNES
EEENBEBRMBH - REZE2023F12
B1HIEFE  EEZE 28T

Type of trainings
IR

Executive Directors HITES
Chuah Choon Bin (Chairman)

Gan Pei Joo Gan Pei Joo

FHITES
Leng Kean Yong

Non-executive Director
Leng Kean Yong

Independent non-executive Directors BIERITES
Chuah Jin Chong BK_E
Chan May May [EESES

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B: attending in-house training relating to the ongoing compliance obligations,
corporate governance and other related topics

C: reading newspapers, journals, the Company’s newsletters and updates relating
to the economy, general business, automotive industry or Directors’ duties and
responsibilities, etc.

Directors’ and Officers’ insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect
of potential legal actions against its Directors and Officers.

Chuah Choon Bin (&)

Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

A B, C
A B, C

A B, C

A B, C
A'B,C
A B, C

A: SMANE R,/ NEHER WHE

B: SMAREERET  CEEBRAMBREEA
RE A9 P R L 51

C: FRERE  #T) AR B EER R BEE &
BEB RETEXAEFTREFERNRREY

EFKRERBERE

FABEMHHEEERESRBENEEE
REETLHSBRRREERE-
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Model Code for Securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions (the “Securities
Dealing Code”). Specific enquiry has been made with all the Directors
and all of them confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code and the Securities Dealing Code during the year and up to the
date of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The amount of fees charged by the Company’s external auditor,
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited (‘GTHK”) generally depends on
the scope and volume of the external auditors’ work performed.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration paid or
payable to GTHK in respect of the statutory audit services and non-
audit services for our Group are as follows:

RS RZ 5 IR TR

AR B B R L AR R B #x C3FT # L 2
TAEFETEFXSNRETA (MRESP
) ERHEASEMESESXSZNTA
SR (MRS - KaE2REFFH
BEREHE 2REFCEIFAREES
FHROMIEPRE RE-BETRETIR
BER 5 Th e

AT

RABSNEZBENNE (B8) St EHFR
ERAT (MHEAEH) BINE —REURIIH
Bagm T FEE R IFE-

B E2023F12B31HIEFEE  MAEERE
RENEEEZRBERIFEFZRBE[TE
AHEEBNBEIT :

HK$
Services rendered FriR AR BT
Audit service BIZRP 790,000
Non-audit services IEB LIRS 50,000
Total Bzt 840,000

Non-audit services are about the valuation services provided by
the external valuer to assist the Company’s auditor on certain audit
workdone. The external valuer is independent of the Company’s
auditor.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsui Sum Yi (“Ms. Tsui”), a senior manager, Corporate Services
of Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited, an external service
provider, has been engaged by the Company as its Company
Secretary to support the Chairman, the Board and the Board
Committees by ensuring good information flow and that the Board
policy and procedures are followed. The primary contact person
of the Company is Ms. Gan Pei Joo, the executive Director of the
Company.

Ms. Tsui undertook at least 15 hours of relevant professional training
annually to update her skills and knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

It is the responsibility of the Directors to prepare the financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at the end of
the financial year and of the results and cash flows of the Group and
of the Company for the financial year then ended.

The Directors consider that, in preparing the financial statements,
the Group has adopted appropriate accounting policies, consistently
applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates. The Directors also consider that all applicable approved
accounting standards have been complied with and confirm that the
financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. The responsibility
of the external auditors is to form an independent opinion, based
on their audit, on those consolidated financial statements prepared
by the Board and to report their opinion to the shareholders. The
independent auditor’s report by external auditor, GTHK, about their
reporting responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of
our Group is set out in the independent auditor’s report of this annual
report.

NEME

wmoRztT Mgzt BINBREEER
Vistra Corporate Services (HK) Limited’A =) A
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledged they are responsible for the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system through the Audit Committee. The Board recognises the
importance of good corporate governance and is committed to
maintaining a sound system of internal control and risk management.
This includes the establishment of an appropriate control
environment and risk management framework, processes and
structures and continually reviewing the adequacy and integrity of the
said systems to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets.

The system of risk management and internal control covers finance,
operations, management information systems and compliance with
relevant laws, regulations, policies and procedures. There is an
ongoing process to identify, evaluate and manage significant risk
faced or potentially to be encountered by the Group. The process is
regularly reviewed by the Board.

Due to the limitations that are inherent in any system of internal
controls, these systems are designed to manage, rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and it can
only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the
Scope, issues, results and action plans in relation to or arising from
the internal and external audits. The Audit Committee also assists
the Board in fulfilling its oversight and corporate governance roles
in the Group’s risk management and internal controls as well as
effectiveness of the internal audit functions.

Both the Audit Committee and the Board review the effectiveness
of the risk management function and deliberate on the risk
management and internal control frameworks, functions, processes
and reports on a regular basis. The framework is continually
monitored to ensure it is responsive to the changes in the business
environment and clearly communicated to all levels.

The key features of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group are described under the following headings:
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Risk management and internal control structure

The Board has established a risk management committee (the
“‘RMC”) which comprises the Chairman, chief financial officer and
senior management to assist in monitoring the risk management
process within the Group and is responsible for the establishment
and the maintenance of a framework of risk management for the
Group.

The Group has an established internal control structure and is
committed to evaluating, enhancing and maintaining the structure to
ensure effective control over the Group’s business operations and
to safeguard the value and security of the Group’s assets. There is
a clearly defined operating structure with lines of responsibilities and
delegated authority in place to assist the Board to maintain a proper
control environment. The control structure and environment are
supported by the following activities:

a) an organisation structure with clearly defined lines of
responsibility, authority and accountability;

b)  documented internal policies, guidelines, procedures and
manuals, which are updated from time to time;

c) regular Board, RMC and management meetings where
information is provided to the Board and management covering
financial performance and operation;

d)  quarterly review of financial results by the Board and Audit
Committee;

e) regular training and development programmes attended by
employees with the objective of enhancing their knowledge and
competency; and

f) ongoing review on the system of internal controls by an
independent internal audit function. Results of such review are
reported to the Audit Committee, which in turn reports to the
Board.
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Risk management process

The Group has an ongoing risk management process that involve,
amongst others, (i) an annual risk identification and analysis exercise
which involve assessment of the consequence and likelihood of
risks and the development of risk management plans for mitigating
such risks; and (i) an annual review of the implementation of the
risk management plans. This process is reviewed and monitored by
RMC.

For the year under review, the RMC is assisted by the senior
management team from various divisions to effectively embed risk
management and control into the corporate culture, processes
and structures within the Group. The RMC has identified and
reviewed the major business risk factors affecting the Group and
derive risk management strategies to manage and mitigate the risks
identified. The review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls. The following factors were
considered in the risk assessment:

a) the nature and extent of risks facing the Group;

b)  the extent and categories of risk which it regards as acceptable
for the Group to bear;

c)  the likelihood of the risks concerned materialising; and

d) the Group’s ability to reduce the incidence of risks that may
materialise and their impact on the business.

Moreover, the internal audit function of the Company assists Audit
Committee and RMC to monitor the internal governance of the
Company and provides independent assurance as to the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board conducted a
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system, which covered the areas of financial, operational,
compliance and risk management. The Board considered the system
of the Group to be adequate and effective during the year. As at the
date of this annual report, the Group has engaged an independent
internal control consultant to review the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system. The results and findings of
such review from internal control consultant were directly reported
to the Audit Committee. Going forward, the Directors will continue
to regularly assess and review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system.

Anti-Corruption and Bribery Policy and
Whistleblowing policy

The Group has adopted an anti-corruption and bribery policy (the
“Anti-Corruption Policy”) which sets out parameters to prevent the
occurrence of bribery and corrupt practices in the conduct of the
Group’s business. This policy provides information and guidelines to
all Directors and employees of the Group in relation to the standard
of behaviour which they must adhere to and how to recognise and
deal with bribery and corruption.

The Board recognises the importance of whistle-blowing where
a programme has been introduced for the employees as well as
customers, consultants, vendors, contractors and/or any other
parties with a business relationship with the Company to channel
concerns about illegal or unethical business conduct affecting the
Company.

Any employee or member of the public who has concerns about
illegal or unethical business conduct in the workplace, the concerns
may be reported to the appropriate channel, and the matter and
outcome will be highlighted at the Audit Committee meetings.

The Anti-Corruption Policy together with the whistleblowing policy of
the Group are available on the Company’s website.
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DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its obligation under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules, and the
overriding principle that inside information should be announced
immediately when it is the subject of a decision.

The Company makes reference to the “Guideline on Disclosure of
Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong in 2012 in handling and dissemination of inside
information. The Company has also established and implemented
procedures for responding to external enquiries about the Group’s
affairs. Executive Directors or other senior management staff
nominated by the Board as well as the Company Secretary are
authorised to communicate with parties outside the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

An AGM of the Company shall be held each year and at the place as
may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting other than
an AGM, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”).

Procedures for shareholders to convene an EGM

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, EGM may be convened on
the written request of any one or more Shareholders deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal place of
business, the registered office specifying the objects of the meeting
and the resolutions to be added to the meeting agenda, and signed
by the requisitionist(s), provided that such requisitionists held as at
the date of deposit of the request not less than one-tenth of the
voting rights, on a one vote per share basis, of the issued Shares
which as at that date carries the right to vote at general meetings of
the Company.
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If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association allowing
Shareholders to put forward new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to make proposals or move a resolution may,
however, convene an EGM in accordance with the “Procedures for
shareholders to convene an EGM” set out above.

Procedures for putting enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns in
writing to the Board, which contact details are as follows:

Pentamaster International Limited
Plot 18 & 19, Technoplex

Medan Bayan Lepas

Taman Perindustrian Bayan Lepas
Phase IV, 11900 Penang

Malaysia

Telephone: (+604) 646 9212
Fax: (+604) 646 7212
Email: investor.relation@pentamaster.com.my
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Plot 18 & 19, Technoplex

Medan Bayan Lepas

Taman Perindustrian Bayan Lepas
Phase IV, 11900 Penang

Malaysia
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy
(the “Shareholders Communication Policy”) with the objective of
ensuring the Shareholders are provided with equal and timely
access to information about the Company, in order to enable the
Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed manner and to
allow them to engage actively with the Company. The Board and
senior management recognise their responsibilities to represent the
interests of all shareholders and to maximise shareholder value.
Communication with shareholders and accountability to shareholders
is a high priority of the Company.

The Shareholders Communication Policy is summarised as below:

° the Board will maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders and particularly for communicating with them and
encouraging their participation through AGM or other general
meetings and will review this policy regularly to ensure its
effectiveness;

° information will be communicated to the Shareholders through
the Company’s financial reports, AGM and other general
meetings that may be convened, as well as all the disclosures
submitted to the Stock Exchange;

° effective and timely dissemination of information to the
Shareholders will be ensured at all times;

° the Company will assign dedicated employege(s) to be in charge
of ensuring effective and timely dissemination of information to
Shareholders;
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° the Company will provide Shareholders with ready access to
understandable information about the Company;

° the Company will take steps to solicit and understand the
views of Shareholders and other stakeholders;

° the Company will facilitate Shareholders’ participation in AGM
and make available the chairmen of the board committees and
advisory panel(s) (if any), appropriate management executives,
auditors at AGM to answer questions from Shareholders; and

° Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, communicate
their views on various matters affecting the Company, request
for publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to Directors or management of the Company
through the prescribed channel stated in the below
paragraphs.

In accordance with the Shareholders Communication Policy,
the Company has established various and a wide range of
communication channels with the shareholders with the objective
of ensuring that the shareholders have equal and timely access to
information about the Company in order to enable the shareholders
to exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow them to
engage actively with the Company. The channels include general
meetings, annual reports, interim reports and quarterly reports,
notices and circulars, announcements, and all the published
disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange. In addition, the
Company updates its website from time to time to provide the
shareholders with information of the Company’s recent development.
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Shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to participate in general meetings or to
appoint proxies to attend and vote and the meetings. The process of
the Company’s general meeting will be monitored and reviewed on a
regular basis, and if necessary, changes will be made to ensure that
shareholders’ needs are best served.

The AGM or EGM of the Company will provide a forum for the
Board and the shareholders to communicate. The Board will answer
questions raised by shareholders at the AGM or EGM. At the
meeting, a separate resolution will be proposed by the Chairman
for each issue and voting on each resolution will be conducted by
poll. The results of the poll will be posted on the respective websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company on the same day of the
meeting.

Communication with Shareholders

Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available.
Corporate communication will be provided to the shareholders
in plain language and in both English or Chinese to facilitate
shareholders’ understanding. Shareholders are encouraged to
provide, amongst other things, in particular, their email addresses
to the Company in order to facilitate timely and effective
communication.

A dedicated investor relation section is available on the Company’s
website (www.pentamaster.com.my) and a dedicated email (investor.
relation@pentamaster.com.my) has been assigned for shareholders
to communicate with the Company. Information on the website is
updated regularly. Information released by the Company to the Stock
Exchange is also posted on the Company’s website immediately
thereafter. Such information includes financial statements, results
announcements, circulars and notices of general meetings and
associated explanatory documents etc. All presentation materials
provided in conjunction with the Company’s AGM and results
announcement each year will be made available on the Company’s
website.
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The Company has been striving to maintain high transparency
and communicate with the shareholders and the investors of
the Company through diversified communication channels. The
Company holds press conferences and analyst briefing sessions
from time to time to provide the latest business information of the
Company to the investors.

Having considered the multiple channels of communication during
the year, the Board considers its effort in accordance with the
Shareholders Communication Policy in 2023 to be effective. The
Board does not receive any complaints regarding shareholders’
communication in 2023.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no significant changes in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2023.

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND LISTING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 12 June 2017 under the
Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman Islands (“Companies
Act”). The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 19 January 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and has not carried
out any business since its incorporation.

Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year ended 31 December 2023.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year, an analysis
of the Group’s financial performance during the year using key
performance indicators, a discussion on the Group’s future business
development and a description of the risks and uncertainties that the
Group may be facing are set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages
7 to 12 and pages 13 to 37 of the annual report respectively. The
financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are set out in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
In addition, discussions on the Group’s environmental policies,
relationships with its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group
are illustrated in pages 91 to 95 of the annual report. These
discussions form part of this directors’ report.
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The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of
the operations of the Group are set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 114 to 120.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (‘Dividend Policy”)
on 27 February 2019 with the aim to set out the principles and
guidelines that the Company intends to apply in relation to the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to
the shareholders of the Company.

The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders, subject to the Articles of Association and
all applicable laws and regulations. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group’s operations, earnings, financial condition, working capital
requirements, future expansion plans and other factors it may
deem relevant and appropriate. Any final dividend for a financial
year declared by the Company must be approved by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders at an AGM of the Company and must
not exceed the amount recommended by the Board.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is
no assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
specific period. The Company’s Dividend Policy is available on the
Company’s website.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board
recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.02 per share
(“Final Dividend”) subject to approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF
MEMBERS

The AGM will be held on Thursday, 6 June 2024. The register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 3 June 2024
to Thursday, 6 June 2024 (the “Closure Period”), both days inclusive,
for the purposes of determining the entitlements of the shareholders
to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM. During this Closure
Period, no transfer of the Company’s shares will be registered. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and properly transfer
forms must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 31 May 2024.

The Final Dividend is payable on Friday, 5 July 2024 and the record
date for entitlement to the Final Dividend is Monday, 17 June 2024.
For determining the entitlement to the Final Dividend, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 14 June 2024
to Monday, 17 June 2024, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to
qualify for the Final Dividend, all transfer of shares accompanied by
the relevant share certificates and properly completed transfer forms
must be lodged with the branch share registrar of the Company
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 13 June 2024.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set
out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to the Shareholders amounted to approximately
MYR30,963,000 (2022: MYR28,525,000).

DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately MYR115,000 (2022: MYR72,000). The
rest of the donations amounting to approximately MYR217,000
(2022: MYR184,000) were made through PCB which is the
immediate holding company of the Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment
totalling approximately MYR123.3 million (2022: MYR40.6 million).
The major additions pertained to the construction in progress of two
new manufacturing plants of the Group amounting to approximately
MYR90.2 million (2022: MYR11.0 million). These two manufacturing
plants, spanning approximately 720,000 sq.ft. are constructed to
further support the growth plans of the Group by providing the
required space for increased production and manufacturing capacity,
R&D activities, warehousing and administration. The targeted full
completion of these manufacturing plants is set for the first quarter of
2025. Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out
in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

FULFILLMENT OF PROFIT GUARANTEE IN
RESPECT OF THE ACQUISITION OF 100%
EQUITY INTEREST OF TP CONCEPT

References are made to (i) the announcements of the Company
dated 26 September 2019 and 27 September 2019 in relation
to the acquisition of 100% equity interest in TP Concept, (i) the
announcement of the Company dated 25 February 2021 in relation
o the extension of profit guarantee period and (i) the announcement
of the Company dated 15 March 2023 on the fulfilment of the
aggregate profit guarantee in relation to the acquisition of TP
Concept. Unless otherwise defined, capitalised terms used
herein shall have the same meanings as those defined in the said
announcements of the Company.
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Subsequent to the acquisition of TP Concept by PQ, the business
activity and employees of TP Concept were transferred to PQ to
be integrated and operated as a business unit in PQ which was
known as PQ-TP business unit in mid of 2020. The purpose of this
integration was to achieve cost optimisation and better production
efficiency for the Group since the business activity of PQ entails
the provision of factory automation solutions which involves the
equipment design and manufacturing services for various industries
including medical manufacturing automation activity which is the
principal activity of TP Concept. Subsequent to the business
integration, all operation and business activities during the Profit
Guarantee Period were undertaken under PQ-TP business unit in
PQ by the same set of employees previously employed under TP
Concept. TP Concept was subsequently dormant during the Profit
Guarantee Period.

As the process of the business integration took place during the
Profit Guarantee Period, the financial performance from the business
unit of PQ-TP has to be included for the purpose of calculating the
PAT for Profit Guarantee purposes. With that, the Board of Directors
of PQ engaged Grant Thornton Malaysia PLT to perform an agreed-
upon procedures (“AUP report”) in relation to the aggregate PAT for
profit guarantee purposes. The aggregate PAT entails the PAT of PQ-
TP business unit and TP Concept from 1 April 2019 to 31 December
2022 outlined as below.
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There was no change to the terms of the Profit Guarantee and
no change of method for calculating the PAT for Profit Guarantee
purposes from the internal consolidation and reorganisation within
the Group. The Aggregate Profit Guarantee has been fulfilled within
the Extended Profit Guarantee Period. Therefore, the Performance
Guarantee has been fulfilled.
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MATERIAL EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There are no material events affecting the Group after the end of the
year under review.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company, is set out in page
6 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The industry that we operate in is subject to domestic and foreign
health, safety and environmental laws and regulations. In order to
ensure compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, our
Group has established an internal policy to monitor and control
health and work safety issues. Our Group’s internal health and safety
officer and committee are responsible for the development and
implementation of health and safety rules as well as a safe system of
work. Their responsibilities include carrying out studies on the trend
of accident and its prevention, reviewing the effectiveness of our
current health and safety system and making recommendations to
our management for any improvement on relevant policies. Health
and safety inspection will also be carried out by our management
once every quarter. In addition, information, instruction and
supervision relating to health and safety issues are provided to all
of our employees and any jobs with potential safety issue. Training
sessions including emergency first-aid are provided to emergency
response team and employee safety and health committee and fire
drill is carried out at least once a year within the Group.

In respect of environmental matters, it is our Group’s policy to ensure
appropriate response to any situations involving leakage of chemicals
or hazardous gas emission as well as prevention or mitigation of the
environmental impacts associated with the above situations. Further,
we also dispose of our scrap materials and electrical wastes through
companies approved by the government to handle such items.

During the year, the Group did not record any material violation of
any health, work safety and environmental laws and regulations
applicable to our operations that resulted in claim or penalty
imposed on our Group. Our Group has complied with the relevant
environmental laws and regulations in all material respects.
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Below are some initiatives undertaken by the Group during the year:
3R Concepts (Reduce, Reuse and Recycle)

The Group remains committed in ensuring that it plays its role in
sustaining a greener environment. During the year under review,
the Group continued with the recycling and waste management
initiative whereby recycle bins are provided to spur waste segregation
for proper recycling and disposal purposes. Our employees are
educated on the concept of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” which is
an excellent way of saving energy and conserving the environment.

“Cost With No Waste” initiative

The Group is committed to make efficient use of its resources by not
producing unnecessary wastage. The Group has implemented “Cost
With No Waste” initiative since 2016 in ensuring no unnecessary
wastage and impact in the ecosystem where it operates in.

The Group has been actively participating in supporting charitable
projects and initiatives primarily in Penang where it operates. It is part
of the Group’s vision in creating positive change for the communities
and societies in Penang as a whole for the betterment of a
sustainable future generations. During the year, some of the projects
that the Group has contributed includes:

Penang Green Industry Program

The Group has sponsored into this Penang state-led initiative
in harnessing green technology and supporting holistic Green
initiatives to achieve a sustainable and resilient Penang, where
it enables, empowers and enrich all stakeholders in practising
sustainable development and to protect the environment and quality
of life. During the year, the Group made monetary contributions of
MYR50,000 for this program.
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Penang STEM 4.0

A Penang state initiative in establishing learning centres in the
field of Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics for
students based on real world applications. Students are coached
in understanding and developing creative thinking skills so as to
stimulate curiosity and problem solving skills. During the year, a total
monetary contribution of MYR66,000 was made by the Group for
this initiative.

IAPWA Penang Island Project

IAPWA (International Aid for the Protection and Welfare of Animals) is
an international animal welfare charity organisation that is dedicated
in creating a better future for animals in need. During the year, the
Group has made monetary contributions of MYR40,000 to support
the establishment and management of a humane programme for the
stray dogs in Penang. As a result, stray dogs are no longer culled
but are instead neutered, vaccinated and provided with additional
veterinary care.

As required by the Listing Rules, the Company is required to report
on ESG information of the Group on an annual basis and regarding
the same period covered in this annual report. As such, the
Company has been publishing the ESG report (the “ESG Report”)
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on an
annual basis. Please view and download the ESG Report from
the Company’s website at https://pentamaster.com.my under the
“Investor Relations PIL” and subsequently “Financial Reports” section
or the website of the Stock Exchange. If Shareholders would like to
receive the ESG Report in printed form, you may send your request
in writing to the Company c/o the Company’s branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ ENGAGEMENT FinaEnsn

Stakeholders are defined as parties that have interest in the Group MNP EMNEEANAEERERA RS  LHA
and can either affect or be affected by the Group’s business ¥R S AREBEFR EENTZEM AL FM
activities. We conduct periodic engagement with our various EHEEMHESH ' RAAZKMAEERSEH
stakeholders because we recognise that their perspectives are  #72kL» ¥ 12177 Bh 2K 52 B 24 3 545 48 N DUE&
important in helping the Group to prioritise the actions for continuous MR ETHAEIN B RFESEE
sustainability improvement of the Group.

The following table summarises the Group’s key stakeholders and ~ TFFRIFFIAEBHIEBFHE U KA E R A

how the Group engages them: BEEEmHNH
Stakeholders Method of Engagement

Fn&E gmsl

Shareholders ° AGM

e RRBFERE

° Corporate communication and investor relations

AREARREERE

Employees o Employees briefings
(=2=] EEMRE
o Open communication via internal channels such as in-house emails and open door
policy

BRATAEMEAIMREKRFIFHRERETLRBEE

Customers o Customers’ survey and feedbacks
Y ER#EBE Kol
° Face to face meetings
HHEER
Suppliers ° Suppliers’ audit
HAER HEEmE s
° Suppliers’ feedback
HrEr L&
. Suppliers’ meetings
HEE SR
Government o Compliance with government legislative framework
BT ERBUNILEESR
Communities ° Meeting with local communities
& g Rt 5 EE
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COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, our Group has complied in
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of our Group during
the year and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive Directors

Chuah Choon Bin (Chairman)
Gan Pei Joo

Non-executive Director
Leng Kean Yong
Independent non-executive Directors

Chuah Jin Chong
Chan May May
Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three,
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation, provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an AGM at least once every three years.

Any Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall, hold office only
until the first AGM of the Company after his/her appointment and
such Director shall then be eligible for re-election at that meeting by
the Shareholders.

Accordingly, Mr. Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng and Ms. Chan May
May, shall retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

EBREEERRESR

BESFL—VUSEERNR AN 2B R E
B AEERERAEEFFRAP—HE
SHAEREHFREEREAT ENARE
BRERZERTEC

o

REARBEERRSARLNARTEFN
B

BITES

Chuah Choon Bin (/%)
Gan Pei Joo
EMITES

Leng Kean Yong
BIIFRITES

B
PR3E=
Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng

RIFABERMA =D —TFEES (T
HMEFHEWIIF=MEZ MUREEER
DR=D2Z—MNESR) BERESR EESLE
EHARVE=FRREBFARE L HER—
Ko

EREZFELURFEEFTROEEEHFN
HEZEERNAADE—ERRAGETH
Ew MEREFINZAT LEBARRE
EEE-

AL > Sim Seng Loong @ Tai Seng’t“E K f&

EXRTRINRRBERG LWERET I
NaEREREE-
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report.

CHANGE IN THE DIRECTOR’S INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B OF THE LISTING
RULES

The change in Director’s information as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules is set out below:

Ms. Chan May May has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of Dutaland Berhad, a company listed on Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad (stock code: 3948), on 30 May 2023.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the AGM
has an unexpired service agreement with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, there was no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which any of the Company’s holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company or a connected entity of the director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company did not enter into any contract, other than the
contracts of service with the directors or any person engaged in the
full-time employment of the Company, by which a person undertakes
the management and administration of the whole, or any substantial
part of any business of the Company during the year.

Of ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED i F ZE R B IRA S
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors or their respective close
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had any interests
(other than their interest in the Company or its subsidiaries) in
any business which competed or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group or any other conflicts of
interests with the Group.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST

Save as disclosed in this report, no contracts of significance were
entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and any
Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries or any contracts
of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by any Controlling Shareholders or any of its
subsidiaries.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS
OF LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the Shareholders by reason of their respective holding of the
Company’s securities.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group during the year are set out in Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EFENHEIFEHPAED

RER EFTREZENEEMRA (EE
REMRA) HERNEMEARERXFEE
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY, ANY
SPECIFIED UNDERTAKING OF THE COMPANY
OR ANY ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, within the meaning of the SFO, as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix C3 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

(i) Interest in the Company

EFRFEBTHASNRAERE A
A EME(S E T AE AR A E
@%ﬁ&ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%%%**&
KB

R2023F12831H  EERARB ETETH
AERARBDRERBEIE (EEREBESF K
HEEA) MRS ERERD RESTHRA
RIEE 5 R HE K5 5535218 B 50 I sz 1K Flr
MBS MY RABIRE T RA M ERC3FT
HEMBETAESETE SIS WIRESFL
(MEEFR)) BTHNEARB RN
BmRRAEWT

) MEIBWEDR

Approximate
Number percentage of

Name of Director Capacity of Shares  shareholding
EENS g1 R EE BALE
(Note 1)
1)
Chuah Choon Bin Beneficial Owner 26,611,200(L) 1.11%
Chuah Choon Bin BaBEEA
Gan Pei Joo Beneficial Owner Mete 8,403,544(L) 0.35%
Gan Pei Joo EmER A W2
Leng Kean Yong Beneficial Owner 250,000(L) 0.01%
Leng Kean Yong BEmEBA
Chuah Jin Chong Beneficial Owner 168,000(L) 0.01%
2" EnEBA
Notes: BT
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. 1. TLFERAZAALTRROTNEE -
2. Includes Ms. Gan Pei Joo’s entitlement to receive up to 283,334 Shares 2. BEGan Pei Jook TiRIEFBZTEIZT

pursuant to the vesting of the award shares granted to her under the
Scheme, subject to the conditions (including vesting conditions) of those
award shares.

O& ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED i F ZE R B IR A S
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(i) Interest in an associated corporation of the
Company

(i) MAEAFEEERNED

Approximate
Name of associated Number percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity of Shares shareholding
e WL E RS g1 BRNEE HABREDT
(Note 1)
(1)
Chuah Choon Bin PCB Beneficial Owner 140,420,120(L) 19.71%
Chuah Choon Bin PCB BEREBA
Interest in Spouse e 138,510(L) 0.02%
FofBitn e
Gan Pei Joo PCB Beneficial Owner 50,486(L) 0.01%
Gan Pei Joo PCB BEREBA
Leng Kean Yong PCB Beneficial Owner 55,000(L) 0.01%
Leng Kean Yong PCB BanlEAA
Notes: fE -
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares. 1. TLFBRRZEALTRROTNEE-
2. Chuah Choon Bin is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the 2. RIRE 5 A HAE &) > Chuah Choon Bint#

138,510 shares in PCB held by his spouse.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or chief executive or any of their spouses or children
under 18 years of age, has any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its specified undertakings or other associated corporations which
were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which he will be taken or deemed to have under the SFO),
or was required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein or which was required, pursuant to
the Model Code.

RANRHEEBRFAR138,510PCBZH H
WA

br EXIREESIN ) 1220235128310 »
BEEFTETHAEXNTARENE B8
BUTFELRARBREAMAFEEBRE
i EEB R M BB D RESTER
ERZBERIES 5 R E R G EXVE E7 R85
BHE AR RBERMNERI A (BE
RIKES M E RGN EEIRIEHER IR
mIKA) » WBEREFE S RAEKGI5352
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2023, the
interests and short positions of the persons, other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRNABL2E M - 18RS
REEm R E

PLEEFTH > 122023F12831H » B A A F
BEEFFETHRAEN U TFATHRAEAAF
B B AR IR P HE B L A A B BIRER
B MBS RAFEIIBRREFENETL M
@R AR .

Approximate
Number percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity of Shares shareholding
BRREH gt RIVEE HARRESL
(Note)
(3
PCB Beneficial Owner 1,633,549,989(L) 63.90%
PCB BEHEAA

Note: The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors
are not aware of any person who had an interest or short position in
the shares and the underlying shares of the Company which would
require to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement (as
defined in section 6 of the Companies (Director’s Report) Regulation
(Chapter 622D of the laws of Hong Kong)).

10(0) ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & {1 ZEI R B R A F
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

A deed of non-competition dated 20 December 2017 has been
entered into by PCB in favour of the Company (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”). Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition, the
Controlling Shareholder has undertaken to the Company that it
shall not, and will procure its close associates not to, among other
matters, directly or indirectly engage, participate, or hold any right
or interest in any companies or be involved in any business which
is or may be in competition with the business of the Group from
time to time. Details of the Deed of Non-Competition are set out
in the sub-section headed “Non-Competition Undertakings” in the
section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholder” of the
Prospectus.

The Company has received an annual declaration in writing from the
Controlling Shareholder confirming that it had complied with the non-
competition undertakings provided to the Company under the Deed
of Non-Competition. The independent non-executive Directors have
reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement of the Deed of
Non-Competition and confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder
have been complied with for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence. The emoluments of the directors
of the Company are determined by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

P25
PCBEMUAR R AR m AF] I HHEA20174

12208 HRFRE ((FHFEE)) R
BAGFRE ERRREMAE QS K
HETEUREEARRHBEASE (Hh
B EREERE 2ERRELERE
BRB A ERBNEMES AN ERF
BEREN DI RE T - N5 F 2R
s REN R EE RIERRRREER —
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RABIEWEIERKREZENFEEEREE
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Employees Provident
Fund Scheme for employees in Malaysia. Particulars of these
schemes are set out in note 2.16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As prescribed by the Employees Provident Fund (“EPF”), the Group’s
employees employed in Malaysia who are Malaysian are required
to join the EPF scheme. The total costs charged to profit or loss
amounting to MYR9,600,000 (2022: MYR7,372,000) represent
contributions paid to the retirement benefits scheme by the Group.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities except that
the trustee of the Scheme which was adopted on 1 April 2020,
pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed of the Scheme,
purchased on the Stock Exchange a total of 20,514,000 Shares at
a total consideration of approximately HK$20.9 million (equivalent to
approximately MYR12.3 million) during the year ended 31 December
2023.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every director of the Group’s
companies shall be entitled to be indemnified by the relevant
company against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities
incurred by him or her in the execution and discharge of his or her
duties or in relation thereto pursuant to their respective Articles of
Associations.

Such provisions were in force during the course of the financial year
ended 31 December 2023 and remained in force as of the date
of this report. The Company has maintained liability insurance to
provide appropriate cover for the directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are disclosed in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. Save as mentioned in the
sections headed “Connected Transactions” and “Continuing
Connected Transactions” below, other related party transactions did
not constitute connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction as defined in chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no connected transactions entered by the Group during
the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into the following continuing connected
transactions with its connected persons.

Trademark Licence Agreement

On 19 December 2017, Pentamaster Technology, a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a trademark licence
agreement (the “Trademark Licence Agreement”) with PCB, pursuant
to which Pentamaster Technology granted to PCB an irrevocable
right to use the trademarks (the “Trademarks”), for use in PCB
Group’s day-to-day business on a non-transferable, non-exclusive
and royalty-free basis, for an indefinite term until PCB ceases to be a
Controlling Shareholder.

As the Trademarks have been widely adopted in all the businesses
and activities managed and operated by the Pentamaster Group and
are generally known and recognised by the public, the Trademarks
have become an important means of promoting the Pentamaster
Group’s brand and image and a key icon in all of the Pentamaster
Group’s external promotion and marketing activities. The continual
use of the Trademarks will ensure the continuity of the brand and
image of the Pentamaster Group, thereby ensuring the long-term
development and continuity of the Pentamaster Group’s business.
Having considered the foregoing, our Directors consider that it is
reasonable to license the Trademarks to PCB to enable it to sustain
the PCB Group’s business operations and an indefinite duration of
the agreement (until PCB ceases to be a Controlling Shareholder) is
justifiable. Our Directors are of the view that the Trademark Licence
Agreement has been entered into on normal commercial terms which
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Pentamaster Group
and our Shareholders as a whole.
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As the applicable percentage ratios for the Trademark Licence
Agreement is expected to be less than 0.1% on an annual basis,
such transaction is fully exempt from the reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular, independent financial advice and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

Lease agreements in respect of office premises

On 19 December 2017, Pentamaster Technology as landlord entered
into two lease agreements, one with each of PCB and Pentamaster
Smart Solution Sdn. Bhd. (“PSS”), a subsidiary of PCB respectively,
as tenant (together the “Lease Agreements”), pursuant to which
Pentamaster Technology agreed to lease the premises situated at
Plot 18 & 19, Technoplex, Medan Bayan Lepas, Taman Perindustrian
Bayan Lepas, Phase IV, 11900 Penang, Malaysia (the “Office
Premises”) to each of PCB and PSS for office use.

The Lease Agreements have a term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date. On 1 October 2018, Pentamaster Technology
entered into two revised lease agreements with PCB and PSS
respectively. The revised lease agreements had a term of 15
months until 31 December 2019. The revised lease agreements
were subsequently extended annually for PCB and PSS. The rental
to be paid to Pentamaster Technology under each of the Lease
Agreements was negotiated on an arm’s length basis and on normal
commercial terms determined based on the historical rental for the
Office Premises and the prevailing market rent of similar premises.

1()4 ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED & {1 ZEI R B R A F
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Since the transactions contemplated under the Lease Agreements
are similar in nature, such transactions should be aggregated
pursuant to Rule 14A.81 of the Listing Rules. As the highest
applicable percentage ratio for the Lease Agreements in aggregate
calculated for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules is
less than 5.0% and the annual consideration is less than HK$3.0
million, such continuing connected transactions are within the de
minimis threshold stipulated in the Rule 14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules
and fully exempt from the reporting, annual review, announcement,
circular, independent financial advice and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Rule 14A.76(1) of the
Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable to
the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

= the largest customer: 14.4%

- five largest customers in aggregate: 52.6%

Purchases

- the largest supplier: 9.0%

- five largest suppliers in aggregate: 26.3%

At no time during the year, the Directors, their associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more

than 5.0% of the Company’s share capital) has any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.

HREERHZEE M RETHRZEEBLD
HIRIE LR FE14A 8115 2SR ZES
HETE - HIRH L RAI S+ OAZFT & 5t
BHEERZENRSER B 2 EEERS.0%
BFERBENS.0EEA T WA RHIFER
BR 5B EHRAIE14A.76(1)ETHANRE
e K FRE EE2EmHRBF LEHHANSE
T4ATE(NFRIB TN EMER - FEER A5
BRBIUIMBEER KRB IREAENRE

BEERRER

AERTEERRERBERENERNHELRR
RIREBERB LT
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— EBRAEPR 1144%

— HRERHES 1526%

RIBEE

— BRAMHER9.0%

—  ERHEEBES 1 26.3%
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

EFEHRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual
report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which shall oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued share was held by the public as at the date of
this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2023 have been audited by GTHK, who will retire at
the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offers themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of GTHK as auditor
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM. There has
been no change of auditor of the Company since the Listing Date.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAZBET RS

O Grant Thornton
2 [=]

To the members of Pentamaster International Limited

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Pentamaster International Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) set out on pages 114 to 232,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(the “IASB”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board (“IAASB”). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (including
International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (the “IESBA Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAZBET RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS FREZEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional REBEEZEMNEEHE  BESZEFEAES
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated EZ ARG SV HFRETEEEMNEIE -
financial statements of the current period. These matters were EEHEBIZIZEHMEBRERER FRFMILEL
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial ERFEEZEEE MAIHMZSSEE
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we JBEXRER -

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Wit 2 R 22

Refer to notes 2.15, 4.1 and 5 to the consolidated financial statements
REGEMBWRRNEE2.1564.1%5

The Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

R EZEE EEAEERTEEAMEENSGZ
The revenue recognition from the automated Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition
test equipment and factory automation included:

solutions segments depends on the nature of EEAMAERNENBEZEFEE !

the contractual arrangement with the customer

and this could impact the point at which the - Evaluating the assessment performed by management

control is transferred and service is rendered to
the customer. The revenue from these activities
amounted to approximately MYR692 million.
BEbmARE R IREBLRATED BN
WaREREBURANEE R EANZHNEE > BEA
REREEEETERAEFIREREIRRE &
EEFMBNmABN2HELT

We have identified revenue recognition as a key
audit matter as there is a risk that the revenue may
be incorrectly recognised as different contractual
arrangements with customers will result in different
timing in which revenue would be recognised.

EEERRARRHNAEREEZEE THER
FHEWAAEREERERNERE (FEE R
B &2 ERR S ERDNERETE) o
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on compliance with revenue recognition policies.

T R B BB P U PSR IR S (R BT A o

Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s revenue
recognition processes and their application and
thereafter testing controls on the occurrence of revenue.
T BEENRGRIEFREERR HEARSH
HIRW @A ERE-

Performing analytical procedures on the trend of
revenue recognised to identify for any abnormalities.
HERDBRD 2 BRETOMER UHNEMAME
o,

’% [e]

Performing substantive testing on a sampling basis to
verify that revenue recognition criteria are being properly
applied.

Mg ETEEMAE UZEREEXERA
MEEB U ek B ZEE R 0

Assessing the correct period for the revenue recognised
by testing cut-off through assessing sales transactions
taking place before and after the end of reporting period
as well as checking credit notes and sales returns
issued after the reporting period (if any).
FEETENBREMARABETNHER S UkigE
RBESHBELNIREBE KRG LURIE BB
SRR WY IEARRE QA) -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAZBET RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) FASEEIZEIE (B

Provision for expected credit losses (“ECL”) of trade receivables

BSRWRIETAIGERSE (TR EEE)) BikE

Refer to notes 2.12, 4.2 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements
RERBMBRRMEE2.12 4.2521

The Key Audit Matter

FREIZEE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had trade

receivables of MYR196 million, after provision

How the matter was addressed in our audit
EEEERTEEEMEENS

Our audit procedures in relation to provision for ECL of trade
receivables included:

for ECL of approximately MYR2 million, which
represents 16.9% of the Group’s total assets.
1R2023%F12831H> EEENNEZRURIER
196E B <5 SNRAREEBERERNS2
BESE 4 EEEMBBEMN169%-°

Assessing ECL of trade receivables requires the
management’s judgement and uses of estimates
in determining the probability of default occurring
by considering the ageing of receivables, historical
loss experience and forward-looking information.
B SRR RIENTEREEREFTEEREN
BEEELEANAELEREE BRIRIENR
i ~ BT R AR B DU AT BE M B RHE 1R I ) R K
ERfhsEte

We have identified provision for ECL of trade
receivables as a key audit matter due to the
significance of trade receivables and the significant
estimation involved in determining the provision for
ECL of trade receivables.
EEREZRNHRIENTRREEBEREEHRR
RHAREZEE REARSESRWHRENEEZY
REEEZBRWHRENEREEGEREBH IR
BARME

FEMEZBUGRENTRREEBENEZEF ST

Evaluating the application of Group’s policy for
calculating the ECL.
LR AEEBERTERREERIE

Evaluating techniques and methodology adopted by
the management against the requirements of IFRS 9
“Financial Instruments”.

RBEERMBREERFEOR M I A WRE TG
EIEERANRM R %

Assessing the reasonableness of estimates and
assumptions made by the management in determining
the ECL, including evaluating the accuracy of the
historical default data, detailed analysis of ageing of
receivables and forward looking information with the
assistance of our valuation experts.

ML EEENEERREEBERAIEGS RERRN
BE% GFERMNEEER RS THHBEEY
BB R  BUCRIERENFED T RATEMTE
#}o

Recalculating the management’s provision for ECL of
trade receivables to ensure mathematical accuracy.
BN EEEENESRNRETRAEEBENE
&> DRt BRI -

Checking the correctness of the aging analysing by
customer on a sample basic.

PR e E R P ETHRE DATRYERE

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 53§ © ()9



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAZBET RS

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the 2023 annual report
of the Company, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAZBET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAZBET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also: (Continued)

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BAZBET RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
Hong Kong Certified Public Accountants
11th Floor, Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

22 February 2024

Chiu Wing Ning
Practising Certificate No.: P04920
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mafRmAkHEHMEEN@R

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes MYR’000 MYR’000
iz F25F *E
Revenue Y s 5 691,850 600,587
Cost of sales tHE A (482,206) (415,135)
Gross profit EF 209,644 185,452
Other income H A 6 17,917 11,402
Distribution costs DA (9,254) (9,965)
Administrative expenses THRX (76,208) (55,120)
Reversal of expected credit loss (“ECL”) B RWHIBENTEREERE
allowance on trade receivables, net (IFEHRE EE1R)) #EFEE 9 1,141 4,798
Other operating expenses HM& &= (174) (86)
Operating profit R T 143,066 136,481
Finance costs BhE A A 8 = (87)
Share of results of associates FELBE QB S 19 41 (1,636)
Profit before taxation R A A 9 143,107 134,758
Taxation 18 10 (874) (1,457)
Profit for the year FAEF 142,233 133,301
Other comprehensive income/ Hihzmmksxs, X))
(expenses)
Items that will be reclassified subsequently B & B 7 1EF 7 HIEH
to profit or loss
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation of HEBINEBTHEREN
financial statements of foreign operations ~ FER UK, (E518) 47 (136)
Profit and total comprehensive income FREF KR EKEELEZE
for the year 142,280 133,165
Earnings per share (sen) SRREF) (i)
Basic 2K 12 5.97 5.59
Diluted #E 12 5.96 5.58
The notes on pages 121 to 232 are an integral part of these F121E232B 2 fisFAZEEAHBRET

consolidated financial statements. Details of dividends proposed for
the year are set out in note 13.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ISR WY

As at 31 December 2023 2023412431 H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes MYR’000 MYR’000
iz F<H *E
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M B et 14 247,117 134,645
Leasehold land HELTH 15 34,900 35,320
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, EEVE -BEMREZ
plant and equipment BEE 22 13,612 =
Goodwill e 16 4,495 4,495
Intangible assets mEE 17 36,864 35,653
Interests in associates REE AT m 19 17,578 20,070
354,566 230,183
Current assets RENEE
Inventories =78 20 190,608 170,934
Trade receivables B S EWEIE 21 196,289 237,926
Other receivables, deposits and HMEWRIE ZE &
prepayments FETIE 22 15,717 30,511
Amount due from ultimate holding company — FEUR & 48388 A S 7018 37(d) 4 6
Amount due from fellow subsidiaries EREZRKBABRIE 37(d) 1,227 =
Derivative financial assets TEEMEE 23 2,384 489
Other investments HMKE 24 170 219
Tax recoverable EEIE e 2,279 2,765
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEEBY 25 395,797 328,628
804,475 771,478
Total assets HWEE 1,159,041 1,001,661
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
EREMBIRRR

As at 31 December 2023 2023412431 H

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes MYR’000 MYR’000
fe5E F25F Sa=i
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES Eanka’E
EQUITY i
Share capital RN 26 12,340 12,340
Reserves Eaia 27 835,632 724,373
Total equity Mt 847,972 736,713
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities RENAaE
Trade payables B RENRIE 28 118,022 121,528
Other payables, accruals and provisions HhfEFRIE  FESTE A
e it 29 43,730 31,139
Contract liabilities 586 30 137,940 100,581
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary N —ERRKBARRIE 37(d) - 179
Derivative financial liabilities ThEsmas 23 1,833 6,847
Provision for taxation mIEEsE 57 912
301,582 261,186
Non-current liabilities ERHERE
Other payables HnfE A 29 6,717 =
Deferred income LLH&)\ 31 620 =
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBEE 32 2,150 3,762
9,487 3,762
Total liabilities FEy =N 311,069 264,948
Total equity and liabilities HEEREE 1,159,041 1,001,661
Gan Pei Joo Chuah Choon Bin
Director Director
EE EE
The notes on pages 121 to 232 are an integral part of these $121ZE232BZ MiFAZELEEMBREL

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
n‘7|- I:l* \%gﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;Z20234F 12531 H IFFEZ

Shares
held for
share Share Proposed
Share Share award award Capital Translation Retained final
capital premium* scher?e* reserve” reserve” resernve” profits* dividend* Total
fefn
SRt [&ip o ‘ =
A ke HEZRH BB BAEHE hERE RERA RS st
MYR' OOO MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000
At At A+ At A+ At A+ At
7 |:| E4=) N E4=) E4=1 E4=) E4=1 E4=) E4=
[note 26) {note 27) [note 27) [note 13)
(tkos) (ator) (tskor) (t13)
As at 1 January 2022 1202251518 12,340 80,650 (4,269) 2,266 44477 56 475,457 25,766 636,743
Transactions with owners: AREEANRS |
Purchase of shares for share award  SERR(AREITBIBERG
scheme (%) (es) \ _ _ (13,865) _ _ _ _ _ (13,865)
Equity-settied share award scheme  WBEAEHR{HRE:HE
expenses %I i, M) - - - 7574 - - - - 7574
Vsting of shares of share award FRERNRE:HENRN
scheme (9 Es) - - 6,656 (6,134) - - (622) - -
= = 7209 1440 = = (522) = 6291)
Profit for the year ERiaf = - - - - - 133,301 - 133,301
Other comprehensive income Hth2EkE - - - - - (136) = = (138)
Total comprehensive income ERRANEERE
for the year . . . . . (136) 133301 . 133165
2021 final dividend approved BHANIERERE
ke 136) {130 _ - - - _ - (1,138) (25,766) (26,904)
2022 final divicend proposed BE00ERHERE
(roe 13) (#8130 _ _ _ _ _ _ (07,143) 27,143 _
As at 31 December 2022 1420225128310 12,340 80,650 (11,478) 3,706 44477 (80) 579,955 27,143 736,713
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MREEmEER

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

Shares
held for
share Share Proposed
Share Share award award Statutory Capital  Translation Retained final
capital premium* schem1e' reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* dividend* Total
i
) LR |17, o A . 2 N
Bx  ROGEE FEzZRM  REBEE  AEHE  EsEf REEE ROEN KBRS act
MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR’000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000
FeE <35 FeE FeE ¢35 <35 FeE FeE 25 FeE
(note 26) (note 27) (note 27) (note 27) (note 13)
Oizs) ez in) ez ie)
As at 1 January 2023 120231510 12,340 80,650 (11,478) 3,706 - 44,477 (80) 579,955 27,143 736,713
Transactions with owners: BREANRS .
Purchase of shares for share  BER{} 42 Ehct BIEE B RR1D
award scheme (<% his) - - (12,336) - - - - - - (12,336)
Equity-settled share award ~ MWIEG A BRIR{ B33
scheme expenses et fis; i) - - - 8,872 - - - - - 8,872
Vesting of shares of share HERMREENRA
award scheme (%I (es) - - 8,801 (8,634) - - - (257) - -
Transfers to statutory reserve ~ EEEZEHE - - - - 454 - - (454) - -
- - (3,445) 28 454 - - ) - (3.464)
Profit for the year FRiER - - - - - - - 142,233 - 142,233
Other comprehensive income ~ Eftt2El - - - - - - 47 - - 47
Total comprehensive income ~ ER2ENEAE
for the year - - - - - - 47 142,233 - 142,280
2022 final dividend approved Bt #X2022E K MRS
e 3] i) - - - - - - - @4 ey s
2023 final dividend proposed ~ B#2023F KBRS
(note 13(a) (13 - _ - - - _ - (29,443) 20,443 -
As at 31 December 2023 12023%127310 12,340 80,650 (14,923) 3,944 454 44417 (33) 691,620 29,443 847,972
* The total of these balances of MYR835,632,000 (2022: MYR724,373,000)  * 2R B 4B 38835,632,0009 F (20224 !
represents “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial position. 724,373,000 &) e BB R RN TEEHE

The notes on pages 121 to 232 are an integral part of these 121:t282§2f9ﬁ.:£%n/<ﬁ LR GEE T

consolidated financial statements. A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

BRERE

n‘7r\

2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes MYR’000 MYR’000
iz F<H *E
Cash flows from operating activities REFHMEENRERE
Profit before taxation PRI A=A 143,107 134,758
Adjustments for: U T RIEETHE .
Amortisation of intangible assets B E S 9 4,423 3,082
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE 1 i iy 9 420 145
Depreciation of property, MEERREITE 9
plant and equipment 10,787 5,350
Waiver of other payable R H e (I =UIE 9 - (4,780)
Gain on disposal of property, HEWE - HE B R IR 9
plant and equipment - (58)
Loss on disposal of interest in an associate i Ig’%; FHE A BN 9
515 26 =
(Gain)/Loss from changes in fair value of SNEZIAENRAFEED 9
foreign currency forward contracts (W) /518 (6,909) 7,604
Gain on disposal of other investments HE /\1’@& G 9 (17) (1)
(Gain)/Loss from changes in fair value of HhE R FEED 9
other investments (W &) /E518 (12) 16
Interest expenses FERX 8 - 87
Bank interest income IR1TF B 145(7\ 6 (9,967) (5,205)
Inventory written down — addition EEMR—ARE 9 869 245
Inventory written down — reversal FE MR —# D] 9 (214) (102)
ECL allowance on trade receivables B2 ERIENTERES 9
BERE 486 1,910
Reversal of ECL allowance on B[O 8 5 W IBR TBHAE 9
trade receivables BB EE (1,627) (6,708)
Provision for warranty REE R EH 9 2,499 1,515
Reversal of provision for warranty BEREE B EE 9 (1,515) (1,256)
Property, plant and equipment written off YD ~ S B 5% B 8 9 4 -
Intangible assets written off mAC B EME 9 3 -
Share of results of associates = YNCIES 19 (41) 1,636
Equity-settled share award Mg mE IR % 2R 5T 8
scheme expenses B 8,872 7,574
Unrealised loss on foreign exchange 9I\E5E BIRE518 556 829
Operating profit before working EEESTEHFIKZ RN
capital changes 151,750 146,627
Increase in inventories FEEM (20,329) (99,071)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and B 5 & AW ERIE
other receivables L (Eh0) 59,297 (61,853)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and =] % T ELfhFE (S 718
other payables L) 1 (9,008) 41,870
Increase in contract liabilities 72’]%1 A 37,359 36,429
Net change in a fellow subsidiary’s balance —F'? EENESE -
FER (55) 196
Cash generated from operations EERIRE 219,014 64,198
Government grants received B UL AT # B 620 =
Interests paid BAFHE = (87)
Tax paid [SEREE] (3,167) (4,410)
Tax refunded R[EIIRIE 284 246
Net cash from operating activities S T E T 2 FEE 216,751 59,947
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

A HLE=
FeIRERE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes MYR’000 MYR’000
Mk F<5F *E
Cash flows from investing activities KREGFHEENRERE
Bank interest received BUERITHI B 9,967 5,205
Purchase of intangible assets HBERTEE (5,635) (4,106)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB Y% « B k& (102,466) (40,562)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, EEME - BEMREZ
plant and equipment BfiEse (13,612) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BB M&EE
plant and equipment Frig=RI8 = 58
Proceeds from disposal of other HEHEMKEMMEHRIE
investments 78 292
Acquisition of other investments WEEEMIEE = (127)
Proceed from disposal of investment HER—BHEATNKREN
in an associate Frigsr1a 19 7 =
Proceeds from redeemable convertible RE—EEE A B ELE 8
preference shares of an associate BB SRR 1S FIE 2,500 =
Advance to fellow subsidiaries EIEEX N EPNCIEEN (1,351) =
Net cash used in investing activities REZBATHIIE L FEE (110,512) (39,240)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEHEENRERE
Advance from ultimate holding company TR RRIER A BFRIE 2 14
Repayment of bank borrowing EEIRITTENR - (2,565)
Dividend paid to owners of the Company BN EAATEE AKRE 13(b) (27,557) (26,904)
Purchase of shares for share award scheme %15 2B 5T 288 B IG5 (12,336) (13,865)
Net cash used in financing activities B E BT BB A (39,891) (43,320)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and HERREEEYIEMm
cash equivalents GRZ) $EE 66,348 (22,613)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FE#IRE KIS EEY
of the year 328,628 349,959
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes TS ElhfE 821 1,282
Cash and cash equivalents FEXRRAEKXREEEY
at the end of the year 25 395,797 328,628

The notes on pages 121 to 232 are an integral part of these $121E232B T AR L ESMBERER

BISRERA— BB 5D ©

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pentamaster International Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12 June 2017 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Act. The address of its registered office is Maples Corporate
Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104 Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place
of business is Plot 18 & 19, Technoplex, Medan Bayan Lepas,
Taman Perindustrian Bayan Lepas, Phase IV, 11900 Penang,
Malaysia.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
on 19 January 2018.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally engaged
n () designing, development and manufacturing of standard
and non-standard automated test equipment; (i) designing,
development and installation of integrated factory automation
solutions; and (i) manufacturing and assembling of medical
machines and manufacturing of die casting parts.

The Company’s immediate holding company is Pentamaster
Corporation Berhad (“PCB”), a company incorporated in
Malaysia with its shares listed on the Main Market of Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad. The directors regard PCB as the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

These consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 22 February 2024.

—RRE

REGERZERBRERAR (TERE) 1
2017F6B12BRIBE AT AN K28
Edfmius—HERRERAR
H 5T 9 = = ik Z3Maples Corporate
Services Limited, PO Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman lIslands > I 2 & 2 30 2t it
#APlot 18 & 19, Technoplex, Medan
Bayan Lepas, Taman Perindustrian
Bayan Lepas, Phase IV, 11900 Penang,
Malaysia ©

KABRINIR2018FE1 8190 T & Bk
EXRZFAARAE (TBAZAT)) £ E
,——Eo

ARB R/ —BHREZERATRENE
NE (B IEER) TERE(R
MEMRERERIFTEEFSLEA
B ()R- AERTEERTHA
BEMRA R ; KBS R AR BRI
W BUS BR S

KA BN BEZIER A B BPentamaster
Corporation Berhad (TPCBJ) » —f5?
BERADEMRINAR ERGINE
RAGREEXZMERTHB LH-ES
HAPCBA AR ABNRAER AT

R2024FE2822H » B ERI W HE A
T8 E2023F12A31HEEE 4
EMBERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY
2.1 Basis of preparation

2. RREERBAGEER

21 REUEE

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) which collective term
includes all applicable individual IFRSs, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the
“IASB”).

The consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance and include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing
Rules”).

The material accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or
amended IFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed in
note 3.

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for derivative
financial instruments, other investments in equity
securities and investment in redeemable convertible
preference shares which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the accounting
policies below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Ringgit Malaysia (“MYR”), which is the functional
currency of the Company and most of its subsidiaries,
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousands
(“MYR’000”), except when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) made up to 31 December each
year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity, only
substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the Group
and others) are considered.

2. RREERBAGEE (@)

21

2.2

mNEE (B
HEMBERREERAZSS
(Te&F1) 29 EFRBER
BIREREOWERABDHINES
KoMAATHEHBERERER
WT U (T35 ESEEH
EFRIN o

AR MRESMBRKRE
ERTEHEFRBR -BEZ
EHEEBEEEHEMNSEHK
TENRIPT A R # B 1 H - B R4S
RUEBHNZFMEET I RE
EHFENEBEN S ENE BR
RERESHHEEMHHREMS B
BRIV ERBRMIEES

HEEE
REMBRREERAAKRAN
BAw B ITAEE) BESTF
12831 HIEM k= o

MEABDIEAEERZEHNER-
HAEEERSRERFBIES
E#HAERBNZAERN A5
BRENZERZENZEZS
E# AAERNZBRAEEH
B-RAGAERRSHZER
BAERAOR EEERZERA
HHEEEN (BrEEKREMA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

2. RREERBAGEE (B

22 FEEE (@)

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from
the date it gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on sales of intra-
group asset are reversed on consolidation, the underlying
asset is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements
of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to
ensure consistency with the accounting policies adopted
by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in
a disposal group. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes
in consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable costs
of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the end of reporting period. All dividends
whether received out of the investee’'s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company'’s profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFEEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.3 Associates 23 HEAT

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control of those
policies.

In the consolidated financial statements, an investment
in an associate is initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying
amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment
as part of the investment. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the
date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group,
plus any costs directly attributable to the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the determination of the
Group’s share of the associate’s profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

BMEATARTEEHRHEBREFEX
TEINBERE -BEATENNZ
BWKRERNR Y B REEBERR
TE BRI 3 H FEHEFI A F BR
ByRES] -

EEEMBRET RBEAF
WREBEN SRR HBR
REmAAR WERABE L
& BB AL P IR B HA PR R 5T & B
ERENAHNEE-BREAK
REBENATFENTEAHES
EXAEE BESFARENIK
HE TEAREN—MIFEH
MEF G BN AR ZER
PR FTHIEE FREE I AIERN
BR URFAEEBHETED T
BERNRATERE ZMREER
FEAE B E R B A 51 8 - BT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFHEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.3 Associates (Continued) 2.3 HEAT (@)

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in
a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). The
profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate for
the year, including any impairment loss on the investment
in associate recognised for the year. The Group’s other
comprehensive income for the year includes its share of
the associate’s other comprehensive income for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the associate. Where unrealised losses on
assets sales between the Group and its associate are
reversed on equity accounting, the underlying asset is
also tested for impairment from the Group’s perspective.
Where the associate uses accounting policies other than
those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances, adjustments are made, where
necessary, to conform the associate’s accounting policies
to those of the Group when the associate’s financial
statements are used by the Group in applying the equity
method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.3 Associates (Continued)

2. RREERBAGEE (@)

23 BERTE (@

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
in the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s other
long-term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate, after applying
the ECL model to such other long-term interests where
applicable.

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in its associate. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group determines whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in associate is impaired. If
such indications are identified, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between
the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate and its
carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate, including cash flows arising
from the operations of the associate and the proceeds on
ultimate disposal of the investment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.4 Property, plant and equipment

2. RREERBAGEE (B
24 ME - -BERRE

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress as described below) are initially recognised
at acquisition cost and/or manufacturing cost (including
any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by the Group’s
management). They are subsequently stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss and is classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Construction in progress is not depreciated until the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Buildings on leasehold land
HELDHiEF

Machineries and equipment
e

Furniture, fittings and office equipment
R EERMAERE
Computers

B

Electrical installation
BREE

Motor vehicles

i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.4

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Estimates of residual value and useful life are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land

“Leasehold land” represents the upfront payment for
long-term land lease in which the payment can be
reliably measured. It is stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the
term of the lease/right-of-use except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived by the Group from use of the land.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFHEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.6 Goodwill 26 HE

Set out below are the accounting policies on goodwill
arising on acquisition of a subsidiary. Accounting for
goodwill arising on acquisition of interest in an associate
is set out in note 2.3.

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised
as an asset at the date that control is acquired (the
acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as the excess
of the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests
in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and
is tested annually for impairment (see note 2.8).

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of gain or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFEEERSAGHEE @)

ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.7 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

2.7 BREE (BEMRIN

Acquired intangible assets are recognised initially at cost.
After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided
on straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Amortisation commences when the intangible assets are
available for use. The following useful lives are applied:

Development expenditure

EEMAZ

Computer software
BB

Technical know-how

FERM

The assets’ amortisation methods and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

Intangible assets are tested for impairment as described
below in note 2.8.

Research and development expenditure
Research expenditure on internal projects is recognised
as an expense when it is incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised as development expenditure when
the Group can demonstrate:

S the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

- its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFHEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.7 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

2.7 EREE BERIN (@)

(Continued)

Research and development expenditure
(Continued)

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised as development expenditure when
the Group can demonstrate: (Continued)

its ability to use or sell the intangible assets;

- the asset will generate probable economic benefits
through internal use or sale;

- the availability of technical, financial and other
resources to complete the project; and

- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development.

Development costs which do not meet these criteria are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Capitalised development costs comprise direct
attributable costs incurred for development. Capitalised
development costs, considered to have finite useful
lives, are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Development
costs are amortised using the straight-line basis over
the commercial lives of the underlying products from
the commencement of the commercialisation of the
products.

The amortisation period and method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that the expected
useful lives of the assets are consistent with previous
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of
the future economic benefits embodied in the items of
intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFEEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.7 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

2.7 EWEE @ERIN (@)

(Continued)

Computer software

The cost of computer software licences are capitalised as
an intangible asset. Costs include their purchase prices
and any directly attributable costs of preparing the assets
for their intended use. These costs are amortised on a
straight line basis over the period the asset is expected to
generate economic benefits.

Cost associated with developing computer software
programs that will generate probable future economic
benefits from the use thereof are recognised as intangible
assets. Costs comprised all directly attributable
development costs including an appropriate portion of
relevant overheads. Computer software development
cost is amortised when the asset is available for use over
the period the asset is expected to generate economic
benefits.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how acquired in a business combination
are recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
They have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the expected life of these intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFHEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

28 FEERMEERE

The following assets are subject to impairment testing:

° Goodwill arising on acquisition of a subsidiary;

o Intangible assets;

° Property, plant and equipment;

° Interests in associates;

° Leasehold land; and

The Company'’s interests in subsidiaries.

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful life or
those not yet available for use are tested for impairment
at least annually, irrespective of whether there is any
indication that they are impaired. All other assets are
tested for impairment whenever there are indications that
the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFEEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

28 FEEMEERE (B

(Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). As a result, some assets are tested individually
for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from
synergies of the related business combination and
represent the lowest level within the group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose
and not be larger than an operating segment.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units,
to which goodwill has been allocated, are credited
initially to the carrying amount of goodwill. Any remaining
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in
the cash generating unit, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less cost of disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s
recoverable amount and only to the extent that the
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less all estimated costs to
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Cost of inventories are determined on first-in, first-out
basis.

The cost of inventories includes expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories and other costs incurred in
bringing them to their existing location and condition. In
the case of finished goods and work-in-progress, cost
includes direct materials, direct labour and attributable
production overheads.

Financial instruments

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,
cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFEEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

210 EWITA (@

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at the
transaction price in accordance with IFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers”, all financial assets
are initially measured at fair value, in case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“‘FVTPL”),
plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets, other than those designated and
effective as hedging instruments, are classified into the
following categories:
- amortised cost;

- FVTPL; or

- fair value through other comprehensive income.

The classification is determined by both:

- the entity’s business model for managing the
financial asset; and

- the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within
finance costs, other income or other financial items,
except for ECL of trade and other receivables which is
presented as separate item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFHEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

210 R THE @

Financial assets (Continued) ETHEE (@)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets ETHEENEE]E
Debt investments BERE

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

- they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect
its contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in other income
in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect
of discounting is immaterial. The Group’s cash and cash
equivalents, amounts due from ultimate holding company
and fellow subsidiaries and trade and other receivables
fall into this category of financial instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that are held within a different business
model other than ‘hold to collect’ or ‘hold to collect and
sell’ are categorised at FVTPL. Further, irrespective of
business model, financial assets whose contractual cash
flows are not solely payments of principal and interest
are accounted for at FVTPL. All derivative financial
instruments fall into this category, except for those
designated and effective as hedging instruments, for
which the hedge accounting requirements under IFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” (“IFRS 9”) apply.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFEEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.10 Financial instruments (Continued) 210 £RIT A (@)

Financial assets (Continued)

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Equity investments

Investments in equity securities and redeemable
convertible preference shares are classified as FVTPL.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
and redeemable convertible preference shares are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established. Dividends are
included in the “other income” in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include amount due
to fellow subsidiaries, trade and other payables and
derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, and,
where applicable, adjusted for transaction costs unless
the Group designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

Subsequently, financial liabilities are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method except
for derivatives which are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships and financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at
fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in
an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or loss
are included in finance costs or other income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.10 Financial instruments (Continued)

2.11

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
liabilities (Continued)

Amount due to fellow subsidiaries and trade and other
payables

Amount due to fellow subsidiaries and trade and other
payables are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments
Details of accounting policy of derivative financial
instruments are set out in note 2.11.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
the derivative contract is entered and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.11

212

Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a
financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair
value is recognised as a financial liability. A derivative is
presented as a non-current asset or a non-current liability
if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than
12 months and it is not expected to be realised or settled
within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as
current assets or current liabilities.

The Group has not designated any derivatives as hedging
instruments.

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9’s impairment requirements use forward-looking
information to recognise ECL - the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included loans and other
debt-type financial assets measured at amortised cost
and trade receivables.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including past events, current conditions, reasonable
and supportable forecasts that affect the expected

collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFHEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 212 TREERE @)

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is
made between:

- financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
or that have low (“Stage 1”) and

- financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial recognition
and whose credit risk is not low (“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the end of reporting period.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category
while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2
category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

Trade receivables

For trade receivables, loss allowances for trade
receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs by using a simplified approach. The Group
determines the ECLs on these financial assets collectively
using a provision matrix with appropriate groupings. Both
provision matrix is based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors and an assessment of both the current and
forecast general economic conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and

the days past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFEEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued) 212 SREERE @)
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost HithEmEEREHERAHE
The Group measures the loss allowance for other A& B EEH B AW IER R K
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there EREETEMN1I2EANEREERS
has been a significant increase in credit risk since BORIFBV BRI EEERR
initial recognition, in which case the Group recognises RIEIE N FELLE R T » A EEE
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL REeEREERIB - 2R ER
should be recognised is based on significant increase RePREPEEEENTERE
in the likelihood or risk of default occurring since initial R BEEESURELELND
recognition. BEME S B FR RV REE L N -
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased A BRI B EERARZE
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares SREEBLENR AEBERKRSH
the risk of a default occurring on the financial assets RAEMBEEREEBONRREY
at the end of reporting period with the risk of default R EBREMEEENRRE
occurring on the financial assets at the date of initial TSR - TR EITEI T REEE
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group EECEBIIRFNEENTES
considers both quantitative and qualitative information EE O SRELKBMAIREMEE
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical E ERBLSHMATE LA
experience and forward-looking information that is ER-

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into BRI TEFGHEERMESHE
account when assessing whether credit risk has EEME > gERUTER !

increased significantly:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in - EMIBSNA WER) IR
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or EBIE EFT AR B R FAEREE
internal credit rating; EZ21;

- significant deterioration in external market -  EERBEBNINTISIEERE
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in ER2b AUEERNZ KIS
the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for BN BEBEANEEENERE
the debtor; HABH ;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFHEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.12 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

212 EMEERE @)

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly: (Continued)

- existing or forecast adverse changes in regulatory,
business, financial, economic conditions, or
technological environment that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations; and

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk at the end of each
reporting period. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if it has a low risk of default, the borrower
has strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and adverse changes in
economic and business conditions in the longer term
may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulffill its contractual cash flow obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

212

213

2.14

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when (i) information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the Group); or (i) the financial asset is 365 days
past due.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost are set out in note 38.2.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised
if the Group has an unconditional right to receive
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. In such cases, a corresponding receivable

would also be recognised.

Provisions and warranty costs

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.14

215

Provisions and warranty costs (Continued)
Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Provision for warranty costs is made in respect of goods
sold and still under warranty at the end of the reporting
period based on the terms of warranty and historical
claim experience.

Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of goods and

rendering of services.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group
follows a 5-step process:

1. ldentifying the contract with a customer
2. ldentifying the performance obligations
38 Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

5.  Recognising revenue when/as performance
obligation(s) are satisfied
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFEEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.15 Revenue recognition (Continued) 215 UNzshEsR (48)

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts
collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or
services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than 12 months, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the effective
interest method. Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing benefit
to the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

Sales of equipment

Revenue from sale of equipment usually includes the
customised system/equipment and installation. The sale
of the customised system/equipment and installation
service are considered as one performance obligation
because the promises to transfer customised system/
equipment and provide installation service are not
capable of being distinct and they are highly interrelated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFHEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.15 Revenue recognition (Continued) 215 UnzhEsD (48)

Sales of equipment (Continued)

Revenue is recognised upon shipment or at delivery
destination point, provided that the product meets
the performance acceptance criteria. Under certain
circumstances, customer acceptance is conducted
at customer’s site i.e. to ensure that the equipment
purchased can be integrated with the customer’s existing
production flow. Under such circumstance, revenue is
only recognised once customer acceptance has been
received at customer’s site.

The Group considers whether there are other promises
in the contract that are separate performance obligations
to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be
allocated (if any). In determining the transaction price for
the sale of customised system/equipment, the Group
considers the effects of variable consideration, the
existence of significant financing components, non-cash
consideration, and consideration payable to the customer
(if any).

Revenue from rendering of services
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when
services are rendered.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying
amount of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.16

217

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits
Wages, salaries, bonuses and social security
contributions are recognised as an expense in the
financial year in which the associated services are
rendered by employees of the Group. Short term
accumulating compensated absences such as
paid annual leave are recognised when services are
rendered by employees that increase their entitlement
to future compensated absences, and short term non-
accumulating compensated absences such as sick leave
are recognised when the absences occur.

Defined contribution plans

As required by law, companies in Malaysia make
contributions to the national pension scheme, the
Employee Provident Fund (‘EPF”). Such contributions are
recognised as an expense as incurred.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operate
in China are required to participate in the central scheme
operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiary is required to contribute certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. Such
contributions are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Share-based employee compensation
The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the fair value of the equity instruments granted. This
fair value is appraised at the grant date and excludes
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
performance conditions).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFREERTBAETHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.17 Share-based employee compensation

217 URIPHERZHE (8

(Continued)

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting
conditions apply, or recognised as an expense in full
at the grant date when the equity instruments granted
vest immediately with a corresponding increase in the
“Share award reserve” in equity. If vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of equity instruments that are expected to become
exercisable. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there
is any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates. Any
adjustment to cumulative share-based compensation
resulting from a revision is recognised in the current
period. The number of vested options ultimately
exercised by holders does not impact the expense
recorded in any period.

For the share award scheme, the Group purchase its
own shares through the trustee of the share award
scheme from the open market for the shares to be
vested under the share award scheme. The shares
purchased by the Group that are not yet vested for this
share award scheme were recorded as “Shares held for
share award scheme” as a deduction under equity. Upon
vesting of the awarded shares, the related costs of the
purchased shares are reduced from the “Shares held for
share award scheme”, and the related fair value of the
awarded shares are debited to share award reserve with
the difference charged/credited to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL 2. GFEEERSAGHEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.18 Income tax 218 FR151R

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable
on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liability method,
providing for temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the statement
of financial position and their tax bases. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences.

Deferred tax is not recognised for temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of goodwill, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that
is not a business combination and that affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied
to the temporary differences when they reverse, based
on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by
the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and
liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.18

2.19

2.20

Income tax (Continued)

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised.

Unutilised reinvestment allowance and investment tax
allowance, being tax incentives that is not a tax base of
an asset, is recognised as a deferred tax asset to the
extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will
be available to set-off against the unutilised tax incentive.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
for their decisions about resources allocation to the
Group’s business components and for their review of
the performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major product and service lines.

Structured entity

The Group controls a structured entity, the trust
constituted by the trust deed, which is set up solely for
the purpose of purchasing, administering and holding
the Company’s shares for an employees’ share award
scheme (see note 2.17). As the Group has the power
to direct the relevant activities of the trust and it has
the ability to use its power over the trust to affect its
exposure to returns, the assets and liabilities of trust
are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position and the Company’s shares held by the trust are
presented as a deduction in equity as “Shares held for
share award scheme”.

152 © PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED &% ZEI R B R A F

2. RREERBAGEE (B

218

219

220

FrigHt (8@

fisl BT BE B A 2R P ER A0 e A1) BJ A X
MIERER ARBELERE
BEE-EERREENSRSH
RETRS HEBRRBEES
BE e SRR LUDRE

fis BT BE B AR 2R B ER M0 s A1) B AR IS
WA ARNBER XA
BRERGRKERRRE R
FEERBENNTIZE) BADDHE
JERIBRE FE

DEBERE
FEETEHRAANITESRS AE
MHEER UBREMAERE
ﬁ‘”ﬁﬁ)‘&ﬁﬂﬁﬁ’ﬂiﬁfﬁﬁﬂf’ﬁ?ﬁ’
DU (48 5 1 5 5% 5 4B B BB 0 BY
KE MAEBREBEZFER
BNEEDHRERDEER -
MHTEFRENANEHBFER
MEBFBERBOHBRBERAEERN
FEEMRRBREE

ERNER

FERZER -RHEBEER -5
ERERBERZIEE HRIE
MEEEREERMNEREE
B -BEAFEXATRN BHE
fizE2.17) - AR AL BB RIET
ZIEFERVEREE YA NY
ZESTEEENZEHEEHHN
B A AILZEENEER
BRFAGGHBERIET MH
ZESFENERATRMAZS]
R nRNERFEFAEZR
PIB9 R



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)

2.21 Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group. A related party transaction is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the Group
and its related party, regardless of whether a price is
charged. A party is considered to be related to the Group
if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of a parent of the Group, or the
Group.

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY (Continued)
2.21 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies: (Continued)

(iv)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly-controlled by
a person identified in (a) above.

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those

family members who may be expected to influence,

or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

ADOPTION OF AMENDED IFRSs 3. FRAMER(ETEIPRIA SRS 2R
Amended IFRSs that are effective for annual 712023518 1H MR EHARE
period beginning on 1 January 2023 MRV EEF TR PR B 53R S 25 B
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time RAFEE  AEEEERERAUTHE
the following amended IFRSs issued by the IASB, which REstENEEgEM BAEEEE
are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective for the 18R BN AEER2023F181HE
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the annual period BN EFERBZFEMBRRERND
beginning on 1 January 2023: RIESTRIPR A Bl 2R
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies EileS= el WG ETHER
and IFRS Practice FE1R R ER
Statement 2 M E4ERE
BATHE2R.
(BT =)
Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates Bl Sl BEHMETNER
L ACHEN)
Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets BREst&EAE REE—XXZMNE
and Liabilities arising from a 125% (B5T4%) EXREENERE
Single Transaction IRIERR IR
Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform — Pillar B g ERE BERRBENE -
Two model Rules 1257 (BET 4) TiRAEA
Except for those mentioned below, the adoption of the PR SCFLE Sh - BRI AEE ST PR AT 25
amended IFRSs had no material impact on how the results and RERR L RE R RAZ2ISHE K
financial position for the current and prior periods have been BEMENERRMBERRZGNE
prepared and presented. EERRE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

ADOPTION OF AMENDED IFRSSs (Continued)

Amended IFRSs that are effective for annual
period beginning on 1 January 2023 (Continued)

3.1

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS

1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 “Disclosure of
Accounting Policies”

The amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose
material accounting policy information instead of
significant accounting policies in its financial statements.
Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The amendments
also provide some guidance on how material policy
information are being identified and provide some
examples of when accounting policy information is likely
to be material.

In February 2021, the IASB issued IFRS Practice
Statement 2 “Making Materiality Judgements” to provide
entities with non-mandatory guidance on how to make
materiality judgements when preparing their general
purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS.
IFRS Practice Statement 2 was subsequently revised
to provide guidance and examples on how to apply the
concept of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments to IAS 1 are applied by the Group
on 1 January 2023 and are applied prospectively. The
amendments have no impact on the Group’s financial
positions and performance but has affected the
accounting policies disclosures as set out in note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

ADOPTION OF AMENDED IFRSs (Continued)

Amended IFRSs that are effective for annual
period beginning on 1 January 2023 (Continued)

3.2

Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 12
Income Taxes International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
model Rules

Amendments to IAS 12 introduce a mandatory temporary
exception from the recognition and disclosure of deferred
taxes arising from the implementation of the Pillar Two
model rules published by the Organisation for Economic
Co-operation and Development. The amendments
also introduce disclosure requirements for the affected
entities to help users of the financial statements better
understand the entities’ exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes, including the disclosure of current tax related to
Pillar Two income taxes separately in the periods when
Pillar Two legislation is effective and the disclosure of
known or reasonably estimable information of their
exposure to Pillar Two income taxes in periods in which
the legislation is enacted or substantively enacted but not
yet in effect. Since the Group did not fall within the scope
of the Pillar Two model rules, the amendments did not
have any impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

ADOPTION OF AMENDED IFRSs (Continued)
Issued but not yet effective IFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial
statements, certain amended IFRSs have been published but
are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the
Group.

Amendments to IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback!

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current!

Amendments to IAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants'

Amendments to IAS 7
and IFRS 7

Supplier Finance
Arrangements'

Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability?

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025

8 Effective date not yet determined

The Directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policies for the first period
beginning on or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
The amended IFRSs are not expected to have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are

based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

4.1

4.2

Critical accounting judgements

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of goods and rendering of service are
recognised at a point in time when control of the goods
is transferred and service is rendered to the customer.
The management has made judgements in identifying
the performance obligations and estimating the point
of revenue recognition under different contractual
agreements.

The details of revenue recognised during the years ended
31 December 2023 and 2022 are disclosed in note 5.

Estimation uncertainty

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below:
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. FRAfRest(hst R HEr (&)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

42 fHEtREERR (8

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs an impairment review as and
when there are impairment indicators to ensure that
the carrying amount of non-financial assets, including
property, plant and equipment, leasehold land and
intangible assets do not exceed their recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount represents the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash generating units to which the assets
belongs. Therefore, in arriving at the recoverable amount,
management exercises judgement in estimating the
future cash flows, growth rate, product life cycle and
discount rate. The carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment, leasehold land and intangible assets as
at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are disclosed in notes
14, 15 and 17, respectively. No impairment losses were
provided for property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and intangible assets during the years ended 31
December 2023 and 2022.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. In estimating net realisable values,
management takes into account the most reliable
evidence available at the time the estimate is made.
Possible changes in these estimates could result in
revisions to the valuations of inventories. The carrying
amount of inventories as at 31 December 2023 and 2022
are disclosed in note 20.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. FRAfResthst R HEr (&)
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
4.2 Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

42 fEFFFHEERZE (&)

Provision for ECL of trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECL for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and
ECL involves significant estimates. The amount of ECL
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
be different from customer’s actual default in the future,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and credit losses in the periods in which such
estimate has been changed.

The carrying amount of trade receivables as at 31
December 2023 and 2022 and details of movement in
ECL of trade receivables during the current and prior
years are disclosed in note 21.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. SEHERDIPHRE

5.1 Revenue 51 W
The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in note 1 REBNFEEBNZERGH
to these consolidated financial statements. The Group’s BHRRMF1IARE KEBRFE
revenue from external customers recognised during the W BIIMNBELHW ST

year is as follows:

2023 2022
2023 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F25F Ea=i

Invoiced value of goods sold less returns EEERNEZEERES
and discounts K330 679,804 588,377
Service rendered BRI 12,046 12,210
691,850 600,587
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

5. EXRFERDEHRS (B

5.1 Revenue (Continued) 5.1 W (48)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with AIFEREHNE
customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods KEBMUTEEE RFNER
and services at a point in time in the following major R RRE P EERE
product lines:
2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EH *aE
Automated test equipment BEiCiRl R &
— Automotive —[E8 324,095 245,634
— Semiconductor —EfE 98,147 83,622
— Electro-Optical —8B 28,828 79,793
— Consumer and industrial products —HERATEER 1,184 1,654
— Medical devices — B RS - 10,013
452,254 420,716
Factory automation solutions ITHREECEBRAER
— Medical devices —BEEes 148,197 74,568
— Consumer and industrial products —HEREIXER 43,968 58,086
— Electro-Optical —BX 36,487 37,616
- Automotive —A8 5,297 9,222
— Semiconductor — ¥ EfE 5,647 379
239,596 179,871
691,850 600,587
Timing of revenue recognition W 25 B 5% BF
— At a point in time SRR 691,850 600,587
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. EEBEROIHE @)

(Continued)
5.2 Segment information 52 HEPEE

The Group has two operating segments which are KEFBAMELEDE - kA

involved in different activities and are managed by EEs HEERAEERBHNTE

segment managers who report directly to the Group’s EFRENDTRLEEE -KED

executive directors. The operating segments are as A

follows:

() Automated test Designing, development () BENEiAl Rt -BERE

equipment: and manufacturing of B BREERIEE

standard and non-standard #B8F1b®
automated equipment. fi o

(i) Factory automation Designing, development and (i) TREEE &t -HEERE

solutions: installation of integrated RRFZ . HERBEHE
factory automation solutions. BUEHRIR T
=

Inter-segment transactions have been accounted for on DEERXZOAREEERE

a basis that is consistent with the Group’s accounting HEsTHE—K

policies.

Investment holding and other activities are not KREZRKREMEELIERRA

considered as operating segment and the related REDEEMEBEPMBERBEF A

financial information has been included under MEAEIIET o

“Adjustment”.

The Group’s executive directors monitor the performance KREBRTESHRADPEIR

of the operating segments through regular discussions AEHBETRERABEER

held with the segment managers and review of internal EEEKEINRIF % e

management reports. The performance of each operating DERRIFIRIE D BB R EITHT

segment is evaluated based on the segment’s profit or fio

loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7|-\ j Fiﬁ%lﬁjéi

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(Continued)

5.2 Segment information (Continued)

5. EXRFERDEHRS (B

52 SERER (4

Factory
Automated automation
test equipment solutions Adjustment Total
BEt IHEEE
B S HE st
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
<5 <5 FL5 L5
Year ended 31 December 2023 £ E2023F12A31HILEE
Revenue Wz
External customers IEBER 452,254 239,596 691,850
Inter-segment revenue DERE G 538 15,943 (16,481) -
Total revenue Rl 452,792 255,539 691,850
Results £
Segment results DERELE 99,897 52,662 (19,460) 133,099
Interest income FIEURA 9,102 862 3 9,967
Share of results of associates - UNSES - - - M 41
Profit before taxation PRIRAI A 108,999 53,524 143,107
Taxation GiTaE| (2,363) 1,490 (1) (874)
Profit for the year FEREF) 106,636 55,014 142,233
Assets BE
Segment assets DEHEE 562,989 334,907 (152,400) 745,496
Interests in associates RS AR - - 17,578 17,578
Other investments Htnig & - - 170 170
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY 347,669 39,258 8,870 395,797
Total assets BEE 910,658 374,165 1,159,041
Liabilities &
Segment liabilities AHEE 256,046 196,586 (143,770) 308,862
Provision for taxation MIBRE 53 4 57
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE - 2,150 2,150
Total liabilities maf 256,099 198,740 311,069
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

5. EXBFERDEHRS (B
52 SEEK (@)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
5.2 Segment information (Continued)

Factory
Automated automation
test equipment solutions Adjustment Total
Bt IREH
WRRE EERAAR AE st
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
FeE FeE <& &
Year ended 31 December 2023 £ ZF20235F12831HILEE
Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE
(other than financial instruments) (2R T AR 2,919 91,207 34,769 128,895
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 6,635 3,518 5,477 15,630
Gain on disposal of other HEHMKEWR
investments - - (17) (17)
ECL allowance on trade receivables & 57 EINRIBTEEE B 518
HE
- addition —HRE 486 - 486
— reversal — g (985) (642) (1,627)
Inventory written down to net WREEZEREE
realisable value
- addition —RE 645 224 869
~ reversal — o] (50) (164) (214)
Gain from changes in fair value SNERIAEH
of foreign currency forward NREEEFNE
contracts (5,068) (1,841) (6,909)
Gain from changes in fair value of ~ E A& EAFLE
other investments 2Ha - - (12) (12)
Net loss on foreign exchange IMNERSIEIFER 11,550 6,142 921 18,613
Provision for warranty RIEERRHE
- addition —RE 1,666 833 2,499
~ reversal —$[o] (1,063) (452) (1,515)
Property, plant and equipment M BE KR B
written off 2 2 4
Intangible assets written off B EEMH 3 - 3
Loss on disposal of interest in HE—BHEARERN
an associate B8 26 - 26
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
5.2 Segment information (Continued)

5. EXBERDEHRS (B
52 SEEK (@)

Factory
Automated automation
test equipment solutions Adjustment Total
BE)E THEEE
1 RIER VS R 45t
MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR’000
At A+ A+ At
Eg=! Ea=I Ea=I Eq=|
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12831ALLEE
Revenue W
External customers SEBE A 420,716 179,871 600,587
Inter-segment revenue DERE G 2,963 2,807 (5,770)
Total revenue Fallgny 423,679 182,678 600,587
Results £
Segment results DEEE 96,832 48,926 (14,482) 131,276
Interest income FIEBIA 4,787 416 2 5,205
Interest expenses FEMX 87) = 87)
Share of results of associates FEEHE R R EE - - (1,636) (1,636)
Profit before taxation PRIRAT A 101,532 49,342 134,758
Taxation G| (1,894) (100) 537 (1,457)
Profit for the year FWEH 99,638 49,242 133,301
Assets BE
Segment assets DHEE 574,522 195,559 (117,337 652,744
Interests in associates N A=UNGILESL S - - 20,070 20,070
Other investments Htnig & 219 219
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREZEYD 266,908 58,389 3,331 328,628
Total assets BEE 841,430 253,948 1,001,661
Liabilities &afE
Segment liabilties DEamE 026,265 129,540 (95,531) 260,274
Provision for taxation RIBEE 900 12 912
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBSE - 3,762 3,762
Total liabilities FOy=L 227,165 133,314 264,948
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 5. EEBEROIHE @)

(Continued)
5.2 Segment information (Continued) 52 SEPERE 4B
Factory
Automated automation
test equipment solutions Adjustment Total
B#t THEEE
AR EYAES HE 4st
MYR’000 MYR'000 MYR'000 MYR’000
5 G G ?FE
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE2022F12831ALLEE
Additions to non-current assets FRBEERE
(other than financial instruments) (BRI ERIN 2,970 11,745 29,953 44,668
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 3,727 3,216 1,634 8,577
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  RERRBRT
plant and equipment (37) (21) (58)
Gain on disposal of other HEH MK E WG
investments - - (15) (15)
ECL allowance on trade receivables & 57 FEURFIETEREEFE
B
- addition —RE 1,851 59 1,910
— reversal — 0] (426) (6,282) (6,708)
Inventory written down to net WREEEEREE
realisable value
- addition —-hE 158 87 245
— reversal —$#[ol (95) 7 (102)
Loss from changes in fair value SMNERIAEH
of foreign currency forward RTEEEHEE
contracts 5,885 1,719 7,604
Loss from changes in fair value of ~ EfiRE AT ELEHEE
other investments = = 16 16
Net loss on foreign exchange IMNERSIBIFER (392) 1,260 112) 756
Provision for warranty REEREE
- addition —RE 1,063 452 1,515
- reversal — 0] (891) (365) (1,256)
Waiver of other payable R EHPEN A - (4,780) (4,780)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
5.2 Segment information (Continued)
Geographical Information

5. EXRFERDEHRS (B

52 SERER (4
HE R

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments)
and deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and
equipment are divided into the following geographical

AEBRRBIISEFHRTRE
FERBEE (ZRTARIN R
BYME - BERRBENRESD
LT -

areas:

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

REIINSBE R E FERBEE
2023 2022 2023 2022
2023%F 20224 2023F 20227
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
F<&E °E FL& °E
Malaysia (domicile) BT (M) 208,346 139,990 338,351 211,572
China i 142,978 202,487 603 516
United States EE 102,172 61,641 3 9
Vietnam ] 69,362 40,282 - -
Belize B %% 55,127 34,621 - -
Taiwan = 28,081 24,251 - -
Japan BA 23,054 28,712 61 86
Singapore 0 22,701 34,955 - =
Republic of Ireland ERREEME 18,007 10,811 - =
France A 8,614 - =
Others Hth 13,408 22,837 48 -
691,850 600,587 339,066 212,183

The geographical location of customers is based on
the location at which the services were provided or the
goods were delivered. The geographical location of the
non-current assets is based on the physical location of
the asset in case of property, plant and equipment and
leasehold land, the location of operation to which they
are allocated in case of intangible assets and goodwill,
and the location of operation in case of interests in
associates.

ERtEUERENEHREN

RNEYNAUE - JFRFEERN
HEBENERENEENBRAE
i (B E BEARREREE
Ti)  EREEREEEEM
HMHBEVEERBE) REE
3t s (fis B B & A B B 25 T AE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)
5.2 Segment information (Continued)
Information about major customers
Revenue from each of the major customers, which
amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out

5.

ERERD RS (B)

52 SEEN (8
EMEBEEFNEY
REEEZERS (H@URE10%
WL B9 EFIm T

as below:
2023 2022
20234 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
o5 °HE
Customer A ERAA 99,312 93,544
Customer B ZFAB 92,195 N/AF7E A
Customer C! ZRC 79,686 N/AF7E A

! Revenue from the Group’s automated test equipment segment.

N/A:  Revenue from this customer during the respective year did not
exceed 10% of the Group’s revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

OTHER INCOME 6. Hfthlk A
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF <8
Bank interest income RITH BUWA 9,967 5,205
Gain from changes in fair value of foreign currency — JMNEREA S 4IA FEEE)
forward contracts & 6,909 -
Waiver of other payable R EME N RIB - 4,780
Gain on disposal of other investments HEAEMEE WS 17 15
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEYE R K& H W - 58
Gain from changes in fair value of other investments ELfth3& & A BB 12 =
Government subsidies "o BT Rl il () 725 479
Rental income HEZWA 116 90
Others HAth 171 775
17,917 11,402
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2023, funding support of fizE : B E2023F 128318 LEE > REBEAKNE
MYR190,000 (2022: MYR233,000) was received from Malaysian BERKES (IDISF)) BEERAEREE
Investment Development Authority under The Domestic Investment BREWEIE$E$F190,0009F (2022%F :
Strategic Fund (“DISF”). The purpose of DISF is to support research and 233,000% %) DISFEEZIFEEIEE
development activities and technology update of enterprises. EbSEs sk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

7. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 7. EERVBEX (BEEEMD)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2023 2022

20234 20224

MYR’000 MYR’000

F<5F e

Salaries, allowances, commission and bonuses e R BERIEAL 89,983 69,711

Contribution to EPF BERTEEMEHMNR 9,600 7,372

Equity-settled share award scheme expenses DAt s i B IR 10 82

HEIF 8,872 7,574

Employee insurance scheme EERRTE) 79 61

Social security organisation contribution T EREBEAE TR 1,560 1,368

110,094 86,086

At 31 December 2023, the Group had no forfeited 20235128318 » A& B 2 Wi

contributions available to reduce its contributions to the FE P KRB EEIREBRKERN ST
pension schemes in future years (2022: Nil). BT (20224 © £E) o

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RiEmMZ

2023 2022

20234 20224

MYR’000 MYR’000

Fo5F a1

Interests on bank borrowing RITERHAE - 87
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

9. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 9. [RIRANEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRAQATR AR IORR  GEA) U T &IBER
L
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EH °HE
Amortisation of intangible assets mICEEEHE 4,423 3,082
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE 1 i iy 420 145
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEMBN = 815 778
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME B RREITE 10,787 5,350
ECL allowance on trade receivables B2 RWGIETRREER
EiaRE
— addition —hE 486 1,910
— reversal — (o] (1,627) (6,708)
(Gain)/Loss from changes in fair value of foreign SNERIBEN AT EED
currency forward contracts Uew) B8 (6,909) 7,604
Gain on disposal of other investments HEEMKE R (17) (15)
Loss on disposal of interest in an associate HE—RBBE QBTN
18 26 -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEYZ B &R HUE - (58)
(Gain)/Loss from changes in fair value of HE R FEED
other investments Uew) B8 (12) 16
Property, plant and equipment written off YDEE -~ MR B R sk B S 4 -
Intangible assets written off mI B EME 3 =
Inventories written down to net realisable value WREFEEEREE
— addition —hE 869 245
— reversal — (o] (214) (102)
Net loss on foreign exchange HhEE B51EF BR 18,613 756
Lease charges of short term leases B2 HESH
— Factory —E 124 126
- Hostel — k&R 373 352
- Office —WA=E 317 242
Provision for warranty RIEE R EHE
— addition —hE 2,499 1,515
— reversal — (o] (1,515) (1,256)
Waiver of other payable R HMMETRIE = (4,780)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

10. TAXATION

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operated.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands,
the Company is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands.

Malaysian Income Tax has been provided at the statutory tax
rate of 24% (2022: 24%) for the year ended 31 December
2023 on the estimated chargeable income arising in Malaysia.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the
EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% (2022: 25%)
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in relevant jurisdictions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. TRIE (&)
2023 2022
20234 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H G
Malaysian income tax ERPEEFR1ETR
Current year REE (2,491) (3,071)
Over provision in prior years BEFEEBREEE 514 2,681
(1,977) (390)
Overseas income tax BINERIEIR
Current year REE (709) (1,391)
Over provision in prior years BEFEEBREEE 200 5
(509) (1,391)
Deferred tax IRIETRIE
Recognised in profit or loss for the year (e 32 BRAFERHF
Hie 58 (Wete2) 1,612 324
(874) (1,457)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

10. TAXATION (Continued)

The reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit

of the Group is as follows:

10. #R18 (4&)
AEEBRERTESHEF RN
T

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<F °HE
Profit before taxation PRI AT R A 143,107 134,758
Income tax calculated at the rates applicable to BE B EER AR EH
profits in the tax jurisdiction concerned MR ETEWATER (34,346) (32,814)
Tax effect of share of results of associates FEL I E A B BN
2 (9) (392)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBUANRIEZE 2,445 1,772
Tax effect of exempt pioneer income ot 0) EA BB A RTINS
2 Al 32,387 31,013
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AE IR R (4,528) (3,855)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary differences R R EBENRTE
% 1,927 (411)
Utilisation of unabsorbed tax losses and ERRRMNIIRIBE B K
capital allowances BEAREE 536 549
Over provision in prior years BEFEBIERER 714 2,681
Tax expense for the year FRRIBRS (874) (1,457)

Notes:

(i) Certain subsidiaries of the Group have been granted pioneer status

under the Promotion of Investments Act, 1986 by the Malaysian Industrial

Development Authority which exempts 100% of statutory income in
relation to production of certain products. The effective period of the

relevant pioneer status is ten years starting from April 2016 subject to

renewal before the fifth anniversary of its effective date.

176 © PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED &% ZEI R B R A F

) FERBETWBAREERADZIXER
BIRFE1986FREREEFR THE T EH
i MEEETFTERBRRI00%EEWA 48
B E T MU A RURR 5 > H20165F
AFER AREMAMERBAFREE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

10. TAXATION (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i

The unabsorbed tax losses accumulated up to year of assessment
2018 can be carried forward until year of assessment 2028. From year
of assessment 2018, the unabsorbed tax losses can be carried forward
for ten consecutive years of assessment immediately following that year
of assessment and the unabsorbed capital allowances can be carried
forward indefinitely pursuant to the gazetted Finance Act 2018.

The unabsorbed tax losses of the Group will expire in the following years
of assessment (“YA”):

10. #RIE (48)

FeE

(i

€=))

R EE2018FMEENRBIRRIBEIER
Al AEE E2028 R M FE o W2018 R MFE
B KRR IBE B ZEREE %
YEHEETERREELES MREETIE
BIC2018EEREA) » RIRULHI B A B o] 4
TRHRAE &

REBRRWIREG B TR TROR
MmEE (MRREE) 208

2023 2022
20234 20224

MYR’000 MYR'000

FoE FoH

YA 2028 SBIREE2028 (2,285) (4,246)
YA 2032 SBIRAE F2032 = (99)
(2,285) (4,345)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible temporary
differences of MYR8,029,000. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

(i)

PRERER AEETNREREEES
8,029,000° F IR A KA BEFTE A 81 B
AN E R AN ESRREHN > B &
PR Z AR E R ZEARRMNEIER
HEE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 1. EEHERTBREHALH

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ i <&

EMOLUMENTS

11.1 Directors’ emoluments 11 EEME
Directors’ emoluments, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rig LR FBEREEH S
Rules, section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies 383NE R AT HEEEHEE
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of B REEE EE NS IRE
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as wr:
follows:

Year ended 31 December 2023
#ZF2023F12A31ALLEE
Other emoluments

Hiti &
Salaries, Equity-settled

allowances share award

and benefits scheme Contribution
Fees in kind expenses to EPF Total
NigHEE
e Rl NRMRE €&
e REWHG AEARX  AREHR st
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
L8 TLE FLE FeE FLE
Executive directors: PiTEE
Chuah Choon Bin Chuah Choon Bin 51 2,396 - 452 2,899
Gan Pei Joo Gan Pei Joo 51 961 145 182 1,339
Non-executive director:  FERITEE !
Leng Kean Yong Leng Kean Yong 135 6 - - 141
Independent non- BUFRTEE .
execultive directors:
Sim Seng Loong Sim Seng Loong
@ Tai Seng @Tai Seng 93 6 - - 99
Chuah Jin Chong BB 93 4 - - 97
Chan May May BREX 93 6 - - 99
516 3,379 145 634 4,674
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

11.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

1. EEMERARESHATH
& (&)

11 EEME @

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE2020512831RILEE
Other emoluments

Hid %
Salaries, Equity-settled

allowances  share award
and benefits scheme  Contribution
Fees in kind expenses to EPF Total
DR EE
e 2l NRMHER B8
wE KRBT B AN e st
MYR'000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
4 5 L8 8 85
Executive directors: BiTEE
Chuah Choon Bin Chuah Choon Bin 49 2,222 = 419 2,690
Gan Pei Joo Gan Pei Joo 49 845 244 161 1,299
Non-executive director:  FEHITEE .
Leng Kean Yong Leng Kean Yong 131 6 - - 137
Independent non- BUHRTEE.
execulive directors:
Sim Seng Loong Sim Seng Loong
@ Tai Seng @Tai Seng 90 6 - - 96
Chuah Jin Chong BB 0 - = 94
Chan May May BREE 90 6 - - 9
499 3,089 244 580 4,412

Note: Chuah Choon Bin is also the Group’s chairman.

5 : Chuah Choon Bin7r 2z~ %@ £ % ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in e PR IR

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 11.
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

11.2 Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
included two (2022: two) directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 11.1. The aggregate emoluments
in respect of the remaining three (2022: three) individuals
are as follows:

EEMERAAERESFHALH
M (48

12 ZAEESHATHMNE
REE2023F12831HILEEE
rEENARREESHRATEER
LEE (2022F : M%) NS
R 1EBE - EBNHG =%
(2022%F : =%) ATHEE4R%E
mE

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

MYR’000 MYR’000

F<EF *E

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYH TR 1,955 1,625

Bonuses TE4T 339 316

Contribution to EPF EERBEZHR 275 233
Equity-settled share award scheme expenses LA i 45 B9 IR 1 42 Bh

stEIF 504 763

3,073 2,937

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the
following bands:

EHATHNEN FUTEER :

Number of individuals

A#
2023 2022
2023%F 20224F
Emolument bands: Bi-=#E -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 TE
2,000,0007& 75 3 6!
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND 1. EEHERTBERESFHALTH

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’ & (&)

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

11.2 Five highest paid individuals’ emoluments 112 ABREHFATHMNE @
(Continued)
No director or the five highest paid individuals received REE2023F12831HILEE
any emolument from the Group as an inducement to join EEXERhGEESFATHERR
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of EBRWEREAME EAMAR
office during the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: EEANMAXRERFHNESN
Nil). No director or the five highest paid individual has EABER B (20226 © ) o A&
waived or agreed to waive any emolument during the F20283F12H31HIEEE EF
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil). HNEHERSHATHEREINR

EMEEAME (2022F : H) °

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE 12. SRZF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share KRBBEEANELHEREANREER
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the FIT5 iR T EIRE R -

following data:

(a) Basic earnings per share attributable to (@) BAFEEAERLERELX
owners of the Company BF
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Earnings BF
Profit for the year attributable to owners of KA B ANELER
the Company (MYR’000) wmH (F25 142,233 133,301
Number of shares iR &H
Adjusted weighted average number of KABBETRDME
shares in issue T 2,384,130,218  2,385,218,986
Basic earnings per share (sen) FREAREF (L) 5.97 5.59
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(a) Basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company (Continued)
For the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022,
the number of shares used in the calculation of basic
earnings per share include the weighted average number
of shares in issue less shares held for share award

12. BRREF @&

BF (&)

(@) FAREEAEGERES

B E2023F K2022F12831H 1k
FE FESRELABMMAN
RMEE BFEETRMANME
TS E R ARG B T BT

scheme. FBERRG o
(b) Diluted earnings per share attributable to (b) TATEE AEGESRIES
owners of the Company 27
2023 2022
20235 20224
Earnings 2R
Profit for the year attributable to owners of KABHEE AELEFER
the Company (MYR’000) wmH (F2& 142,233 133,301
Number of shares g 4=
Adjusted weighted average number of AR BEETRRD M
shares in issue IS Sk 2,384,130,218 2,385,218,986
Effect of shares awarded under the RIFAR QB (D 52 B
Company’s share award scheme SHEVEREBIR DR E 4,072,410 4,959,147
Adjusted weighted average number of FEEREERTIREN
shares in issue for the purpose of KRB EITRMMKE
calculating diluted earnings per share EHH 2,388,202,628 2,390,178,133
Diluted earnings per share (sen) FREBERR () 5.96 5.58
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in e PRk MY EE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

13. DIVIDENDS 13. IR8
(a) Dividends attributable to the year: () FEREMGKRS :
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
<5 S
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.02 per ERFAKREEREER
ordinary share (2022: HK$0.02 per 0.02% 7t (20224 : B8
ordinary share) @ RR0.0278 7T) 29,443 27,143
The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has RHREBABE IR BEERP
not been recognised as a liability at the end of reporting BREETHRSHARLEBEERR A
period, but reflected as an appropriation of retained BB HEEREE2023F12831
profits for the year ended 31 December 2023. HIEFERFRBHEAEMELEA R
At o
(b) Dividends attributable to the previous (b) BEBMBEEELKRE (17
financial year, approved and paid during FAHLE RIS -
the year:
2023 2022
20234 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<E *E
Final dividend in respect of the previous BETBEENRBARE
financial year, of HK$0.02 per ordinary share &R iE20.0278 7T
(2022: HK$0.02) (20224 : 0.027%&7T) 27,557 26,904
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #tZ20234F 12431 H IFFEZ

oG =1
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. YE - -BEKR=E
Furniture,
Buildings on  Machineries fittings
leasehold and and office Electrical Motor  Construction
land equipment equipment Computers installation vehicles in progress Total
AL FhRER
ZIBF  RERERE  BAERE Bl BREE AE ERIR @
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
TeE ¢35 T35 TeE T35 T35 TeE 45
Cost 528
As at 1 January 2022 20221818 90,738 15,893 1,320 6,014 2,782 1,297 17,124 135,168
Additions RE 184 27,504 267 1,416 - 179 11,012 40,562
Disposal HE - - - - - (174) - (174)
Written off 6 (260) - - (137) (32) - - (429)
Transfer during the year FRER 618 15,924 376 - = = (16.918) =
Exchange differences EREH - - (19 (1) - - - (20)
Asat 31 December 2022 and 122022128318 K
1 January 2023 20231818 91,280 59,321 1,944 7,292 2,750 1,302 11,218 175,107
Additions RE - 30,691 221 1,484 - 150 90,714 123,260
Written off 6 - - - (542) - - - (542)
Transfer during the year FREE 755 - - - - = (755) =
Exchange differences EREH - - 2 2 - = s 4
As at 31 December 2023 420235126318 92,035 90,012 2,167 8,236 2,750 1,452 101,177 297,829
Accumulated depreciation B3t E
As at 1 January 2022 20221818 15,335 11,298 698 4,665 2,341 1,086 - 35,423
Current charge ka5 1,568 2,256 319 1,064 37 116 - 5,350
Disposal HE - - - - - (174) - (174)
Written off it - - - (137) - - - (187)
Asat 31 December 2022 and ~ 122022F 128318 K
1 January 2023 20231818 16,893 13,554 1,017 5,592 2,378 1,028 - 40,462
Current charge B 1,571 7,451 448 1,151 46 120 - 10,787
Written off se - - - (538) - - - (538)
Exchange differences ERER - - - 1 - - = 1
As at 31 December 2023 420235126318 18,464 21,005 1,465 6,206 2,424 1,148 - 50,712
Carrying amount REE
As at 31 December 2023 420235126318 73,571 69,007 702 2,030 326 304 101,177 247,117
As at 31 December 2022 120228128318 74,387 45,767 927 1,700 32 274 11,218 134,645
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

15. LEASEHOLD LAND

15. G

2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5F L5
Cost D%

At the beginning and at the end of the year RER R ER 36,985 36,985

Accumulated amortisation REtigy
At the beginning of the year REH 1,665 1,520
Current charge BEASZ th 420 145
At the end of the year RER 2,085 1,665
Carrying amount at the end of the year RERMIREE 34,900 35,320

The Group is the registered owner of these leasehold land
in Malaysia. Upfront payments were made to acquire these
land interests and there are no ongoing payments to be made
under the terms of the land lease (i.e. no lease liabilities are
recognised).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s leasehold land of
MYR4,660,000 has been pledged for banking facilities granted
to the Group. No leasehold land has been pledge as at 31
December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, all the leasehold land was
located in Malaysia with remaining lease terms between 40 and
50 years.

FEERZEERARHEE LM
A A - AEBEE AR RIEMUK
BzEtiEn BREIMEERR
WESEMR B EEDEES®) -

1£20225F12831H > &~ & E 4,660,000
CENHEEIHMBIRIRERFTEAER
IRTTREE AVHEMR © 522023412831 H L
EIRIREE o

FA2023F K2022F 128310 FrEfHHE
TR ERFLE  GR N A40E
50% ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

16. GOODWILL 16. HE
2023 2022
20235 2022%
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF L5
Gross carrying amount and net carrying P1A1HRERERE R

amount at 1 January EREEE 4,495 4,495
Impairment losses AERE - =

Gross carrying amount and net carrying 12831 BRI ERK
amount at 31 December REEE 4,495 4,495

The carrying amount of goodwill, net of any impairment loss,
is allocated to the cash generating unit of factory automation
solutions — medical devices.

The recoverable amount for the cash generating unit was
determined based on value-in-use calculation covering a
detailed five-year budget plan followed by an extrapolation
of expected cash flows at the growth rates stated below. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of
money and the risks specific to the cash generating unit.

The key assumptions used for value in use calculations were as
follows:

FEEREE FIRERBERBR 2
EIMEBI RS E-BERERNR
EELEM-

BEeESXBEMUNTREESEDRER
BN EPREEHBINEREE
BET ABBR TR EREEEHE
SRE I EERBEER G R
R rEgRRBRARMERTERES
KEREERRSELBEMBERD
MR EAIMATITIR R T IREHIRE -

EREEAEMERANEERRKRUT

2023 2022

2023%F 20224

Average growth rates g R 3% 8%
Discount rates IRE 18% 18%

The management considered and assessed that a reasonably
possible change in the key assumption would not cause the
carrying amounts of cash-generating unit to exceed their
recoverable amounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BICEE
2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H G
Development expenditure Mot 17-1) Faﬁ?f“?i RS 21,789 19,199
Computer software (ote 17.2) B RS E g (7 2) 1,639 779
Technical know-how (ot 7.9 %%ﬁzm e 13,436 15,675
Carrying amount at the end of the year RERMIREE 36,864 35,653
17.1 Development expenditure 171 BIE X H
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<&H L5
Cost (5%
Balance at the beginning of the year FYAEER 39,630 36,018
Additions NE 3,981 3,612
Balance at the end of the year FRAERR 43,611 39,630
Accumulated amortisation Retis
Balance at the beginning of the year FEY4EER 16,841 16,583
Current charge BPEASZ B 1,391 258
Balance at the end of the year FRAERR 18,232 16,841
Impairment loss TEEIE 3,590 3,590
Carrying amount at the end of the year  WWEXRMEREE 21,789 19,199
Development expenditure relates to development of METHEREZEAST A @Al
test and measurement instruments, test handler and BEIESAEASFZ -BHEAE
solutions, automation warehouse solutions and single- RARABEUAR—REEERERSRE
use medical instruments. Development expenditure Rl oIS H N AT BHHER
is amortised over the estimated commercial life of 5 FREHE - BENIBREREE
years. Amortisation commences upon commercialisation mEECERBR HMESRETA
of the respective products developed. The amount AERTHREASIE TN ZIBmE

amortised is charged to profit or loss of the Group under
administrative expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. BIZEE (@)
17.2 Computer software 17.2 BISE G
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<&F <5
Cost (5%
Balance at the beginning of the year FY4ERR 4,405 3,911
Additions hE 1,654 494
Written off 6] (2,092) -
Exchange differences PERERE 2 =
Balance at the end of the year FRAERR 3,969 4,405
Accumulated amortisation Rty
Balance at the beginning of the year FYAEER 3,626 3,042
Current charge BEASE 793 584
Written off WisH (2,089) =
Balance at the end of the year FREER 2,330 3,626
Carrying amount at the end of the year R EXRMIREE 1,639 779
The cost of computer software comprised the cost of BERHERABIEEERENR
acquisition of software and all directly attributable costs AEREBEEFRTERBRNEAA
of preparing the assets for their intended use and are EEREGEE WL EZ LR
amortised on a straight line basis over the estimated life st FH2ESFHH - HIH T B
of 2 to 5 years. The amount amortised is charged to RAEEERRITHEBESZETN
profit or loss of the Group under administrative expenses. FR o
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17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17. BZEE (@)
17.3 Technical know-how 17.3 FEE AT
2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EH *E
Cost (5%
Balance at the beginning and REV R ERNAEER
at the end of the year 22,393 22,393
Accumulated amortisation Rty
Balance at the beginning of the year FEYAEER 6,718 4,478
Current charge BPEASZ 2,239 2,240
Balance at the end of the year FEREER 8,957 6,718
Carrying amount at the end of the year W EXRBEREE 13,436 15,675
The technical know-how represents the research FiTA#iE R B BT 8 EE#
development information, technical date, design, %%&Fﬁ#%‘%ﬁ&zﬁﬁi&?ﬁ*ﬁ i
prototypes and empirical data related to the technology HHEEE -ERMBEH R R
of manufacturing and assembling of the automation AR BB IE EXRMNTER
machines and die casting parts for the medical industry. P ERAERA10FE - #H S REsT
The expected useful lives of technical know-how is 10 AXERTHRZIBE T Z8mo

years. The amount amortised is charged to profit or loss
of the Group under administrative expenses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 18. NI B AT RZIEERBIEER
CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITY B
(@) Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 (@) 7220234 K22022F12H31
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: B> MEBATMEFBENT :
Percentage of
ownership interests
Place of attributable to the Company
incorporation/ Issued and FARELFREEREE A
Name of subsidiary operation paid up capital 2023 2022 Principal activities
ERTR
[YNGER ML EE S BRRE 20235 0205 TEBERK
Directly held by the Company
FARERREE
Pentamaster Technology (M) Malaysia MYR4.3 million 100% 100% Design, manufacturing and installation of
Sdn. Bhd. comprising computerised automation systems and
(Pentamaster Technology”) 2,400,000 shares equipment
(T Pentamaster Technology 1) EXRAE 43BEH R RERZEEREDE
£1452,400,0008% EXN b
13
Pentamaster Instrumentation Sdn. Bhd.  Malaysia MYRO.5 million 100% 100% Design and manufacturing of automated
(Pentamaster Instrumentation”) comprising testing equipment and test and
500,000 shares measurement system
(TPentamaster Instrumentation 1) ERAD 05BEYHE’ Rt RREBHLRARER
A1F£500,0008% HERA
13
Pentamaster Equipment Manufacturing ~ Malaysia MYR13.16 millon 100% 100% Equipment design and manufacturing
Sdn. Bhd. (“Pentamaster Equipment”) comprising services and the manufacturing of high
13,160,000 shares precision machine parts
("Pentamaster Equipment 1) BRAEE 13165 8% RERARREREURRE
£14%13,160,0008% BEREREDH
13
Pentamaster MediQ Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia MYR1.8 milion 100% 100% Design and manufacturing of single-use
(Pentamaster MediQ’) comprising medical devices, medical equipment
1,800,000 shares and related instruments
(T Pentamaster MediQ ) ERAEE 18BEYE R MBE-REBRESRM
2k ,800,000?; ERNERERNGRSE
o)
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 18. MB AT RZIEEEEER

CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITY RS (18)

(Continued)

(@) Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 (@) H12023F F2022F 12831
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: B HEBASMNEFRUNT :
(Continued) (ﬁg)

Percentage of
ownership interests
Place of attributable to the Company
incorporation/ Issued and TATEEFERERE I
Name of subsidiary operation paid up capital 2023 2022 Principal activities
BRTR
WEARAHE SR EEE HRRE 2023F 002F FEER

Indirectly held through Pentamaster Technology
#BiBPentamaster TechnologyfJi# 5

Pentamaster Technology China Registered 100% 100% Research and development,
(Jiangsu) Limited share capital of manufacturing and sales of automated
(Pentamaster Jiangsu”) US$3 millon testing equipment and automation

solutions as well as providing technical
services, development, consulting and

other businesses
RERENE (I8 BRAT HE REEE - RERHEBHTRARER
(MREREIH) " ZERRRA BEERAAE MURIEMEN
% BE - BAREMNER
Pentamaster Automation (Japan) Japan JPY3 million 100% 100% Design and development, production and
Co., Ltd sales of automated test equipment,
(Pentamaster Japan’) factory automation system and other

handling solutions as well as providing
technical consulting services and other
related support services

(" Pentamaster Japan ) Bz JEEHAE Rt RFEE EERBEEREHLRA
#fE IREH AR REMERE
AR W RRER ARG

Ethiam AR
Pentamaster Automation Germany EUR25,000 100% - Design and development, production and
(Germany) GmbH sales of automated test equipment,
(Pentamaster Germany’) factory automation system and other

handling solutions as well as providing
technical consulting services and other
related support services.

(T Pentamaster Germany J) = 25,0007 REtREE EERBEERESEAR
& IEBH AR RAMEERA
FE MR AR iR R R ALt

BEZERE.
Note: The entity is registered as wholly-foreign-owned company under MIETE : ZBERERIEREARIEME (THEL)
People's Republic of China (“‘PRC”) law. FEEMANEEE AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 18. W{J‘E’zﬂ)&%}%ﬁ%&%ﬂ%

CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITY = (8)

(Continued)

(@) Particulars of the subsidiaries at 31 (@) H12023F F2022F 12831
December 2023 and 2022 are as follows: B MEBASMNFRBUWT :
(Continued) (ﬁg)

Percentage of
ownership interests
Place of attributable to the Company
incorporation/ Issued and TAREEFERERT AL
Name of subsidiary operation paid up capital 2023 2022 Principal activities
BRIK
WEARAHE SR R HRRE 2023F 002F FEEE

Indirectly held through Pentamaster Equipment
#iBPentamaster EquipmentiJi#iHE

Pentamaster Equipment United States US$0.01 million 100% 100% Providing of sales and support services
Manufacturing, Inc. comprising
(Pentamaster US") 1,000 shares
(T Pentamaster US 1) 6 IEEESE REBERTERS
AE1,0008%
13
TP Concept Sdn. Bhd. (‘TP Concept’) ~ Malaysia MYRO0.25 million 100% 100% Manufacturing and assembling of medical
comprising machines and manufacturing of die
250,000 shares casting parts
(T'TP Concept ) ERET 0.58B%E" RERGEBERMIRREEES
A1#£250,0008%
13
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18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 18. INMB AR RZITHEEMER

CONTROLLED STRUCTURED ENTITY Rt (48)

(Continued)

(b) The Group controls a structured entity (b) FEEIZEH—REERAIE
which operates in Malaysia, particulars of EENGEMER HER
which are as follows: mTE:

Percentage of
ownership interests
Place of attributable to the Company
incorporation/ Issued and TATEEFERERE I
Name of structured entity operation paid up capital 2023 2022 Principal activities
BETR
ERMERAE SEMAIL B E BRRE 20235 X20F TEER
Directly held by the Company
KAREREE
PIL - PERKERJA SS LIMITED British Virgin Islands Us$2 100% 100% Purchases, administers and holds the
(*PILPSS’) fro comprising Company's shares for the share award
2 shares scheme for the benefit of the Group’s
eligible employees
(TPILPSS ) e HERYHE PESTE BRMREH G AEESERESN
BIERRN FmEE EENBELATNKG
Note: PILPSS is incorporated during the year ended 31 December MizE © PILPSSHA & E2020FE12831H L&
2020 for the purpose of purchasing, administering and holding EsEfair BENR AN RS S
Company’s shares for the share award scheme. The Company BE -EEBENFEELRRTNKRMD A
has the power to direct the relevant activities of PILPSS and AT A EIEEPILPSSHIEREES B
the ability to use its power over PILPSS to affect its exposure to BREDHPILPSSHEME EREEH
returns. Therefore, the assets and liabilities of PILPSS are included W e AL PILPSSHE EMAES
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the EHEGEEMERRIERT BEFEN
Company’s shares it held are presented as a deduction in equity RABKRDEFIIEA ARG B
as shares held for share award scheme. BT B R ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19. REFE QTR D

2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
<& T<5
Cost of investments KRER A 6,558 6,591
Share of post-acquisition results and other PR B R EE
comprehensive income Hitzmka (4,480) (4,521)
2,078 2,070
Investment in redeemable convertible preference FAB] BB (0] o] s A (B S0 B
shares (“RCPS”) (rote @) (MA] B[] AT 833 B /T iR 1)
B & e 15,500 18,000
17,578 20,070
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RS ATIMER (48)
AEBMPBE AT (BIELHADEERE)
HREREEIEN T :

Details of the Group’s interests in associates, which are unlisted
corporate entities, are as follows:

Attributable equity
Place of interest held by the Group
incorporation/ Issued and FEBFE LR E
Name of associate operation paid up capital 2023 2022 Principal activities
FEMmBI
YNGR ] Ed=pute BEITRARRE 2023 20220 FEEH
Penang Automation Cluster Malaysia MYR50.56 million 35.64% 35.64% Providing value added engineering
Sdn. Bhd. (‘PAC") comprising 18,400,000 development and technical
ordinary shares and training to the automation cluster
31,000,000 redeemable companies specialised in the
convertible preference areas of design, development
shares (2022: and manufacture of high
MYR61.06 million precision metal fabrication
comprising 18,400,000 components, modules and
ordinary shares systems for semiconductor,
and 41,500,000 electronics, automotive,
redeemable convertible aerospace and other high growth
preference shares) industries in the region
(TPAC ) BRED 5056B B E OfE AEMRER BERRERAR
18,400,0008% FER BT VRE-MEAR
BEER EBAEMBERITENSRE
31,000,000 BEEBARSH REARRS
EEERIE:TN MEREEEHAT RERE
BIEhT (20226 : TRERREMIEN
61.06EESHE
£3518,400,0008%
& @R K41,500,0008%
ELMARELR
Run Gao Da Technology China Registered share capital 6.67% Providing investment management
(Xiangyang) Co., Ltd. of RMB1 million and consultation service
HEERET &R BRAS HE ARBIEER RELBEEREARS
Z A
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BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #tZ20234F 12431 H IFFEZ

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Note:

(@)

As at 31 December 2023, the Group invested MYR15.5 million (2022:
MYR18 million) in consideration for RCPS of PAC.

The RCPS is convertible at the option of PAC at the issue price of MYR1
per RCPS at any time after the issuance date and up to maturity date, i.e.
28 December 2030. The Group did not have any voting rights from RCPS
and only have right to receive non-cumulative dividends at rate of 1.5%
per annum based on issue price subject to PAC achieving a profit after
tax of MYR2,000,000. In the event of liquidation of PAC, the Group ranks
in priority to other classes of shares in PAC.

As the rights and obligations of the ownership over RCPS is different from
the ordinary shares of PAC, the Group’s investment in RCPS is accounted
for in accordance with IFRS 9 and measured at FVTPL.

PAC is a strategic partner to build and manage the local supply chain
ecosystem in the country that supports the Group’s long-term strategy to
grow its business in providing a wide range of high-end automated test
equipment supporting various industries globally.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group disposal of all its
6.67% equity interest in Run Gao Da Technology (Xiangyang) Co., Ltd.
at a cash consideration of approximately, RMB11,000 (equivalent to
MYR7,000), resulting in a loss on disposal of approximately RMB39,000
(equivalent to MYR26,000).
November 20283.

The disposal was completed on 27
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19. RBHERBT VgD (B)

MysE

(@)

220235128310 AERMKEE15.558 2
= (20224 1 18E B S T) (FAPACKH AT EEE]
ISR BRI NE

AEO B RELRAIESEITEZERE
ZZ|HI R (B120304F12828H) AY1E Al B S
MERrELRERELRISETNET
BHRPACHEIZETER AEBBAEE
Cl AR E AR TR RARRESEYU
BTEAERRENE1 5% WEIERTR
B EPACE1#182,000,000% E MR % A
o HBPACER Bl A EEREPACH E Mt
ERIR D BB B -

Fl 4 4 B PR 1 2 89 4 £ 55 MR 60 R O 235
SPACEERAFTE TR > Rt A S Ep
A B A 4 e S R 0 0 R SR EI R B T
REEAFORETRHER BRAT(E
st AJRGEE R

PACRINEI I K B A FESE A R
MOBRBH SRHAEERERSETE
RERZNSHEHLRARBHORAE
P58 RERRE

HZE20235F12B31BILEE  AEABHE
HEHREEERNEL (BB BRATNEI
6.67%H K RENBLHARKE11,0007T
(HBER7,000% %) %&ﬁﬁéﬁ&zﬁ‘iiéﬂé
AR 39,0007t (1HE226,0009F) ° %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REVEATINER (B)
Set out below are the summarised financial information of PAC FEAED EARNPACHFHE R Z &
which is accounted for using the equity method: FEF
2023 2022
2023 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
o5 °H
Non-current assets ERENEE 57,273 64,888
Current assets MENEE 9,913 10,204
Non-current liabilities FEREIERE (13,175) (2,654)
Current liabilities VIEIR=NE (17,321) (25,320)
Non-controlling interest JEERR R R (362) (400)
Net assets BETE 36,328 46,718
Revenue g 18,561 15,791
Gain/(Loss) for the year and total comprehensive ~ AEE W (F58) K&
income/(expense) for the year (o AEEE2ENE FEIX)
4aEE (=) 110 (4,588)
Dividends received from the associate BWEEARRKRE - =
Note: The Group shared 35.64% of gain of MYR110,000 for the year ended 31 MizE : AEBREE2023FE12831HIEEEDL
December 2023. 35.64% MU > A110,0009 5
The Group shared 35.64% of loss of MYR4,588,000 for the year ended AREBPREZE2022F 12831 IEEE DL
31 December 2022. 35.64% 898518 » %4,588,000% 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REFEATED (@)
A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information = B 7 L AR 2 B AN £ [ iR PAC I HE
to the carrying amount of the Group's interest in PAC is set out mZ IREEHREIWMT
below:
2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5F T<5
Net assets of PAC PACEEF&E 36,328 46,718
Proportion of ownership interests held by the Group ZNEBEFTiTHES
HERE 2R L1 35.64% 35.64%
12,948 16,650
Adjustment (o HE B (D) (11,048) (14,791)
Goodwill 5k 178 178
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in PAC KEEBEFPACH
2 REE 2,078 2,037
Note: Adjustment represented the Group’s investment in PAC’s preference MisE : AEIEAEBHPACELKRIKRE  HE X
shares which is not in proportion to equity interest shared by the Group. EEFTE R LA
Aggregate information of the associate that is not individually ERFEERBE AT NERER .
material:
2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5F e
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial 47 & B #5 ¥R #&= R E B IEE X
associate in the consolidated financial statements Bt & /A S AV BRE 4218 - 33

Aggregate amounts of the Group’s share of K%@TE%%H@%%@E
those associates: ZHBEE
— profit for the year —FNEF -
— other comprehensive income —HthzmK=m -
- total comprehensive income —2mRA4ERE -

198 ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED # {12 E IR B R A F



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
2023 2022
20234 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF G
Raw materials R HEL 21,924 19,148
Work-in-progress R 161,931 147,492
Finished goods Sk 6,753 4,294
190,608 170,934
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an ERBAAIRSIABENEESEHE
expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: DWW -
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H G
Cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales, RAHE AN
including: FEERA B1F 482,206 415,135
— write down to net realisable value — MR = e B3R EE 869 245
— reversal of write down to net realisable value — Rk = BT 2 1R R B #5 [0l (214) (102)
The reversal of inventory written down was made when the WREEREBEEUSHRRAHE
related inventories were sold above cost. B [E] o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

21. B EWFEIE

2023 2022

20234 20224

MYR’000 MYR’000

o5 Ea=i1

Trade receivables B 5 EWEIE 198,483 241,223
Less: ECL allowance B TERRE B EERE (2,194) (3,297)
196,289 237,926

The normal credit terms granted to trade receivables range
from O to 120 days (2022: 0 to 120 days). Based on the
invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net
of ECL allowance, was as follows:

BYEZERZFEN—REEHNTFO0
F120K (20224 : 0FE120K) o RHE 3
ZEHH BRERRIE GOMREREE
BI8EHE) PR DI T ¢

2023 2022

20234 20224

MYR’000 MYR’000

F<EF =1

0 - 30 days 0E30% 64,493 81,627
31 - 60 days 31E60K 16,787 8,115
61 - 90 days 61E90K 20,157 2,761
91 - 180 days 91E 180K 54,577 77,335
181 — 270 days 181F270K 17,334 40,065
Over 270 days 270K £ 22,941 28,023
196,289 237,926
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movement in the ECL allowance of trade receivables is as

21. BZ BRI (&)

BEZRERENTREREEGERES

follows: BT

2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EH S
Balance at the beginning of the year F4ERR 3,297 8,095

ECL allowance recognised during the year FREDNTRIAEE
EERE 486 1,910

ECL allowance reversed during the year FERELNTEHREES
BERE (1,627) (6,708)
Exchange differences FE R 518 38 -
Balance at the end of the year FEREEER 2,194 3,297

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

22, %1’&&%”&%’\% e RIBR

PREPAYMENTS

2023 2022
2023 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5F *E
Other receivables HAuhEW IS 325 261
Refundable deposits ARBEEE 9,020 1,865
Non-refundable deposits A REEE WD 17,889 27,680
Prepayments T RIB 1,021 610
Value added tax receivable FEUIEER 1,074 95
29,329 30,511

Less: Deposits paid for acquisition of property, B EYE -BRER
plant and equipment REENEE (13,612) =
15,717 30,511

Note: Non-refundable deposits are mainly deposits paid to suppliers for

purchase of raw materials and machines.

Mzt FRRERSTEEMBE RS RS
M HER X THRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

23. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS/ 23.

LIABILITIES

The Group enters into foreign currency forward contracts to
manage its exposure to sales and purchases transactions
that are denominated in foreign currencies. Foreign currency
forward contracts are categorised as derivatives and measured
at FVTPL.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values. The change of fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss. The fair value of these

TEEMEE 8fF

AEETIIEERGHOUEERRY
SNESHENEBEXZRE INEERAS
MOERMETANLBAFES AR

it

sll]

METARSAMETIRGHNERY
TRAFERES HERRATEENT
B ATEEHNFNREDER -ZF
BN AT EFT BN EE38.6P L °

contracts has been measured as described in note 38.6.

As at 31 December 2023

142023128311
Notional amount Settlement date Term Forward rate
LREHE #HA HAPR EHE=E
US$25,460,000 2 January 2024 to 18 March 2024 37 to 343 days MYR4.65 to
MYR 4.68/US$
25,460,000% 75 20241 H2H E2024F3718H 37E343K 4B5RFE
4685 ERETT
US$13,500,000 19 January 2024 to 18 March 2024 278 to 312 days MYR4.43 to
MYR 4.47/US$
13,500,00055 75 2024418198 £202443H18H 278%E 312Kk 4439FE
4ATRERET
As at 31 December 2022
1220221283181
Notional amount Settlement date Term Forward rate
REEH #HA HAPR BHAER
US$9,500,000 12 January 2023 to 23 May 2023 107 to 249 days MYR4.40 to
MYR 4.64/US$
9,500,000 75 2023F1812HE2023%F5523H 1072249K 440%FTE
464 ERET
US$43,500,000 13 January 2023 to 12 April 2023 81 to 366 days MYR4.21 to
MYR 4.25/US$
43,500,000 75 2023F 18136 £2023F4812H 81E366K 49 EE
4259 ERETT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

24. OTHER INVESTMENTS

24, HithigH

2023 2022
20234 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF G
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ~ 1&AF{Ezt ABEHER
TREE
— Equity securities listed in Malaysia 0t —ERADE EHH
fig A58 75 (D 170 219

Note: The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed securities has been

measured as described in note 38.6.

25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Mzt : AEER EHESFZRENQTEBZN

FE38.6FT i E 5T &

25 IRERIRNELEEY

2023 2022

20234 20224

MYR’000 MYR’000

F°5F *E

Cash and bank balances P& RIRTTH &R 120,737 117,987
Short-term investment ete) SHAG E e 275,060 210,641
395,797 328,628

Note: The effective interest rate for the short-term investment ranged from

2.05% to 3.66% (2022: 1.80% to 3.10%) per annum and can be
redeemed at any time upon notice given to the financial institution. The
short-term investment represents investment in unit trusts. The unit trusts
invest in a mixture of money market instruments and fixed deposits with
different maturity period.

CEHARENERENED2.05%E3.66%

(20224 : 1.80%%E3.10%) > AT @A /L

IS B RER O - AR ER IR B IE N B NIETE
SR E -BMETESRENREEHET
BAHAGRAEERNEREFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. g7~
2023 2022
20234 20224
Number Number
of shares MYR’000 of shares MYR’'000
KRix&E F<&H K8 B G
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SR0.01EBTHEER 5,000,000,000 26,052 5,000,000,000 26,052
Issued and fully paid: BETRETE :
As at 1 January and 31 December M1B1BK%12831H  2,400,000,000 12,340 2,400,000,000 12,340
27. RESERVES 27. {#iE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
of the consolidated financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares of the Company and net proceeds received
from the issuance of the shares of the Company.

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account of the Company may be applied for payment
of distributions or dividends to the shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

27. RESERVES (continued)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents (a) the difference between the
share capital of subsidiaries acquired by the Company and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition under the reorganisation, (b) the waiver of the
amount due to ultimate holding company of MYR21,690,000
during the year ended 31 December 2014 as deemed
contribution from ultimate holding company and (c) the
proportionate of the carrying amount of the net assets
of Pentamaster Instrumentation when PCB acquired the
additional 40% interest in Pentamaster Instrumentation in June
2017.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
Pentamaster Jiangsu is required to appropriate 10% of the
annual statutory net profit after taxation (after offsetting any
prior years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund. When the
balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of the
entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation is optional.
The statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior years’
losses or to increase the registered capital. However, such
balance of the statutory reserve fund must be maintained at a

minimum of 50% of the registered capital after such usages.

27.

#E (@)

B A
BERFEBEIE(QIRBEEA KL W RN
BABRRARAAANBD AWEMETH
RNEEZER ;)R ENRBE20145F
12A31HIEFERNREEZERATNR
1821,690,000° & ' FARIER AR
NEHE K (C)EPCBR2017E68 31T
U BEPentamaster Instrumentation 40%
MRy P EERMEBELLG -

EEHE
RIBRERBE BARE IGHRERF
EAERREZNE REMNTFEEN
EAEEIER) W10%BAEZEAED
EEAEABENGHREINZEREM
BARMS0% R Al EEETRERNE
AEE  EERABEEALIEHENESF
ENBEIEMELREE AT AT
PEETELMARENBRAGS &
BHFEELVHEEREMEARNS50%8
Ik o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. B 5 EIRRIE
The normal credit terms granted by trade payables range BSBENRERHN—RKREEHNTF
from 30 to 180 days (2022: 30 to 180 days). Based on the 30E 180K (20224 : 30E180K) © iRE
invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the trade payables was as BEHH B EMARIBEBNRE TN
follows: TS &

2023 2022
20234 2022%F
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EH S
0 - 30 days 0&E30Xk 40,975 67,936
31 - 60 days 31E60X 23,971 45,565
61 — 90 days 61E90X 15,977 4,237
91 - 120 days 91E120K 4,290 557
Over 120 days 120K A 32,809 3,233
118,022 121,528
Included in trade payables were amounts due to the Group’s BSENRBEEEMNAREEKSE
associate of MYR329,000 (2022: MYR371,000). The AB Z#IE329,0009F (20224
outstanding balances were trading in nature and had credit 371,0009F) - KRENGEHRAESHE
period of 90 days (2022: 90 days). See note 37(b) for detalils of KA EHIA90K (20224 : 90K) o %%

these transactions. RAWEIEB 2R EE37(0) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

29. OTHER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND 29. HthFE{ITFRIE  FEST & FA R d%
PROVISIONS -]
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EH a1
Other payables Hih R 22,502 5,918
Consideration payables related to acquisition of BEREWE—ENBABTN
a subsidiary (ot FET LB W™ - 2,123
Accruals FEst&ER 25,451 21,583
Provision for warranty RIEEREE 2,494 1,515
50,447 31,139
Less: Other payables for settlement after 12 months & : 1218 B %45 E I E th
shown under non-current liabilities et 7R IE (6,717) =
43,730 31,139
Note: B E
The consideration payable referred to the balance amount of the consideration ERAREIERA —RMBAE (R2019FWERN
payable to the outgoing vendors of a subsidiary, TP Concept acquired in 2019. TP Concept) FEB LW B ZREE  ELTRE
The consideration payable is subject to achieving certain performance milestones SZMBARERE TRREEEAEAR -EE
of the subsidiary. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the performance 202255!5125 SIHLEFE XEERMEBRKEE
milestones were achieved and became final, and the Company was liable to pay B A RBBEEERRIRESZEMNRE.

the former shareholders of the consideration payables.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, an amount of MYR2,123,000 (2022: B E2023F12831HIEFE > 2,123,000 F 2 M
MYR9,000,000) was settled to former shareholders. AR ER{E (T (20224F : 9,000,0009 ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES a8aE
2023 2022
20234 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
o5 Ea=i1
Contract liabilities arising from receiving deposits of UERBLETEE T EERY
manufacturing orders aH8E 137,940 100,581

When the Group receives a deposit before the production
activity commences, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the commencement of a contract. The deposit will be reversed
and recognised as revenue upon satisfying the performance
obligation of the contract.

All deposits received are generally expected to be settled within
one year.

The significant increase (2022: increase) of contract liabilities
as at 31 December 2023 is mainly due to the increase (2022:
increase) in the deposits received as a result of more purchase
orders during the year.

Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning of the year
amounting to MYR73,008,000 (2022: MYR61,789,000) have
been recognised as revenue during the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

31. DEFERRED INCOME 31. IREUA
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EF G
Balance at the beginning of the year F 4L R - S
Additions B 620 -
Balance at the end of the year FRAEER 620 -
Deferred income represents government grants received by I JE U A 36 — 151 MY /&8 A B B 3R 8 A 38
a subsidiary for reimbursements of capital expenditure spent KRB B E A X T UR AR BY BT A B ©
on research and development. Deferred income is released to EIEW AT BC & B E I AB R AR
profit or loss over the periods to match the related cost which AW ANEEEEG MEAEZE
the grants are intended to compensate. B RERGREHEHIRIMER
32. DEFERRED TAX 32. IRIEMRIF
The movement during the year in the deferred tax liabilities/ RLEREBEEE (EE) WEREFY
(assets) is as follows: T
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H G
At 1 January P1B1R 3,762 4,078
Recognised in profit or loss RIBR IS (1,612) (324)
Exchange differences bE 2 =58 - 8
At 31 December »’12831H 2,150 3,762
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to
offsetting of balances within the same taxation jurisdiction)

during the year is as follows:

32. IRIEFRIE (B)

BIERBEEKREE (RE—RFEE
& NIEIH SRR NERZBINT !

Deferred tax assets RERIBE E
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<F *E
Tax losses: RIARSIE -
At 1 January B1B1H - (221)
Recognised in profit or loss ot 10 R 18 2R FE B0 (M0 - 213
Exchange difference b 2 =B - 8
At 31 December 128318 - =
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIERE
2023 2022
20235 2022%
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<EH &
Fair value adjustment on business EBaHzZAnERE
combination:
At 1 January I=RE=! 3,762 4,299
Recognised in profit or loss M° 10 IR TR R Y Wa0) (1,612) (537)
At 31 December 128318 2,150 3,762
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 33. MEEHEENERHIR
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities are as MEEEENESEHRUT !
follows:
Amount
due from
ultimate
holding Bank
company borrowing Total
& UK B 4% P2 B
ATIFE HRITHE™R st
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
FoHE FoE FoE
As at 1 January 2023 2023 181H (6) - (6)
Cash flows REME 2 - 2
As at 31 December 2023 1120235128318 4) - 4)
As at 1 January 2022 202281 81H (20) 2,565 2,545
Cash flows REME 14 (2,565) (2,551)
As at 31 December 2022 202251283 1H 6) - 6)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. AABZ IR AR

THE COMPANY

2023 2022
20234 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
o5 Ea=i
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBMEE
Interests in subsidiaries FRH S A B I 88,776 88,776
Current assets MENEE
Other receivable and prepayment =R e EY S S EL NEEE 1,204 580
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B [ A B =R IE 22,431 29,951
Amounts due from a fellow subsidiary FEU—FEIE & M B
NEIFIA 30 21
Amounts due from holding company 2 YN=IE | - 3
Cash and cash equivalents BEKIREHEEY 7,347 1,167
31,012 31,722
Total assets HMEE 119,788 120,498
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES D kaE
Share capital il 12,340 12,340
Reserves () 7 WD 106,760 107,529
Total equity BN 119,100 119,869
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities RE&E
Accruals FEstE R 688 629
Total liabilities E=R 688 629
Total equity and liabilities HEERARE 119,788 120,498

Gan Pei Joo Chuah Choon Bin
Director Director
EBEE EBEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

THE COMPANY (Continued)

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

34

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

. RABZMFBRRE (B)

Note: B &
The movements of the Company’s reserves are as follows: NNCEBEZEUT ©
Shares
held for
share Share Proposed
Share award award Capital Accumulated final
premium scheme reserve reserve losses dividend Total
BOESHE] i3 et
RirEE RHEZRR SRR B ZHER FERE by
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
TeE T4 T35 T35 45 TeE T35
[note 27) {note 13)
Wiz (i13)
As at 1 January 2022 1202251818 80,650 (4,269) 2,266 86,776 (81,969) 25,766 109,220
Purchase of shares for share award TR ENT BB B (R =)
scheme & . (13,865) . - . - (13,865)
Equity-settled share award scheme M mEEN RN RE:E
expenses {note 35) Bﬁi (Hf%35) _ _ 7574 _ _ _ 7574
Vesting of shares of share award FBR N IRE B R M)
scheme & . 6,656 (6,134) - (522) - .
Transactions with owners HEEANRS - (7,209) 1,440 - (522) - (6,291)
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENRZANGREE
for the year - - - - 31,504 - 31,504
2021 final dividend approved e 10l BRUER2021FRER S W) _ - - = (1,138) (25,766) (26,904)
2022 final dividend proposed o2 12 B0 KR el < - - - 1143 27143 .
As at 31 December 2022 and 142022128310 k20231810
1 January 2023 80,650 (11,478) 3,706 86,776 (79,268) 27,143 107,529
Purchase of shares for share award AR 1R 2Bt B R B A f e
scheme (%9 - (12,336) - - - - (12,336)
Equity-settled share award scheme WL BN 2R 1R
expenses M) FAk tes) - - 8,872 - - - 8,872
Vesting of shares of share award B AR{7 5B St BB A )
scheme (%) - 8,891 (8,634) - (257) - -
Transactions with owners AREANRS - (3,445) 238 - (257) = (3,464)
Profit and total comprehensive income EREHRZENELE
for the year - - - - 30,252 - 30,252
2022 final dividend approved et ) Bt RI2022F K Ef AR S Mekrsw) - - - - (414) (27,143) (27,557)
2023 final dividend proposed e 13} BH2023F KBRS W) - - - - (29,443) 29,443 -
As at 31 December 2023 #2023%12A318 80,650 (14,923) 3,944 86,776 (79,130) 29,443 106,760
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

35. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 1 April 2020, the Company adopted a share award scheme
(the “Scheme” or the “Share Award Scheme”) in which the
Group’s employees will be entitled to participate.

The purpose of the Scheme is to recognise the contributions
by certain employees and to incentivise them to achieve the
Group’s long-term business goals and objectives. The Scheme
also serves as part of the Group’s employee retention program
in retaining its existing employees and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

The Scheme shall be subject to the administration of the board
(the “Board”) and the trustee in accordance with the scheme
rules and the trust deed of the Scheme. Subject to any early
termination as may be determined by the Board, the Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a term of 10 years commencing
on its adoption date (i.e. 1 April 2020).

The maximum number of shares to be subscribed for and/
or purchased by the trustee by applying the trust fund of the
Scheme for each calendar year for the purpose of the Scheme
shall not exceed 5% of the total number of issued shares as
at the beginning of such calendar year. The directors of the
Company shall not instruct the trustee to subscribe and/or
purchase any shares for the purpose of the Scheme when
such subscription and/or purchase will result in the said limit
being exceeded. The maximum number of shares which may
be awarded to a selected employee under the Scheme shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of issued shares from time
to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a sum of
approximately HK$20.9 million (equivalent to approximately
MYR12.3 million) (2022: HK$25.6 million (equivalent to
approximately MYR13.9 million)) has been used to acquire
20,514,000 (2022: 24,618,000) shares from the open market
by the trustee of the Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kR e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

35. RRIDIZENETE (4B)
R E FE2023F K2022F 128318 IEFE
B RERMDERTEEE ZRAN

35. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued)

The shares granted under the Share Award Scheme of the
Company during the years ended 31 December 2023 and

2022 are as follows: T
At the Granted Vested Lapsed Exercise period
beginning during during during At the (both dates
Date of grant of year the year the year the year end of year inclusive)
FR f7fEH
i EL RERD [k FRER FREH REX (BFEEMA)
Year ended 31 December #F2023%128310
2023 I35
4 January 2021 202151848 4,735,694 - (4,734,527) (1,167) - 4January 2021 -
3 January 2023
202151840 E
2023F1A3H
1 July 2022 202247818 11,165,988 - (5,401,015) (328,171) 5,436,802 1 July 2022 -
1 July 2024
2022567810 E
202457810
1 July 2023 202357818 - 16,127,000 (5,375,637) - 10,751,363 1 July 2023 -
1 July 2025
2023%57R10E
202557810
Year ended 31 December 2022 EiE2022F12831H
IHEE
4 January 2021 202151848 10,882,611 - (5,441,153 (706,764) 4,735,694 4 January 2021 -
3 January 2023
202151B4HE
20231830
1 July 2022 202267H18 - 18,000,000 (6,000,000) (834,012) 11,165,988 1 July 2022 -
1 July 2024
202267B1HE
20245%781H
Note: fE -

EFERROEMENRBERET2ENBEERE
RERPERBRETFECEENRHEB Z -
ZERRREQERL —FRBFERKMRE

include at least one service year and key performance index. MR -

The Board has full discretion to determine the amount of the share award to be
vested to selected employees at the end of a performance period in accordance
with the performance criteria approved by the Board. These performance criteria

The Company granted 16,127,000 (2022: 18,000,000) shares to selected
employees on 1 July 2023 (2022: 1 July 2022), which will be vested in tranches
of one-third each on every anniversary date of the grant date starting from the
1st anniversary date until the 3rd anniversary date. The fair value of the granted
shares is calculated based on the closing market price of the shares of HK$0.98
(2022: HK$0.92) on the day of the grant, and amounted to HK$15.8 million
(equivalent to approximately MYR9.4 million) (2022: HK$16.6 million (equivalent to
approximately MYR9.3 million)) in total. Together with the granted shares in prior
years, the Group recognised a Share Award Scheme expense of HK$15.4 million
(equivalent to approximately MYR8.9 million) (2022: HK$13.4 million (equivalent to
approximately MYR7.6 million)) during the year ended 31 December 2023.

AN B F20235E7 A1 H (20224 1 2022478 1H) @
ETEEEH16,127,0008% (20224 : 18,000,000
B B ZERDEESREEFEREF =B
FREREBELEHENSEEEREYRHEE > Silt
ERB=D2— ERHBROHNAFELRER
AR B EBRI IR T 180.9878 7T (20224 : 0.9278
o) StE AR A1.8EEE T HERNI4IEE
°3) (20224 : 16.6E & BT HHERNI.IEE
LH)) BRLHMEEEEHRMG AEBRES
202312831 ILEERBI54E8 BT HBER
#8.9EELHE) (20226 1 134E8HE T MHERY
7T6EBRE)) MRMIEE T EIFL
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

35. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 35.

Note: (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a total of 15,511,179 (2022:
11,441,153) awarded shares were vested. The cost and the fair value of the
related vested shares were HK$15.8 million (2022: HK$13.0 million) (equivalent to
approximately MYR8.9 million (2022: MYR6.7 million)) and HK$15.5 million (2022:
HK$11.4 million) (equivalent to approximately MYR8.6 million (2022: MYR6.1
million)) respectively. The difference of MYR257,000 (2022: MYR522,000) was
charged to retained profits. As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amount of
Shares held for Share Award Scheme was HK$25.9 million (2022: HK$20.2
million) (equivalent to approximately MYR14.9 million (2022: MYR11.5 million)).

A7 52 Rh =t 8 (48

Mzt @ ()

B E2023F12H31HILFE > 5F15,511,1798%
(20224 : 11,441,1538%) RN (H E & & - 18R
EEBRONAAEKRATFEDFAS. 8@%7575
(2022%F 1 13.0BEET) (HEENRLSIEES
(2022F : HHERKIB.7TEELD)) &15.5%%%
70 (2022%F : 11.4E 8Bt MEERN8ERSE
(2022E HEERN6IBESE)) - £%8257,000

& (20224 : 522,0009 %) ERREEF 0
ﬁézoza&mﬁ 318 BRDSREN ST BT ERR D BIERE
EA25. 98 88T (20224 1 20287 B %) (HBE
RE14.9BESS (2022F : HERKWIEES
=)o

36. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 36. B KIE
2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H *E
Contracted but not provided for BETAEREE

— Construction of factory TR 144,102 32,023
— Machineries and equipment 128 Kt 3,843 21,951
147,945 53,974

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. A HIRS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year:

(@) Names and relationship

Name of related party
RS & T8

BRI HFREREMIDFIBEES
% Z&%IHAZIKEEE 1R 5 5] 3L 5

(@) HEREEF

Relationship with the Group
E A E B RIRA R

PCB
Pentamaster Smart Solution Sdn. Bhd.

(“Pentamaster Smart Solution”)
PAC

716 ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B ZB R AR A

Ultimate holding company
REERRAE

Fellow subsidiary
BRMEAT

Associate

/N



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|-\

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following transactions with
related parties during the year: (Continued)

(b) Related party transactions

37. MBS 5 (@)

BRRGeMBRREMBOMKEE
57|\ ﬁ%@ﬁ\ REEREBEK ST
(uﬁ)

(b) RABAERSZ

2023 2022
20234 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<5F e
Purchase from: A=
- PAC -PAC 7,709 2,757
— Pentamaster Smart Solution —Pentamaster Smart
Solution 674 450
Rental income from: HEWAKE :
— Pentamaster Smart Solution —Pentamaster Smart
Solution 46 20
- PCB -PCB 33 34
The related party transactions were conducted in the % Bt 75 +%)375A RREHBERET
normal course of business and at prices and terms no ET RBEBRRERTERRA

less than those charged to and conducted with other
third parties of the Group.

(c) Key management personnel remuneration
Key management personnel are those persons
including directors having authority and responsibility
for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Group, directly or indirectly. The remuneration of key
management personnel during the year is as follows:

REBEME=FFTER LA
EREMBE=FRITE

() FEEEASHMN
TEEEANERUREEENE
BERNRETEZRIBZRE
BERENFEREHIAL
TEEEASRFEANFHFMOT

2023 2022

20235 20224

MYR’000 MYR’000

F<H G

Salaries, allowances and bonuses i AN R TEAL 12,317 10,792

Contribution to EPF EEABEMHMR 1,610 1,417
Equity-settled share award scheme expenses LU %5 45 & A4 JG 19 52 B

sHEIFEX 1,847 3,184

15,774 15,393
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
(d) Balances with related parties

37. RS R % ()
(d) RBREETS&SER

2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
FTei =
Amount due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries: FEU ~ (1) AR B AR
FRIA :
Trade nature: B54E
— Pentamaster Smart Solution —Pentamaster Smart
Solution (139) (194)
Non-trade nature: FEBZMHE .
— Pentamaster Smart Solution —Pentamaster Smart
Solution 16 15
— Pentamaster Innoteg Sdn. Bhd. —Pentamaster Innoteq
Sdn. Bhd. 1,350 -
Amount due from ultimate holding FEU R AR ERRARIFRIA -
company:
Non-trade nature: FEBEZMHE .
- PCB —-PCB 4 6

The amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand except the
balances of trade nature which are repayable on normal
trade terms.

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks arising
from their operations. The key financial risks include credit
risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.
The Group operates within clearly defined guidelines and the
Group’s policy is not to engage in speculative activities.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s

exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

718 ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B ZB R AR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38. R ERKRATFEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued) (48)
38.1 Categories of financial assets and BAIEMEEREBDE
liabilities
2023 2022
20234 20224F
MYR’000 MYR’000
F&H S5
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEFAERZ
THEE
— Investment in RCPS — KA Pl BE (o] o] E 4
BRERNKRE 15,500 18,000
— Derivative financial assets —TEEMEE 2,384 489
— Equity securities listed in Malaysia — X EE2RPEEE ETHAY
AR 5 170 219
Financial assets at amortised cost BT 2
THEE
— Trade receivables — B EWRIE 196,289 237,926
— Other receivables and deposits —HMEWRIE &g E 9,345 2,126
— Amount due from ultimate holding — B RAER AT
company B 4 6
— Amount due from fellow subsidiaries —BWRERKEARRIE 1,227 =
— Cash and cash equivalents —RBEMREEEY 395,797 328,628
620,716 587,394
Financial liabilities ERaR
Financial liabilities measured at FVTPL BAFEFAEBTZ
THaE
— Derivative financial liabilities —TEsmas 1,833 6,847

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 1Z#$HR At 21

THEE
— Trade payables — B ENRIE 118,022 121,528
— Other payables and accruals —HMENRIBER
FEstE M 47,953 29,624
— Amount due to a fellow subsidiary — BN —HER RS
NGBS - 179

167,808 158,178
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND HEREEERATFEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (,%a)
38.2 Credit Risk 382 ERA %

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty will
default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from granting credit to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and from its investing
activities.

The maximum exposure to credit risk on recognised
financial assets is limited to the carrying amounts as
summarised in note 38.1.

Trade receivables

Credit risk arising from trade customers is addressed by
the application of credit evaluation and close monitoring
procedures by the management. The Group grants
to existing customers credit terms ranging from O to
120 days (2022: 0 to 120 days). In deciding whether
credit terms shall be extended, the Group will take into
consideration factors such as the relationship with the
customer, its payment history and credit worthiness.

New customers are subject to a credit evaluation process
and existing customers’ risk profiles are reviewed
regularly with a view to setting appropriate terms of
trade and credit limits. Where appropriate, further sales
are suspended and legal actions are taken to attempt
recoveries and mitigate losses.

22() ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B ZB R AR A
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND MRS EERATEAR
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (,%a)
38.2 Credit risk (Continued) 382z ER % (48)

Trade receivables (Continued)

In addition, as set out in note 2.12, the Group assesses
ECL under IFRS 9 on trade receivables based on
provision matrix, the expected loss rates are based on
the payment profile for sales in the past 5 years as well
as the corresponding historical credit losses during that
period. The historical rates are adjusted to reflect current
and forward-looking macroeconomic factors affecting
the customer’s ability to settle the amount outstanding.
At the end of each reporting period, the historical default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Trade receivables are written off (i.e. derecognised) when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is based on provision matrix. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not
further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases. The ECL rate of collectively assessed
trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
is ranged from 0.00% to 0.00% (2022: 0.00% to 0.00%),
past due between 1 to 30 days is ranged from 0.00% to
0.74% (2022: 0.25% to 1.13%), past due between 31 to
90 days is ranged from 0.04% to 1.82% (2022: 0.11% to
0.91%), past due between 91 to 365 days is ranged from
0.27% to 9.61% (2022: 0.85% to 3.98%) and past due
more than 365 days is ranged from 50% to 100% (2022:
50% to 100%).

B 5 RmRE (@

HESh > SN B 3E2.12PF & > A EE
1R 15 38 B fE 5T EE 53 FE WL =R 1B
PR EIFR R 3R 5 2 R 5595718 19
FEHEERE BEEEXLE
RiBASEHE B RUE R Az i
EAEENBAEEEGETE B
?IE?%E%E%DH”LA&H?%%
FREBEREERBEBRENNRFK
auﬁ}@\étfg%ﬁ«hﬁl? MBS
HH?E K%l#ﬁ%#ﬁ BEENE

B S RRARIERGEEREZR
Bl B Hifi 1 (B4R LERESD) o

AEERBEEEETEEZE
WHIEBZGEEEE SEESER
EHEREEERRX - HARNAER
FBFEERELSRL KBRS
BEEDENEEEXNGFTEE
EEE RAILAEBRFRREF B
zHEmEE—F @D ERAERH
RENEEEE B2 EIKIE
NEFEESEBENDG —ET
FE HEPRARAERREES
0.00%Z0.00% (20224 : 0.00%
F0.00%) ° #HER1E30K %0.00%
E0.74% (20224 : 0.25% =&
1.13%) > #HI31 E90K &0.04%
£1.82% (2022F 1 0.11%=E
0.91%) » BHIO1 E365K %0.27%
£9.61% (20224 : 0.85% %
3.98%) M HAB48365K A50%
ZE100% (20224 : 50%ZE100%) ©
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38. MEEAMGEERATEE
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (48)
38.2 Credit risk (Continued) 382 =ERME (&)

Trade receivables (Continued)

It is inherent in the Group’s business to make individually
large sales to its customers that may lead to significant
concentration of credit risks. Such risks are managed
by ensuring that transactions are only carried out with
customers with a reliable financial profile. As at 31
December 2023, 21% (2022: 27%) of the total trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest customer
and 46% (2022: 43%) of the total trade receivables
were due from the five largest customers of the Group
respectively.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
amounts due from ultimate holding company and
fellow subsidiaries, other receivables and deposits and
cash and cash equivalents. In order to minimise the
credit risk of other receivables, the management would
make periodic collective and individual assessment
on the recoverability of other receivables based on
historical settlement records and past experience as
well as current external information and adjusted to
reflect probability-weighted forward-looking information,
including the default rate. Other monitoring procedures
are in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In these regards, the credit risk of
other receivables are considered to be low.

Besides, the management is of opinion that there is no
significant increase in credit risk on other receivables
since initial recognition as the risk of default is low and
the outstanding balance is insignificant after considering
the factors as set out in note 2.12 and, thus, no ECL is
recognised based on 12-month ECL.

The credit risks on cash and cash equivalents are
considered to be insignificant because the counterparties
are banks/financial institutions with high external credit
ratings.

7)) © PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B ZBI R AR A
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EL BRI AZEIHE  HAJsEER
BEREEETRB -ZERRD
FBEERXZELAATEGTFH
RPN ERETMTUEERE -
2023F 128310 B FEWFIE
UBZEMI21% (20224F © 27%) B FE
WAEBRARRREBE MES
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
38.3 Liquidity risk

38. ﬁ(ﬁ%;)ﬁll‘ﬁ““ﬂ&’&quﬁﬂ'%
]
383 MBE T A

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter
difficulty in meeting financial obligations due to shortage
of funds. The Group actively manages its debt maturity
profile, operating cash flows and availability of funding so
as to ensure that all repayment and funding needs are
met.

The Group aims at maintaining a balance of sufficient
liquid assets and flexibility in funding by maintaining credit
facilities with banks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities as at 31 December
20283 and 2022. When the creditor has a choice of when
the liability is settled, the liability is included on the basis
of the earliest date when the Group can be required to
pay. Where the settlement of the liability is in instalments,
each instalment is allocated to the earliest period in which
the Group is committed to pay.

RPETRBRETERARESE
RMBEULBRBTHBESENER -
FEERBEEHGHIBS
MAREREREBRITRES
DEmRmeEMBERKREESE
Ko

AEBETBEBERIRITNEE
ME RN ARBEEL R
RETEEMN-

A& E 1202345 &2022412 831
HREGEOEHEI MU T o HE
BAEREEZEESENKR
ZEEREAEENERERR
ENFNHBAR HMZABEA
DHEE SEQHENRER
AEBABN RN REHAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

38.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)
The contractual maturity analysis below is based on the
undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.

38. UHEMEBERATFENE

()

383 MEMEE R ()
FTXANHBARBRESRE

BRRITFEREMEFL -

Within Over 1 year Total
1 year or but within Over undiscounted Carrying
on demand 5 years 5 years amount amount
—ERY —EM)E
BEX BEER EEME KirRAE IRETE
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
<5 <5 <5 <5 <5
As at 31 December 2023 120235128318
Non-derivative financial liabilties — FE#TEZFEE
Trade payables BRELHIE 118,022 - - 118,022 118,022
Other payables and accruals HEfENHIER
ezt &R 41,236 6,717 - 47,953 47,953
159,258 6,717 - 165,975 165,975
Derivative financial liabilities ITEEHEE
Gross settled forward foreign PEAENERINE
exchange contracts =)
- Cash inflow —RER/A 59,893 = = 59,893
- Cash outflow —R&m (61,726) - - (61,726)
(1,833) - - (1,833)
As at 31 December 2022 20226128318
Non-derivative financial liabilities — F#7£ZHBEE
Trade payables BRENTE 121,528 - - 121,528 121,528
Other payables and accruals HittEOmIER
fE:HER 29,624 - - 29,624 29,624
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary & —FERE R B AR
B 179 - - 179 179
151,331 - - 151,331 151,331
Derivative financial labilties rTEEHER
Gross settled forward foreign FHEEENRAINE
exchange contracts =)
- Cash inflow —“HERA 183,842 - - 183,842
~ Cash outfiow e (190,689) - - (190,689)
(6,847) - - (6,847)
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38. MERAMEERATFENE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (48)

38.4 Interest rate risk 38.4 I & b
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or MERBABRRTIZNEES
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because THMTEATFERIRETEEN
of changes in the market interest rates. The Group’s BB NEBNEENXEHAK
fixed rate short-term investment is exposed to a risk of BERNEXEHMEAERB KT
change in their fair value due to changes in interest rates. HRATEEFH AR 12023F K
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the exposure to 2022F 1283180 ZEERIRIT
interest rates for the Group’s bank deposits is considered EREHNMERRERAMT
minimal. JBE o
The interest rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing AEBERRSHRNVERESD
financial instruments based on the carrying amount as at et Em T AENFIENT .

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Effective As at Effective As at
interest rate 31/12/2023 interest rate 31/12/2022
#2023 22022
BRAE 128318 BRA % 12B31H
MYR’000 MYR'000
Fo% 9%
Variable rate instruments AERETA
Short-term investment miRs 2.05% - 3.66% 275,060 1.80% - 3.10% 210,641
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38.
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
38.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s profit after income tax for the year and equity to
a possible change in interest rates with effect from the
beginning of the year. This sensitivity analysis is provided

MBEERBREERATEFE

(&)

38.4 FIZR ALK (4%)
TRIRAEBR S EERFE
Mg R R AR B EDER
RO R BN REE AR E
ARBABEEIEEREALR

internally to key management personnel. fito
2023 2022
2023F 20224
Increase/ Increase/
(Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/
in profit (Decrease) in profit (Decrease)
or loss in equity or loss in equity
B|EEm/ remEm,/ BREm/ BmiEm/
(A) (Rb) (R ()
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
L5 Te&E 4] o=
Interest rate: GilE
Increase by 50 basis point B INS0fE R RS 1,375 1,375 1,053 1,053
Decrease by 50 basis point A0 2 (1,375) (1,375) (1,053) (1,053)
38.5 Foreign currency risk 38.5 M BE 2 JEL PR

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk as a
result of its normal trading activities whereby sales and
purchases are principally transacted in US Dollar (‘US$”),
which is not the functional currency of the Group entities
to which transactions relate. The Group also holds
financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
38.5 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The Group mitigates the exposure of this risk by
maintaining US$ denominated bank accounts and enters
into foreign currency forward contracts.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and

MBRBEEERATEFE
@
38.5 SMEEE S AR (48)

XEEBBRITETHERTER
PRFTINEEBEESQREZR
g TR o

INESHEEREERERREIR

liabilities, translated into MYR at the closing rates, are as ERMALSHWT !
follows:
Hong Kong
Singapore Dollar
us$ Euro Dollar RMB (“HKS$")
ESH BT s AR®E  EBx(Er)
MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000 MYR’000
<5 <5 <5 <5 <5
As at 31 December 2023  12023%12831H
Trade receivables B EEE 125,402 - - 34,386 -
Cash and cash equivalents ~ B&RFEELEEY 18,092 493 647 33,280 7,584
Trade payables B REMRIE (15,155) (28,568) (604) (11,764) -
Net exposure BREETE 128,339 (28,075) 43 55,902 7,584
As at 31 December 2022 12022512831H
Trade receivables B EEE 154,423 11 212 34,218 -
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BRERELEEY) 26,353 17,801 386 23,838 534
Trade payables BREMNHIE (17,043) (17,100) (145) ©,771) -
Net exposure RRRAREFE 163,733 712 453 48,285 534

The Group is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation
in US$, Euro, RMB and HKS$.

AEBTEEHET BT AR
B TRBTERN R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
38.5 Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s

profit after income tax for the year and equity in regard

to an appreciation in the Group entities’ functional
currencies against US$, Euro, RMB and HK$. These
sensitivity rates represent the management’s best

()

38. MFRAMEERAFEFE
38.5 SMEEE S AR (48)

TRINTEEBREFEERRARE
MEEN REDENAERERE
MEEWRET Bty AREK
BTAENSRE ZEHRE
EERAREEBHIMNEERATSE

assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange BENRET G-
rates.
Decrease/ Decrease/
Sensitivity (Increase) (Increase)
rate in profit in equity
s D iRl
BRKELEZE (¥g1m) 6:))1)]
MYR’000 MYR’000
Fos Fo&
As at 31 December 2023 112023F12831H
Us$ ETT 13% 12,680 12,680
Euro BRIt 12% (2,560) (2,560)
RMB ARE 6% 2,549 2,549
HK$ BT 13% 749 749
As at 31 December 2022 1%2022612831H
us$ ETT 13% 16,177 16,177
Euro Rt 7% 38 38
RMB AR 7% 2,569 2,569
HK$ HIT 13% 53 53

The same % depreciation in the Group entities” functional
currencies against the respective foreign currencies
would have the same magnitude on the Group’s profit for
the year and equity but of opposite effect.

)78 ® PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B ZBI R AR A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 38. MERAMEERATFENE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued) (48)

38.6 Fair value measurement of financial 386 T AATEHE
instruments
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value REEMBERAIREZLATFESE
in the consolidated statement of financial position are HNEMEERBESA=ZEBAF
grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The BEMK —ZEEAENRSTENE
three levels are defined based on the observability and RKEAFRBREITREMERNOT

significance of inputs to the measurements, as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets F—i: MRAEERERIEE
for identical assets and liabilities MIBHRE CRERE)
Level 2:  inputs other than quoted prices included B REEHEEEENH
within Level 1 that are observable for the B R BRIV E A BUR
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, (B—MHRABENRE
and not using significant unobservable inputs FRSM) - BREREART
AERREARE
Level 3: significant unobservable inputs for the asset BEM: REERBR/PVEAL
or liability EECES PN C

ANNUAL REPORT 2023 53§ ® ))Q
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kR G M HRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 &2 2023412531 H 1FF/Z

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

38.6 Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)
The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirety is
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement.

RA %5 L s
@

REERAT(EE

386 TRITEXFEHE @)

TMEENERERFERAN

AT

BRE@AE-

RIBANER
ATEFERFEXRE

EENRH
EHNRME

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Bk B4R et Feh
MYROOD ~ MYRO0D  MYRO00  MYR000
<5 <5 <5 <5
Financial assets: EREE:
As at 31 December 2023 1220235128318
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEF AR EREE
- Equity securities listed in Malaysia —RERATE RS 170 - - 170
- Derivative financial assets —{TEERE E W - 2,384 - 2,384
~ Investment in RCPS (rete ) — AR A SR E LR
& - - 15,500 15,500
170 2,384 15,500 18,054
As at 31 December 2022 1A2022E12831H
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZEREE
- Equity securities listed in Malaysia —PERAT LHRRRES 219 - - 219
- Derivative financial assets — T ERE E WD - 489 - 489
- Investment in RCPS ete — R BRI A SR ELRN
K& ) - - 18,000 18,000
219 489 18,000 18,708
Financial liabilities: SREE:
As at 31 December 2023 120235128318
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFEF AR SREE
- Derivative financial liabiliies e —fTEEREE W - 1,833 - 1,833
- 1,833 - 1,833
As at 31 December 2022 12022128310
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATEFABRZEHERE
- Derivative financial liabilities "™ — TSR EF WD - 6,847 - 6,847
- 6,847 - 6,847
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #;220234F12/531H LEFZ

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)
38.6 Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

()

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

The methods and valuation techniques used for the purpose of
measuring fair values categorised in Level 2 and 3 are unchanged
compared to the previous reporting periods.

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts is estimated by
comparing the contractual forward price and the quoted forward
price, which are observable at the end of the reporting period.

The details of the fair value measurement of investment in RCPS
categorised under Level 3 fair value hierarchy are described
below:

38. UBEBEERATEFE

()

38.6 £ TAAFEFE (B)

5T

@M

(i)

(i)

()

B E2023F12A31HLELFE  E—
MR EREE — MR N e (20224 ¢

) -

B E—EREH AREEDER
BIRRBE=ZBRRTFEZHERMG
BT R E o

SNEEMEHZATET BB R
BHOEAEE SRR VRS0
RABE) {5t o

PEAE=RATEER2TRE
THRREERREZ AT EH
RN :

Valuation Unobservable Discount

technique input rate

EERM AR AR BEIR=E

Investment in RCPS Price/book ratios Discount of 15.00%
of comparable lack of (2022: 15.80%)

companies

RE]EE A BIRELRNRE

The fair value of investment in RCPS is determined using the
price/book ratios of comparable listed companies adjusted for
lack of marketability discount. An increase in the discount for lack
of marketability would decrease the fair value. As at 31 December
2023, it is estimated that with all other variables held constant,
an increase/decrease in discount of lack of marketability by 10%
(2022: 10%) would decrease/increase the Group’s profit for the
year by MYR1,713,000/MYR1,713,000 (2022: MYR1,416,000/
MYR1,416,000).

BELBAT R

marketability
RZ=H%
B M0

15.00%
(20224 : 15.80%)

PREER A ERELREENAT
BEAHERIELR FHATNTHIR
X (BPRRZH B REEITINmE
TR FUBE -BRZHEREY
B9 37 30188 0 = PR (R A F (& - 182023
F128318 Lt ERBEHEMEE
BRETENBERT BZHHERE
MERITINE MW 10% (2022
F110%) B EAE B D
//#101,713,000%9 % 1,713,000
43 (20224 :1,416,000% &
/1,416,000% %) °
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39. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard the

39.

Group’s ability to continue its operations as a going concern

and to provide adequate return to shareholders. In order to

maintain the optimal capital structure, the Group may, from

time to time, issue new shares, raise new debt financing or sell

assets to reduce debts, where necessary.

BMBHwRRMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #5Z22023412/531H LEF/Z

BXEE
FEBEREANERAREAER
RIS A AR RIEHT RE

WeomERREBARE  SEEAAE

AERAEBEZREITHMRMD

CBENE

BRENHESEELRDER-

The net debt to equity ratio at the end of reporting period is as RARESHFEERRLERUWT
follows:

2023 2022
20235 20224
MYR’000 MYR’000
F<H G
Borrowing (=R = =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERIREEEY (395,797) (328,628)
Net cash &P (395,797) (328,628)
Total equity KatEm 847,972 736,713
Net debt to equity ratio FAREERIEE N/A R3EHR N/A 77 FB

73 © PENTAMASTER INTERNATIONAL LIMITED B ZB R AR A
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